
 

 
 

Meeting of  
Madera County Board of Education 

Tuesday, February 10, 2026 
3:30 p.m. 

 
This meeting will be held at  

1105 South Madera Avenue, Conference Room 5,  
Madera, CA 93637 

 
AGENDA 

 
Reasonable Accommodation for any Individual with Disability – Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable 
accommodation to attend or participate in a meeting or function of the Madera County Board of Education, may 
request assistance by contacting the Office of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools.  All documents 
pertaining to open session agenda items are available to anyone upon request from the office at 1105 South 
Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637; Telephone: (559) 662-6274; FAX (559) 673-5569. 
 
1.0 Call to Order 

1.1  Flag Salute 
 
2.0 Consideration of Minutes 

2.1  Regular Meeting January 13, 2026 (Action) [Board] 
 
3.0 Adoption of Board Agenda (Action) [Board] 
 
4.0 Information 

4.1 Public Comment 
[This time is offered to members of the public wishing to 
address the Board on matters under the jurisdiction of the 
Board, but not listed on the agenda. Board members may 
listen to but not discuss matters not on the agenda. (G.C. 
54954.2) The Board will not take action on any items 
presented under public comment.  Speakers are limited 
to 3 minutes.] 

 
4.2 Letters and Communications 

 4.2.1 Special Recognition: Dennis Lingo, Nick Mihall, 
Manny Rojas, Robert Velasquez, Brenda 
Plauson, and Donnie Gray  

  [Award of Excellence – Cybersecurity] [Protzman] 
 
4.3 Non-School Sources 

 
4.4 Madera County School Boards Association (MCSBA) 
           Executive Committee Meeting Report [Deniz] 

 



 

 
 

4.5  Madera County Foundation Board Report [Marsh] 
 

4.6  Member Report(s) [Member] 
 

5.0 Information from the Superintendent and Staff 
5.1 Quarterly Reports on Williams Uniform Complaint 

[MCSOS programs and district quarterly reports] [Protzman] 
 

5.2 LCAP Mid-year Review Including Career 
Technical and Alternative Education Programs 
and Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
[LCAP update presentation] [Cogan] 
5.2.1 Madera County Independent Academy 
5.2.2 Pioneer Technical Center 
5.2.3 Madera County Superintendent of Schools 

 
6.0 Old Business 
 
7.0 Closed Session 

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
Code Section 54956.8 

 
7.1  Property: 901 S. Madera Ave., Madera, CA 

 
MCSOS Negotiators: Tricia Protzman, Superintendent, Marisol Verduzco, 
Chief Business and Administrative Services Officer, and David A. Soldani 

 
Party with Whom MCSOS is Negotiating: Camarena Health and Matthew 
Nutting 

 
 Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 
 

7.2  Property: 200 W. Lewis Street, Madera, CA 
 

MCSOS Negotiators: Tricia Protzman, Superintendent, Marisol Verduzco, 
Chief Business and Administrative Services Officer, and David A. Soldani 

 
Party with Whom MCSOS is Negotiating: Dennis Cowles 

 
 Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 
 
8.0 New Business 

8.1 Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates 
[Ratification of Temporary County Certificates  
issued previous month] (Action) [Casarez] 



 

 
 

 
8.2 Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment 

  [Equipment to be declared obsolete and removed  
from inventory] (Action) [Verduzco] 

 

8.3 Consideration Investment Performance Statement 
[Review and approval of the quarterly rate of return 
of investments with the county government] (Action) [Verduzco] 

 
8.4 Consideration Approval of Revised 2025-2026 School  
 Calendar for Pioneer Technical Center (Chowchilla) 
 [Chowchilla Fair day has moved to May 8] (Action) [Cogan] 
 

9.0 Other 
9.1 Board Bylaws Ad Hoc Committee February Update 
 [New legislation requires review of Board Bylaws] (Action) [Board] 

 
10.0  Adjournment 



 

1 of 5 
 

UNADOPTED 
Minutes of  

Madera County Board of Education 
January 13, 2026 

 
Present: Danny Bonilla, Cathie Bustos, Shelley Deniz, Tammy Loveland, Dianna 

Marsh, Wallace Nishimoto, Alfred Soares, Jr., Tricia Protzman, Executive 
Secretary 

 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: David Bustos, Joe Casarez, Fred Cogan, Jessica Drake, Dennis Lingo, 

Nick Mihall, Jennifer Pascale, Manny Rojas, Kellie Stiles, Dr. Elisa 
Torres-Barton, Marisol Verduzco 

 
1.0 Call to Order 
1.1  Flag Salute 
Superintendent Tricia Protzman called the meeting to order at 3:31 p.m., followed by the 
flag salute. 
 
2.0 Consideration of Minutes 
2.1  Regular Meeting December 16, 2025 
Alfred Soares, Jr. moved to approve the minutes of December 16, 2025, seconded by 
Dianna Marsh and carried by majority vote. 
 
Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Marsh, Nishimoto, Soares, Jr. 
Noes: None 
Abstain: Bonilla 
Absent: None 
 
3.0 Adoption of Board Agenda 
Alfred Soares, Jr., moved to adopt the agenda, seconded by Tammy Loveland and 
carried by unanimous vote. 
 
Ayes: Bonilla, Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Marsh, Nishimoto, Soares, Jr. 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
 
4.0 Information 
4.1 Public Comment 
President Bustos stated this time is offered to members of the public wishing to address 
the Board on matters under the jurisdiction of the Board, but not listed on the agenda.  
Board members may listen to but not discuss matters not on the agenda. (G.C. 
54954.2)  The Board will not take action on any items presented under public comment. 



 

2 of 5 
 

Speakers are limited to three minutes. 
 
No one came forward to address the Board. 

 
4.2 Letters and Communications 
Mrs. Protzman provided the Board with information on the following: 

 The Madera Tribune distributed a “Year in Review 2025” catalog.  Mrs. Protzman 
tagged articles relating to MCSOS for Board Members to read. 

 An article regarding Battle of the Books was provided for review. The event 
incorporated middle schools this year and was held at the fairgrounds due to the 
amount of participation. 

 Last week, internal/classified/confidential and Leadership Implementation Team 
members participated in professional development.  The topics were workplace 
communication and safety. Staff toured the Madera County Food Bank in the 
afternoon. Mrs. Protzman noted how eye-opening the tours were.  Over 30,000 
families throughout Madera County receive meals from the Food Bank on a 
monthly basis.  There are 64 distribution sites. 

 The annual MLK Celebration will take place this Sunday.  Mrs. Protzman invited 
the Board to attend.  The event begins at 2 p.m. In addition to speeches, there 
will be a choir, a dance performance, and an art competition.  Dr. Andre 
Stephens, President of Fresno Pacific University will be the keynote speaker. 

 
4.3 Non-School Sources 
None 
 
4.4 Madera County School Boards Association Executive Committee Meeting 
Report 
None 
 
4.5  Madera County Foundation Board Report 
None 
 
4.6  Member Report(s) 
President Bustos stated she received an e-mail from the Association of California 
County Boards of Education (ACCBE).  ACCBE would like to provide a presentation to 
the Board regarding the services they offer outside of what CSBA delivers.  To date, 43  
county offices have joined. A Zoom presentation will be planned for late spring or 
summer.  
 

5.0 Information from the Superintendent and Staff 
5.1 Cybersecurity: Responding to Cyber Threats 
Mrs. Protzman stated MCSOS had a cybersecurity threat.  The IT team did an 
outstanding job identifying the threat and shutting it down before data was obtained. 
Dennis Lingo, Nick Mihall, Manny Rojas, and Robert Velasquez were key individuals in 
maintaining data safety.  CalOES complimented MCSOS on a job well done.  They 
were impressed.  



 

3 of 5 
 

 
Mr. Lingo reported MCSOS is always under cyberattack, receiving over 90,000 cyber 
threats every hour. Public agencies and school systems are high value targets, and for 
this reason MCSOS has an incident response plan.  
 
This recent cyberthreat found one successful credential validation and moved laterally 
to gain access to administrative credentials. They installed programs and services, but 
were caught during the “warning phase,” which is before there is opportunity for a data 
breach. 
 
Mr. Lingo contacted the Superintendent and CBO the evening of November 19 to 
authorize a complete shutdown of MCSOS’ internet. Then the FBI was notified, along 
with the sheriff, and CalOES. MCSOS worked with CalOES to complete a forensic 
review of our systems. Systems were carefully restored using the backup. This took 14 
days to complete. CalOES verified everything was clean. Cybersecurity training is an 
on-going occurrence and additional training have been developed for employees. 
 
5.2 MCSOS Williams Quarterly Report 
Ms. Drake reported no complaints were received. 
 
5.3 Current Expense of Education (Form CEA) & Application For Exemption 
Process  
Mrs. Verduzco explained Form CEA is a requirement of Education Code 41372. It is 
used to determine the percentage of expenditures for the direct classroom cost of 
teaching students.  The form was created in the 1970’s and has been amended over 
time. It mandates school districts to spend a percentage of their education funds on the 
salaries of classroom teachers and classroom classified staff as defined in EC 41011.   
 
Mrs. Verduzco stated this is not a form COE’s are required to complete, but Business 
staff works with District staff to ensure the form and appropriate exemptions are 
completed correctly. Example: ELOP funds are intended to support before and after 
school programs. Funds used for the employment of extended school day staff would 
be exempt, since the services are provided outside of regular school hours. 
 
When a district files an exemption with the COE, funds are withheld by the COE. If the 
exemption is approved by the COE, the funds are released. If the exemption is denied 
by the COE, the funds withheld will be spent on teacher salaries in the following year. 
 
There are three reasons to file waivers: serious financial hardship, payment of 
classroom teachers in excess of comparable districts, and the deficiency is less than 
$1,000. 
 
6.0 Old Business 
6.1 Consideration President Appointments 

- CSBA Legislative Network (1): Tammy Loveland 

- Foundation Board (1): Dianna Marsh 



 

4 of 5 
 

7.0 Closed Session 
None 
 
8.0 New Business 
8.1 Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates 
Joe Casarez asked the Board to ratify the issuance of Temporary County Certificates 
(TCCs) from December 1-31, 2025.  TCCs are issued in order to authorize the 
individual to work while the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing reviews 
their waiver request, emergency permit, initial and/or renewal credential application 
packet. 
 
Mr. Nishimoto asked about Emergency Crosscultural, Language and Academic 
Development (CLAD).  Mr. Casarez explained a CLAD is an additional certification 
required in addition to a basic credential.  Teachers who have English learners in their 
classrooms must be CLAD certified.  
  
Alfred Soares, Jr. moved to ratify the TCCs, seconded by Shelley Deniz and carried by 
unanimous vote. 
 
Ayes: Bonilla, Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Marsh, Nishimoto, Soares, Jr. 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
 
8.2 Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment 
Mrs. Verduzco provided a list of equipment declared obsolete.  The list included 
computers and laptops. 
 
Dianna Marsh moved to approve the list of equipment declared obsolete, seconded by 
Wallace Nishimoto and carried by unanimous vote. 
 
Ayes: Bonilla, Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Marsh, Nishimoto, Soares, Jr. 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
 
8.3 Consideration of School Accountability Report Card 
8.3.1 Endeavor/Voyager Secondary School 
8.3.2 Pioneer Technical Center 
8.3.3 Madera County Independent Academy 
8.3.4 Special Education 
Alfred Soares, Jr., moved to approve the School Accountability Report Cards for 
Endeavor/Voyager Secondary School, Pioneer Technical Center, Madera County 
Independent Academy, and Special Education, seconded by Danny Bonilla and carried 
by unanimous vote. 
 



 

5 of 5 
 

Ayes: Bonilla, Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Marsh, Nishimoto, Soares, Jr. 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
 
9.0 Other 
9.1 Appointment of Bylaws Review Committee 
9.1.1 MCBE BB 9250: Compensation, Benefits, and Reimbursement 
9.1.2 Ed Code 1090 
President Bustos appointed Alfred Soares, Jr., Wallace Nishimoto, and Tammy 
Loveland to serve on the Bylaws Review Committee. These members accepted their 
appointment. 
 
10.0  Adjournment 
Alfred Soares, Jr., moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Shelley Deniz and 
carried by unanimous vote. 
 
Ayes: Bonilla, Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Marsh, Nishimoto, Soares, Jr. 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:57 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Tricia Protzman 
Executive Secretary 



 Tricia Protzman 
Superintendent of Schools 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051 FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

 

  
 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 5.1 
 

Board of Education Informational Item 
February 10, 2026 

 
Topic: 
Quarterly Reports on Williams Uniform Complaint 
 
Background:  
Pursuant to Education Code 35186 (e), Madera County school districts 
are required to report to the County Superintendent of Schools, on a 
quarterly basis, the total number of complaints by general subject area 
with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints.   

All districts excluding Bass Lake and Madera Unified have submitted 
reports showing no complaints have been filed.  Should something 
develop with either of the remaining districts, the information will be 
brought to the Board. 

Financial Impact: 
None 
 
Resource: 
Tricia Protzman 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Tricia Protzman 
Superintendent of Schools 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051 FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

  
 

Agenda Item 5.2 
 

Board of Education Informational Item 
February 10, 2026 

 
Topic: 
LCAP Mid-year Review Including Career Technical and Alternative Education 
Programs and Madera County Superintendent of Schools [LCAP update 
presentation]  

5.2.1 Madera County Independent Academy 
5.2.2 Pioneer Technical Center 
5.2.3 Madera County Superintendent of Schools 

 
Background:  
The Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) is a required component of the 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF). It describes the goals and specific 
activities that Madera County Superintendent of Schools will put into action to 
educate all students and for certain identified subgroups of students. The 
LCAP must address the priorities as determined by the State Board of 
Education and indicate the funding needed to implement the activities. As 
required, each LCAP will be reviewed and revised each year. The Mid-year 
review update must include: all available Mid-year outcome data related to 
metrics identified in the current year’s LCAP, and all available Mid-year 
expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the current 
year’s LCAP. (EC sections 47606.5, 52062, and 52068) 
 
Financial Impact: 
None. 
 
Resource: 
Frederick Cogan 
Executive Director,  
Career & Alternative Education Services 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 1 of 29 

Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 
2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

This template is intended for internal monitoring purposes only. The 2025-26 LCAP template and instructions should be consulted when completing required 
documents.  

(6) (A) The superintendent of the school district shall present a report on the annual update to the local control and accountability plan and the local control
funding formula budget overview for parents on or before February 28 of each year at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board of the school
district. (B) The report shall include both of the following: (i) All available midyear outcome data related to metrics identified in the current year’s local control
and accountability plan. (ii) All available midyear expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the current year’s local control and
accountability plan.

Internal Notes 

Internal Notes 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Mr. Hugo Sanchez    

Program Director - Career and Alternative Education 
Services 

hsanchez@mcsos.org   
(559) 662-6211

5.2.1



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 2 of 29 

Goal 1 
Goal Description 
All students will be at or above grade level by the end of the school year academically, socially, and emotionally; all students in grade 8 will be prepared for 
high school.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

1.1 Access to Standards- Aligned 
Materials and State Standards 
Implemented in All Classrooms 
 
Reported to the MCSOS 
Governing Board 
        

MET -- Results 
reported for SY 2023-
2024 
 
100% of students have 
access to standards 
aligned curriculum 
materials. 
State standards are 
implemented in all 
classrooms and 
reported to the Board. 
 

MET -- Results 
reported for SY 2024-
25 
 
100% of students have 
access to standards 
aligned curriculum 
materials. State 
standards are 
implemented in all 
classrooms. 
 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
Governing Board] 
 

 100% of MCIA 
students receive 
standards-based 
instruction and all 
curriculum is aligned 
to CCSS. 

MET -- Results 
reported for SY 2026-
2027 
 
100% of students will 
have access to 
standards aligned 
curriculum materials. 
State standards will be 
implemented in all 
classrooms. 
 

1.2 Number of Special Education 
students receiving academic 
intervention and supports.        

During SY 2023-2024, 
All students with an 
IEP receive 
interventions and 
supports identified on 
their IEPs, and all 
students receive 
Academic Acceleration 
support per i-Ready 
results. 

During SY 2024-25, All 
students with an IEP 
receive interventions 
and support as 
identified on their 
IEPs, and all students 
receive Academic 
Acceleration support 
per i-Ready results. 

 Currently, all 6 MCIA 
students on Individual 
Education Plan (IEP) 
receive direct support 
from Special 
Education teacher as 
well as additional 
support with Academic 
Acceleration from 
Instructional 
Assistants. 

For SY 2026-2027: All 
students with an IEP 
will receive identified 
interventions and 
supports, and all 
students will receive 
Academic Acceleration 
support based on i-
Ready results. 

1.3 Percentage of teachers and staff 
attending professional 
development trainings.        

During SY 2023-2024, 
100% of teachers 
have been involved in 
weekly professional 
development with 
other CAES teachers 
in the areas of Math 
pedagogy and 
instructional practices, 

During SY 2024-25, 
100% of teachers 
have been involved in 
weekly professional 
development with 
other CAES teachers 
in the areas of Math 
pedagogy and 
instructional practices, 

 100% of teachers and 
staff participate in 
professional 
development trainings 
with CAES colleagues 
from MCSOS and PTC 
led by 
MCSOS/CAES/FCSS 

For SY 2026-2027: 
100% of teachers will 
participate in 
professional 
development trainings 
with CAES colleagues 
and implement the 
strategies. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 3 of 29 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
Multi-Tiered Systems 
of Support (MTSS), 
Social-Emotional 
Learning and Gang 
Awareness Training. 

Multi-Tiered Systems 
of Support (MTSS), 
Social-Emotional 
Learning and 
McKinney-Vento 
Training. 

staff in the areas of 
Math pedagogy and 
instructional practices, 
Multi-Tiered Systems 
of Support 
(MTSS),Literacy 
Development, Human 
Trafficking Prevention, 
and Social-Emotional 
Learning, ELD 
training, and Foster 
Youth McKinney-
Vento training. 
 

1.4 Teachers Appropriately 
Credentialed with No Mis-
assignments or Vacancies 
 
(Ed Code now requires the use of 
CDE data from the most recent 
DataQuest to report teacher 
assignment data.) 
        

100% of teachers are 
appropriately 
credentialed in 2021-
22. 
 
(Ed Code now 
requires the use of 
CDE data from the 
most recent 
DataQuest year to 
report teacher 
assignment data.) 
 

100% of teachers are 
appropriately 
credentialed in 2022-
23. 
 
[DataQuest] 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
Governing Board] 
 

 91.7% teachers are 
appropriately 
credentialed and 
assigned. 
 
[2023-2024 Dataquest 
Results] 
 

100% of teachers will 
be appropriately 
credentialed in 2024-
25. 
 
(Ed Code now 
requires the use of 
CDE data from the 
most recent 
DataQuest year to 
report teacher 
assignment data.) 
 

1.5 California School Dashboard: 
ELA Distance from Standard (DFS) 
standard as measured by SBAC 
        

2023 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
Overall student 
performance: 88.6 
points below 
Low-Income students: 
83.1 points below 
Hispanic students: 
70.4 points below 
 

2024 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
Overall student 
performance: 96.0 
points below 
Low-Income students: 
90.2 points below 
Hispanic students: 
88.4 points below 
English 
Learners:100.9 points 
below 
 

 2025 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
Overall student 
performance: 
80.8 points below 
Low-Income 
students:80.3 points 
below 
Hispanic students:75.9 
points below 
 

2026 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
Overall student 
performance: 55 
points below 
Low-Income students: 
55 points below 
Hispanic students: 45 
points below 
English Learners: 55 
points below 
 

1.6 California School Dashboard: 2023 California School 
Dashboard: 
 

2024 California School 
Dashboard: 
 

 2025 California School 
Dashboard: 
 

2026 California School 
Dashboard: 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 4 of 29 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
Math Distance from Standard 
(DFS) standard as measured by 
SBAC 
        

Overall student 
performance: 150.9 
points below, 
Low-Income students: 
152.7 points below, 
Hispanic students: 
136.4 points below. 
 

Overall student 
performance: 151.0 
points below 
Low-Income students: 
142.4 points below 
Hispanic students: 
146.7 points below 
English 
Learners:158.0 points 
below 
 

Overall student 
performance: 126.7 
points below 
Low-Income 
students:129 points 
below Hispanic 
students:121.7 points 
below 
 

Overall student 
performance: 115 
points below, 
Low-Income students: 
115 points below 
Hispanic students: 105 
points below. 
English Learners: 120 
points below 
 

1.7 Percentage of English Learner 
(EL) reclassifications.        

During SY 2023-2024, 
These data were not 
reported due to the 
small number of 
English Learners 
(<11). 

During SY 2024-25, 
local data indicates 
that 1 English Learner 
was reclassified. 

 For SY 2025-2026, 1 
English Learner has 
been reclassified. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

For SY 2026-2027: 
10% increase in 
reclassifications 

1.8 California School Dashboard: 
Rate of English Learner Students 
Making Progress toward English 
Proficiency 
 
        

During SY 2023-2024, 
These data were not 
reported due to the 
small number of 
English Learners 
(<11). 

English Learners: 25% 
Long-Term English 
Learners: <11 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

 66.7% of English 
Learners made 
progress toward 
reclassification. 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

2026 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
60% of English 
Learners will achieve 
progress toward 
English Proficiency 
 

1.9 Percentage of Low- Income 
students showing growth on i-
Ready assessments in reading and 
Math.        

December, 2023 i-
Ready assessments: 
 
Students At or Above 
Grade Level: 
Reading -- 19% 
Math -- 5% 
 

May, 2025 i-Ready 
assessments: 
 
Students At or Above 
Grade Level: 
Reading -- 39.1% 
Math -- 21.7% 
 

 December, 2025 i-
Ready assessments: 
 
Students At or Above 
Grade Level: Reading 
-- 26%; 67% of 
students showed 
growth between 
Diagnostic 1 and 2 
Math --10%; 58% of 
students showed 
growth between 
Diagnostic 1 and 2 
 

December, 2026 i-
Ready assessments: 
 
Students At or Above 
Grade Level: 
Reading -- 35% 
Math -- 20% 
 

1.10 Percentage of students with 
access to instructional technology        

100% of students have 
access to instructional 
technology, including 

100% of students have 
access to instructional 
technology, including 

 100% of students have 
access to instructional 
technology, including 

For SY 2026-2027: 
100% of students will 
have access to 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 5 of 29 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
Chromebooks and 
WIFI Hotspots. 
 
As of 2023-24 school 
year, all students have 
Chromebooks and 20 
students have 
hotspots. 
 

Chromebooks and 
WIFI Hotspots. 
 
As of 2024-25 school 
year, all students have 
Chromebooks, and 27 
students have 
hotspots. 
 

Chromebooks and 
WIFI Hotspots. 
 
As of 1/21/26, all 
students have 
Chromebooks and 27 
students have 
hotspots. 
 

instructional 
technology, including 
Chromebooks and 
WIFI Hotspots. 
 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

1.1 Provide Standards-Aligned Curriculum to 
All Students 
Madera County Independent Academy (MCIA) 
will provide all students with rigorous and 
engaging adopted instructional curricula that 
have been state and/or locally approved to 
support the implementation of California State 
Standards. 
 
Although the number of students completing 
the SBAC is too small to generate data for the 
California School Dashboard, an examination 
of student data indicates that most Low-
Income students have not demonstrated 
meeting or exceeding standard on SBAC 
assessments in ELA or Math.  MCIA will 
provide Low-Income students with high-quality, 
standards aligned instructional support 
materials in ELA, Math, ELD, Social Science, 
and Science. 
 
Materials will include textbooks, math 
curriculum, StudySync (books and software) 
and other online software/curriculum. The 
increased rigor will support academic progress 
toward proficiency with an emphasis on ELA 
and Math. 
       
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

100% of MCIA 
students receive 
standards-
based 
instruction and 
all 
curriculum is 
aligned to 
CCSS. As of 
January 21, 
2026, no 
replacement 
textbooks have 
been needed. 
Annual 
site/individual 
student licenses 
for SAVVAS or 
Go Math were 
purchased in 
the previous 
school year. 
 

Instructional materials, 
software 
licenses for students 
 

$12,000.00 $2112.30        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 6 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
 
 

1.2 Support Students on IEPs 
Since students are enrolled at Madera County 
Independent Academy on an ongoing basis, all 
teachers receive an updated roster of students 
on IEPs, which allows teachers to make 
appropriate instructional accommodations for 
all students. To assist students with learning, 
an RSP teacher meets with all students on 
IEPs either individually or in small groups. 
Direct support for students is provided 
primarily with scheduled time with the RSP 
teacher and Instructional Assistant.  Regular 
communication between independent study 
teachers and the RSP teacher ensures 
identified students are receiving appropriate 
support.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Currently, 6 
MCIA students 
receive direct 
support from 
Special 
Education 
teacher in 
addition to 
weekly 
services with 
MCIA 
teachers of 
record. 
 

Teacher-student 
weekly 
schedules and 
appointments. 
 

$25,817.00 $8,844        

1.3 Instructional Staff Professional 
Development Program 
Professional Development to be offered on a 
weekly basis for 90 minutes per week, aside 
from PD accessed by staff though other 
professional educational agencies. 
Professional development opportunities will be 
provided to all staff to support the use of 
standards-aligned curriculum and pedagogy. 
MCIA professional development is designed 
around meeting the academic, social, and 
emotional needs of students to maximize 
academic achievement. Professional 
development will also focus on identifying and 
implementing best instructional practices 
principally directed at meeting the needs of 
unduplicated pupils. Professional development 
is designed for teachers, administrators, 
counselors, and other support staff. Topics 
include: 

• Social emotional learning 

 
X 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

Madera County 
Independent 
Academy 
instructional 
staff participate 
in a weekly 
ongoing 
professional 
development 
program 
designed to 
improve student 
achievement 
and teacher/IA 
efficacy. 
Teachers 
participated in 
weekly training 
for Foster 
Youth/Homeles
s, Suicide 

Professional 
development calendar, 
materials purchased for 
training, service 
agreements 

$2,500.00 $800        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 7 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

• Identifying and implementing best 
instructional practices principally 
directed at meeting the needs of 
English Learners 

• Meeting the needs of Homeless 
students and Foster Youth 

• Multi-Tiered Support System 
(MTSS) 

 
Teachers are encouraged to seek professional 
development opportunities or conferences 
provided by other educational organizations, 
aside from those provided by MCSOS. (LCAP 
Goal 1, Action 5) 
 
 
 
 
 

Awareness and 
Prevention, 
Human 
Trafficking 
Awareness and 
Prevention, 
Literacy 
Development, 
LCAP training, 
and Math 
pedagogy 
designed to 
improve their 
instructional 
support 
practices. 
 

1.4 Low-Income Students to Make Academic 
Progress in Math 
Based on low SBAC and i-Ready Math scores 
for Low-Income students and English Learners 
(as described in the "Reflections" section) 
MCIA will contract with Fresno County 
Superintendent of Schools to provide focused, 
professional development in Math for all 
teachers and support staff for increasing 
capacity to teach math effectively. Based on 
MCIA staff survey of PD needs, 50% of staff 
requested mathematics instructional support 
and 50% requested mathematics pedagogical 
support. Training will be pedagogical to 
improve instruction and teachers will develop a 
mathematical mindset and understand the 
foundational math requirements to prepare 
students to be successful for the next grade 
level. 
 
This professional development will improve 
teachers' instructional practices and close the 
achievement gap for Low-Income students in 
mathematics. This action has resulted in 
increases in achievement (Distance from 

 
 

Low
-

inco
me 

 
 

No      
 

X 
 

Yes     
Ongoing 
Implementation 

Teachers and 
Two 
Instructional 
Assistants 
providing 
intensive 
support for all 
students not 
performing at 
grade level in 
Math receive 
professional 
development 
focused on 
improving math 
proficiency for 
students in 
grades K - 8 by 
a math 
specialist from 
FCSS. Training 
involves 8 half 
days and three 
full days of 

Professional 
Development 
Calendar, shared 
resources, service 
agreements 
 
(Invoices not received 
as of 1/28/26) 
 

$6,000.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 8 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

standard) on state and local assessments 
since its inception. 
       
 
 
 
 

specialized 
training. 

1.5 Retain Highly Effective Teachers Through 
Individualized Professional Development 
To positively affect academic achievement of 
Low-Income students in ELA, math, and 
English language proficiency, MCIA will 
provide high quality professional development 
to increase teacher and staff effectiveness. 
Building teacher capacity in this manner will 
increase staff retention and contribute to a 
positive working environment. Teachers are 
encouraged to seek professional growth 
opportunities or conferences from other 
educational organizations to improve their 
instructional practices and increase student 
achievement in the areas of ELA, designated 
English language development and math. 
Individualized professional growth that meets 
the needs of the teacher will be emphasized. 
 
Title II 
       
 
 
 
 

 
 

Low
-

Inco
me 

 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

During the fall 
semester, 
teachers and 
Instructional 
Assistants 
participated in 
Literacy 
Development 
cohort training 
sessions, K-2 
grade literacy 
workshop, and 
Multitudes 
Reading 
Screener 
training; Math 
curriculum 
committee 
members 
participated in 
trainings to 
learn about new 
math 
curriculum. 

Professional 
development materials 

$1,400.00 $3,254        

1.6 Provide Instructional Support and 
Instructional Materials to Increase Student 
Achievement in ELA and Math 
To increase Low-income and English Learner 
student performance in ELA and Mathematics, 
MCIA staff will provide supplemental 
instructional support and be provided 
supplemental instructional materials to support 
students' academic growth as measured by 
SBAC and i-Ready ELA/Reading and 
Mathematics assessments. Results will be 
analyzed by administrators, teachers, and 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Instructional 
staff members 
provide services 
to students at 
MCIA. 
Additional staff 
members 
provide 
administrative 
support, 
secretarial 
support, and 

Staff members, 
supplies, instructional 
materials 

$350,866.00 $175,433        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 9 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

academic counselors to improve instruction 
and close achievement gaps. MCIA will 
provide Low-Income students with high-quality, 
standards aligned instructional support 
materials in ELA, Math, ELD, Social Science, 
and Science. Materials will include textbooks, 
Study Sync (books and software) and other 
online software/curriculum. The increased rigor 
will support academic progress toward student 
proficiency. 
 
Title I, Part A 
       
 
 
 
 

administration 
of the overall 
program. 
Additionally, 
supplies and 
instructional 
materials 
purchased to 
support the 
mission of the 
school. 
 
 

1.7 Maintain Low Student to Teacher Ratio 
Charter guidelines require the student to 
teacher ratio to remain below the ratio of the 
largest district in Madera County, which is 
currently 30:1. Low-Income Students, English 
Learners, and Foster Youth learn and perform 
at the highest levels when class sizes are 
lower, so MCIA will reduce the teacher 
caseloads below the 30:1 ratio, allowing more 
time spent with students and providing a more 
accurate benchmark to measure student 
success.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

Teachers are 
employed to 
lower and 
maintain 
student/teacher 
ratios below the 
current LEA 
ratio of 30:1. 
Currently, MCIA 
services 
students at a 
ratio of 29:1. 

Increased student 
enrollment 

$206,478.00 $123,593        

1.8 English Learner Support 
To support EL students in achieving English 
Language reclassification, MCIA staff will use 
i-Ready English Language Proficiency 
Assessments as the local assessments to 
meet reclassification criteria. The Program 
Director (bilingual coordinator), along with the 
academic counselor will review assessment 
results and consult with teachers. The MCSOS 
ELA/ELD Program Director will continue to 
work with teachers to incorporate research- 

 
 

Engl
ish 

Lear
ners 

 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

ELA/ELD 
Program 
Director from 
MCSOS 
supports all 
MCIA teachers 
to increase 
effectiveness in 
meeting the 
academic needs 
of EL students. 

Monthly Bilingual 
Network Meetings, 
weekly teacher 
observations, and 
coaching feedback 
meetings 

$20,293.00 $9,953        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 10 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

based instructional strategies to academically 
support EL students. The strategies will be 
implemented in individual or small group 
settings. LAS Links data will guide instructional 
practices to focus on specific language 
domains. 
 
MCIA will provide English language 
development instruction in order to support 
students’ language acquisition and increased 
access to core curriculum. MCIA also provides 
professional development to support teachers 
in their ELD instruction. MCIA will provide 
English Language Development (ELD) 
supplemental materials and additional support 
to English Learners who experience academic 
difficulties. 
 
Title I, Part A 
       
 
 
 
 

Aside from the 
monthly 
meetings with 
CAES ELD 
teachers, the 
Program 
Director 
observes and 
provides 
coaching to 
increase 
effective 
practices. 

1.9 Provide Direct Intervention and Support for 
Struggling Learners as Measured by i-
Ready 
Instructional Assistants (IAs) will assist low-
performing Low-Income students with 
additional instruction in small group settings to 
mitigate learning loss. The support of IAs will 
be principally directed to students grades K-8 
and provide individual or small group 
accelerated interventions using i- Ready 
prescriptive lessons.  Additional instructional 
materials will be purchased to support 
classroom instruction, as needed. 
 
Title I, Part A 
       
 
 
 
 

X 
 

Low
-

Inco
me 

 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Two teachers 
and two 
Instructional 
Assistants 
provide direct 
student support 
to address 
student skill 
deficiencies to 
students below 
grade level as 
measured by i-
Ready in the 
core areas of 
Reading and 
Mathematics. 
Additionally, two 
Instructional 
Assistants 
provide 
intensive 

Two Instructional 
Assistants provide 
direct assistance to 
students requiring 
academic support in 
Reading and/or Math. 

$99,412.00 $48,190        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 11 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

support for all 
students not 
performing at 
grade level in 
Reading and/or 
Math. Students 
are assigned 
prescriptive 
lessons by 
i-Ready to 
address sub-
skill 
weaknesses. 
 

1.10 i-Ready Assessments for Grade Level 
Proficiency 
i-Ready assessments will be used to show 
academic growth and measure grade-level 
proficiency in ELA and Math. Teachers will use 
formative i- Ready assessments and 
prescriptive lessons to help students become 
more academically proficient. Teachers will 
assign i-Ready lessons as part of the required 
classwork to support learning, increase 
academic and English Language proficiency.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

i-Ready 
assessments 
have formally 
been 
administered to 
students twice 
during this 
academic year 
and students 
have shown 
growth in 
Reading and 
Math over this 
time last year. 

i-Ready license costs 
and additional training 
day for Academic 
Acceleration staff 
 
December, 2025 i-
Ready assessment 
results: 
Students At or Above 
Grade Level: 
Reading -- 28% 
Math -- 12% 
 

$13,000.00 $15,998        

1.11 Increase Reading Proficiency 
MCIA will purchase the Accelerated Reader 
program to build reading proficiency and thus 
encourage a desire for lifelong, recreational 
reading.  Materials will include Accelerated 
Reader (books and software), and online 
software/curriculum.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

The Accelerated 
Reader 
Program is 
supplemental 
learning for all 
students to 
increase 
English 
Proficiency and 
reading fluency, 
and given 
growing 
success 
develop a 

Software, new books 
for AR library, staff 
training (as needed) 

$5,000.00 $3,243        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 12 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

lifelong love for 
reading. 

1.12 Access to a Broad Course of Study for 
Low-Income Students 
MCIA is committed to making certain all 
students have equitable access to a broad, 
high-quality course of study, participating in a 
full curriculum that includes science, social 
studies, and the arts. 
 
Software and technology will be provided to 
allow the broadest possible access to these 
curricular areas.  Based on Educational 
Partner input, less than half of all parents of 
Low-Income students stated their child(ren) 
have access to technology (Chromebook and 
WIFI hotspot).  To address this need, MCIA 
will provide these devices, issued on an annual 
basis to families and returned at the end of the 
year. Student learning is enhanced using 
Chromebook technology by the following: full 
access to curricula, digital citizenship, and 
frequency in using all formative and summative 
online assessments. Additional needs may 
include curriculum to support core academic 
instruction, elective digital citizenship, 
associated monthly service fees and 
replacement costs. 
       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

SED students 
need for 
instructional 
technology is 
ever-present: 
Chromebooks, 
hotspots, and 
fees are 
provided for 
students as 
necessary. 
These funds 
also include the 
replacement of 
damaged or 
outdated 
devices. 

Device replacements, 
fees 

$7,000.00 $569        

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 13 of 29 

Goal 2 
Goal Description 
The MCIA program will provide resources and services to ensure the social and emotional well-being of every student and staff to provide a safe environment 
conducive to learning.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

2.1 California School Dashboard: 
Chronic Absenteeism 
        

2023 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
All Students: 29.3% 
Low-Income: 28.6% 
Hispanic: 23.4% 
 
No other groups had 
data reported due to 
<11 students in a 
cohort. 
 

2024 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
All Students: 23.0% 
Low-Income: 24.6% 
Hispanic: 23.0% 
English Learners: 20% 
 
No other groups had 
data reported due to 
<11 students in a 
cohort. 
 

 Per 2025 CA School 
Dashboard: 
 
All Students: 34.9% 
Low-Income: 38.9% 
Hispanic: 35.1% 
 
 

2026 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
All Students: 15% 
Low-Income: 15% 
Hispanic: 15% 
English Learners: 15% 
 

2.2 Number of Annual School Events        2023-2024 Local Data: 
 
MCIA hosted 9 
Schoolwide events 
including STEM Days, 
Parent Teacher 
Conferences, and a 
Family Math Night. 
 

2024-2025 Local Data: 
 
MCIA hosted 5 
Schoolwide events 
including STEM Days, 
Parent Teacher 
Conferences, and a 
Family Open House 
during Spring 2025. 
 

 MCIA hosted Parent 
Teacher Conferences 
and a Trick-or-Treat at 
MCIA day during the 
2025 Fall semester. 

2026-2027 Local Data: 
 
MCIA will host at least 
two schoolwide events 
annually to invite 
parents and families to 
our school, at least 
one in the fall 
semester and one in 
the spring semester. 
 

2.3 Number Students Participating in 
Learning Opportunities Outside of 
the Classroom        

In 2023-24, MCIA 
students have 
participated in a Math 
Night, STEM Day, and 
15 field trips, including 
11 virtual field trips to 
places otherwise too 
far to explore. 

In 2024-25, 234 MCIA 
students have 
participated in STEM 
Club Days, and 4 field 
trips, including virtual 
field trips. 

 Approximately 36 
students participated 
in a field trip to the 
Sugar Pine Railroad 
and the Trick-or-Treat 
Event during the first 
semester. 

2026-2027 Local Data: 
 
100% of students will 
have the opportunity to 
participate in outside 
classroom learning 
and extended learning 
activities. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 14 of 29 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
2.4 School Climate Survey: 

Percentage of Students 
Responding they 
Feel Safe and Connected to 
School 
        

Students responding 
that they feel safe at 
school --97.4%. 
 
Students responding 
that they feel 
connected to school --
96.2%. 
 
[2024 Local Climate 
Surveys] 
 

Students responding 
that they feel safe at 
school -- 97.0%. 
 
Students responding 
that they feel 
connected to school -- 
94.7%. 
 
[2025 Local Climate 
Surveys] 
 

 TBD. The 2025-26 
LCAP Student Survey 
will be given in 
February 2026. 

2027 Local Climate 
Surveys: 
 
Students responding 
that they feel safe at 
school --98%. 
 
Students responding 
that they feel 
connected to school --
98%. 
 

2.5 California School Dashboard: 
Suspension Rate 
        

2023 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
0% student 
suspension rate 
 

2023 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
0% student 
suspension rate 
 

 Per 2025 CA School 
Dashboard: 
0% of students have 
been suspended. 
 
 

2026 California School 
Dashboard: 
 
MCIA students will 
maintain a 0% 
suspension rate for the 
school year. 
 

2.6 Attendance Rate        2023-2024 Local 
Calculation: 
 
94.3% MCIA student 
attendance for April 
2024 as reflected in 
PowerSchool. 
 

2024-25 Local 
Calculation: 
 
92.0 % MCIA student 
attendance for April 
2025 as reflected in 
PowerSchool. 
 

 2025-26 Local 
Calculation: 
 
94.2% MCIA student 
attendance through 
December 2025 as 
reflected in 
PowerSchool. 
 

2026-2027 Local Data: 
 
All MCIA students will 
maintain at least a 
90% seat time 
attendance rate for the 
school year. 
 

2.7 Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT)        The FIT report 
(October 2023) for 
MCIA showed facilities 
in good repair. 

MET: Results reported 
 
The FIT report for 
MCIA showed facilities 
in good repair. 
 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
Governing Board] 
 

 The FIT report 
(October 2025) for 
MCIA showed facilities 
in good repair. 

2026-2027 Local Data: 
 
The FIT report 
(October 2026) for 
MCIA will show 
facilities in good 
repair. 
 

2.8 Percentage of Students Access to 
Academic and Behavioral Health 
Counseling Services        

100% of students had 
access to academic or 
behavioral counseling 

100% of students had 
access to academic or 
behavioral counseling 

 7 student referrals to 
the School 
Psychologist. Suicide 
Prevention 

2026-2027 Local Data: 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 15 of 29 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
services by school 
counselor. 
 
3 student referrals 
were made this year to 
the school  
Psychologist. 
 

services by school 
counselor. 
 
8 student referrals 
were made this year to 
the school  
Psychologist. 
 

Professional Training 
for all staff held in 
September. 

100% of students 
needing academic, 
behavioral, or social-
emotional counseling 
will receive services 
on site. 
 

2.9 Transportation Provided for MCIA 
Students Who Qualify or Are in 
Need 
        

MAXX passes are 
currently free of 
charge for students 
being transported from 
designated stop to 
stop. In 2023-24, no 
students have required 
public transportation to 
attend school or 
school events. 

MAXX passes are 
currently free of 
charge for students 
being transported from 
designated stop to 
stop. In 2024-25, no 
students have required 
public transportation to 
attend school or 
school events. 

 MAXX passes are 
currently free of 
charge for students 
being transported from 
designated stop to 
stop. To date, 1 
student has required 
public transportation to 
attend school or 
school events. 

2026-2027 Local Data: 
 
100% of students 
needing transportation 
to school will be 
provided 
vouchers/tickets for 
local public 
transportation to 
school. 
 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

2.1 Maintain a Safe School Environment 
When students feel physically, cognitively, and 
emotionally safe at school, they are able to 
optimize their learning. Increase home to 
school communication through the use of 
"StopIt" app (safety reporting web-based 
application) and ParentSquare to allow for safe 
and orderly communication between the 
school and students or parents. 
 
Teachers will have frequently translated 
communication with parents to share victories, 
concerns, or invitations for parents to school 
events. 
       
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

MCIA staff uses 
complete 
translations on 
all 
programmatic 
documents 
shared with 
parents and 
guardians. 
MCIA staff also 
uses DTS for 
school 
accountability 
reports and 
plans that are 
translated as 
well. 

ParentSquare fees, 
MCIA school 
documents 

$3,000.00 $624        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 16 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 ParentSquare 
also has instant 
translations into 
17 languages. 
 
 

2.2 Maintain School Facilities 
The link between student learning and desire 
to be at school is a clean, well-maintained 
campus that fosters student learning. MCIA 
staff maintains quality learning facilities by 
ensuring good communication with 
maintenance and facilities staff. Work orders 
are submitted and attended to in a timely 
manner, while prioritizing any requests that 
may pose any safety concerns.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

MCIA is 
maintained daily 
by custodial 
staff and weekly 
by landscaping 
services. 
Maintenance 
concerns 
addressed 
throughout the 
year as needed. 

FIT Inspections 
October 2025, 
maintenance work-
order system, and 
maintenance personnel 

$118,000.00 $58,158        

2.3 Host Annual School Events 
At least two events held annually to support 
greater school connections. Administrators, 
academic counselors, teachers, and other staff 
plan to make preparations to provide engaging 
opportunities (Open House, Parent-Teacher 
Conferences and Family Appreciation Day) for 
all MCIA families.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

MCIA hosted 
Parent Teacher 
Conferences 
and a Trick-or-
Treat event 
during the fall 
2025 semester. 

Parent Square post, 
flyers, sign-in form. 

$1,000.00 $275        

2.4 Provide Home-School Student 
Transportation As Needed 
Bus tickets/vouchers will be provided to 
students/parents whose families have mobility 
issues or economic challenges to attend MCIA 
or MCIA events. School staff will provide 
vouchers to those requesting and document 
the amount given individually and collectively. 
 
Title I, Part A 
       
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

MAXX passes 
are currently 
free of charge 
for students 
being 
transported 
from designated 
stop to stop. To 
date, one 
student has 
requested 
public 

MCIA Instructional 
Assistant narrative 
feedback, parent 
outreach. 
 
 

$250.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 17 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
 
 

transportation or 
assistance to 
attend school or 
school events. 

2.5 Increase Student Attendance Rate 
Increase student attendance rates by 
celebrating and recognizing positive behavior 
through the use of incentives. Each teacher 
recognizes a student of the month on a 
monthly basis. Additionally, students with 
perfect attendance will be celebrated monthly 
with certificates and other school incentives.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

Addressing 
Chronic 
Absenteeism is 
highly important 
in ensuring 
students make 
academic 
progress and 
become 
academically 
proficient. 
Counselors and 
administrators 
conduct Tiered 
Reengagement 
meetings with 
families of 
students in 
danger of not 
completing the 
program due to 
poor 
attendance, 
performance, or 
both. 
Home to school 
communication 
is highly 
important in 
keeping families 
informed of 
progress. 
School/program 
information is 
translated to 
keep Spanish-
speaking 
families 
informed. As of 
January 28, 
2026, 38 

Student of the Month 
Certificates;  (supplies 
were on hand, no new 
purchases at this time). 

$1,000.00 $240        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 18 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

students were 
recognized for 
Perfect 
Attendance for 
the first quarter, 
and 6 students 
were 
recognized for 
Student of the 
Month. 
 
 

2.6 Provide Behavioral Health Intervention and 
Support Services 
To support improved student outcomes in 
academic performance and school 
engagement and close gaps on state and local 
measures, MCIA will create school 
environments that welcome and support all 
student populations. 
 
Provide staff resources to teach, model, and 
practice social-emotional learning skills that 
support a positive climate for learning and 
work. All teachers will incorporate digital 
citizenship lessons to teach and model 
appropriate, responsible use of technology. 
 
Professional development for teachers and 
instructional staff will address their own SEL 
needs and better equip them to evaluate and 
support the needs of students. All teachers will 
teach, model and support positive SEL 
behaviors. 
 
School counselors to provide lessons on a 
variety of topics that affect social-emotional 
learning and better prepare students to cope 
with challenges in academic achievement. 
 
School psychologist will provide referrals or 
direct services to identified students as 
needed. School psychologist will also provide 
professional development to staff for 
resources, services, procedures and best 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

A school 
psychologist 
provides mental 
health 
screenings and 
services to 
students, and 
has received a 
total of 7 
referrals for 
MCIA as of 
1/27/26. Also, a 
Students 
Services Liaison 
provides 
services to 
Foster Youth 
students 
throughout the 
county, and an 
Administrative 
Assistant 
provides clerical 
support to the 
Foster Youth 
Program for 
Madera County 
Superintendent 
of Schools. 

School psychologist 
contract 

$10,000.00 $4,911        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 19 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

practices for students needing SEL 
interventions. 
       
 
 
 
 

2.7 Maintain Suspension Rate 
Maintain zero suspensions by creating 
opportunities for students to increase 
connectedness to school. Regular 
communication with teachers, administrators, 
and families will help support students' needs. 
Behavioral concerns will be addressed and 
parents communicated in English and Spanish. 
Parent conferences support communication 
between home and school, as well as student 
report cards, progress reporting and regular 
home contacts.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

There has been 
two 
suspensions as 
of 
1/27/25.Parent 
communication 
is a cornerstone 
to the MCIA 
program as all 
staff and 
parents value 
home/school 
communication. 
Behavioral 
concerns are 
addressed 
quickly and 
communicated 
with families. 
Home/School 
communication 
is easily 
handled down 
to the individual 
family level. 
Also, MCIA 
uses a school 
reporting 
system for 
report cards and 
progress reports 
to inform 
parents of 
student 
progress. 
School 
information 
forms are 

ParentSquare, 
PowerSchool, report 
card, progress reports 

$0.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 20 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

translated to 
assist parents in 
being more 
informed about 
scholastic 
programs. Staff 
trained as 
needed for 
using tools. 
 
 

2.8 Expand Support Services for Homeless and 
Foster Youth 
Based upon the increased social-emotional 
needs of Homeless and Foster Youth who 
have suffered trauma due to food and/or 
shelter insecurities or family trauma; all Foster 
Youth and/or Homeless students will have the 
opportunity to receive increased academic and 
social-emotional services provided by 
academic interventions and service referrals 
from teachers, counseling, school 
psychologist, foster/homeless youth 
coordinator, and connections/referrals to 
Madera County Health services. 
 
Professional Development is provided to MCIA 
staff to better support students' social-
emotional needs. PD will be offered at least 
three times per year by mental health 
professionals, including the school 
psychologist.  Academic counselors and 
teachers will maintain communication to 
intervene with students who are falling behind 
academically and/or have attendance issues 
that may reflect other issues. 
 
Communication with English and Spanish 
speaking parents will be made by 
administration, academic counseling, teachers 
and other staff to ensure parents are aware of 
academic and attendance issues in a timely 
manner through phone calls, conferences, and 
ParentSquare. 
 

 
 

Hom
eles

s 
and 
Fost
er 

Yout
h 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Quarterly 
check-ins 
conducted by 
Foster Youth 
Services (FYS) 
and Educating 
Homeless 
Children and 
Youth (EHCY) 
program staff 
were 
implemented 
Fall 2025 for 
CAES foster 
and homeless 
students. 
Updates on 
grades, 
attendance, and 
behavior are 
obtained from 
teachers and 
instructional 
support staff. 
Academic, 
social-
emotional, and 
health referrals 
are made as 
needed. Phone 
calls to 
parents/guardia
ns are made to 
provide updates 

Madera County Foster 
Youth/Homeless Youth 
Advisory event flyers 

$18,033.00 $9,217        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 21 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Administration and academic counseling will 
plan to provide parent education nights to 
inform and give strategies parents to help 
intervene and support their students 
academics and attendance issues. 
 
Site Administration and academic counselor 
will maintain a priority list of students to 
monitor for intervention. 
       
 
 
 
 

on students as 
well as to 
ensure that 
student’s needs 
are being met. 
In addition, 
emergency 
support services 
are provided 
including 
housing, 
eyeglasses, 
clothing, 
toiletries and 
school supplies 
as needed. 
CAES foster 
and homeless 
students are 
prioritized for 
county-wide 
events including 
college field 
trips, monthly 
College & 
Career 
Awareness 
Workshops 
(middle school), 
and the annual 
R.I.S.E. Youth 
Conference 
(middle school). 
Outreach to 
students 
regarding these 
events is 
conducted via 
mail, Parent 
Square, and 
personal phone 
call. In addition, 
teachers are 
asked to speak 
with students 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 22 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

regarding these 
opportunities 
and encourage 
them to 
participate. 

2.9 Positive Student Recognition Program 
MCIA administration, academic counselors, 
teachers, and other staff will plan and conduct 
four student recognition assemblies throughout 
the year to build a connection to the school 
community, affect positive school culture, and 
outreach to parents. Students are recognized 
for academic progress, attendance, and 
citizenship awards, and parents are invited to 
attend the assemblies. 
 
Teachers recognize and nominate students. 
Support will contact students and parents, and 
students and parents are contacted using 
ParentSquare as well. 
       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Students have 
been 
recognized for 
Student of the 
Month for first 
quarter. 

Certificates, Photos, 
presentations for first 
quarter 
 
*NO expenses needed 
through December 
2025 
 

$1,000.00 $0        

2.10 Climate Survey Responses 
A Google link survey will be sent out annually 
on ParentSquare in both English and Spanish. 
To address how to increase the return rate 
percentages for each year, data will be 
disaggregated, led by the Program Director 
and CAES Leadership team. LCAP 
Educational partner input will be solicited 
through School Site Council (SSC) ELAC, and 
Parent Advisory Committee (PAC) meetings. 
Surveys will be administered through the 
ParentSquare portal and information from 
students and parents through teacher 
communication and parent- teacher 
conferences. Feedback and professional 
development in the areas of site and student 
safety will be administered by PTC leadership, 
MCSOS specialists, or outside agencies with 
expertise in school and student safety.       

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Partially 
Implemented 

As of January 
26, 2026 
Parents have 
been given 
LCAP surveys 
to complete. 
Students will be 
given LCAP 
surveys 
beginning 
February 2, 
2026. Both 
surveys contain 
questions 
directly tied to 
school climate 
and program 
efficacy. 

LCAP Survey 
responses, students 
and parents 

$0.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 23 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
 
 
 

2.11 External Learning Opportunities for 
Students 
As means of positively impacting chronic 
absenteeism, external learning opportunities 
such as field trips and guest presentations for 
students will be offered to increase 
connectedness to school. Teachers will plan 
field trips and invite guest presenters to 
enhance student learning and increase 
connectedness to school. Virtual field trips can 
also contribute to learning goals. Academic 
counselors to provide workshops on career 
exploration, SEL, and other relevant topics.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

MCIA students 
are being 
rewarded for 
various 
academic 
successes 
including perfect 
attendance and 
student of the 
month 
recognition with 
external 
learning field 
trips. As of 
January 27, 
2026, students 
who earned 
perfect 
attendance for 
the first quarter 
took a field trip 
to the Yosemite 
Mountain Sugar 
Pine Railroad. 
The second 
quarter perfect 
attendance field 
trip will take 
place on 
February 5, 
2026, to 
Monterey Bay 
Aquarium. 

Student participation 
on trips 

$10,000.00 $624        

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 24 of 29 

Goal 3 
Goal Description 
MCIA staff will have greater educational partner participation and input by developing and fostering meaningful parent and family relationships.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

3.1 Percentage of Parents Using 
ParentSquare to Communicate 
with the School        

In 2023-24, 98% of 
MCIA parents received 
phone notifications 
and 85% received text 
messages through 
ParentSquare. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

In 2024-25, 100% of 
MCIA parents received 
phone notifications 
and 89% received text 
messages through 
ParentSquare. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

 In 2025-26, 100% of 
MCIA parents received 
phone notifications 
and 76% received text 
messages through 
ParentSquare. 
 
 

In 2026-27, 100% of 
MCIA parents will 
receive phone 
notifications and 100% 
will receive text 
messages through 
ParentSquare. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.2 Percentage of Parents of English 
Learners Using ParentSquare to 
Communicate with the School        

In 2023-24, 100% of 
our parents of English 
Learners received 
phone notifications 
and text messages 
through ParentSquare. 
8% have elected to 
receive their 
communication in 
Spanish. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

In 2024-25, 100% of 
parents of English 
Learners received 
phone notifications 
and text messages 
through ParentSquare. 
10% have elected to 
receive their 
communication in 
Spanish. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

 In 2025-26, 100% of 
our parents of English 
Learners received 
phone notifications 
and text messages 
through ParentSquare. 
6% have elected to 
receive their 
communication in 
Spanish. 
 
 

In 2026-27, 100% of 
MCIA parents of 
English Learners will 
receive phone 
notifications and 100% 
will receive text 
messages through 
ParentSquare. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.3 Percentage of Teachers Making 
ParentSquare Log Entries 
        

100% of Teachers 
were provided access 
to PowerSchool to log 
entries in 2023-24. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

100% of Teachers 
were provided access 
to PowerSchool to log 
entries in 2024-25. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

 100% of Teachers 
were provided access 
to PowerSchool to log 
home communication 
entries in 2025-26. 

100% of Teachers will 
be provided 
access to 
PowerSchool to log 
entries in 2026-27. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.4 Increase Parent/Guardian 
Involvement and  Attendance at 
School Functions        

21 parents participated 
in 2023-24 Parent-
Teacher Conferences. 
 

26 parents participated 
in 2024-25 Parent-
Teacher Conferences. 
 

 53 Parents 
participated in Parent-
Teacher Conferences 
during Parent-Teacher 

The number of parents 
participating in school 
events will continue to 
increase annually. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 25 of 29 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
4 parents participated 
in 2023-24 STEM Day 
and Math Night. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

36 parents participated 
in Fall Safety Day and 
Spring Open House 
events. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

Conference Week held 
in October 2025. 

3.5 Develop Greater Community 
Outreach Opportunities        

In 2023-24, 36 parents 
completed the Spring 
School Climate 
surveys in digital form. 
 
2 parents participated 
in School Site Council 
(SSC) and/or English 
Learner Advisory 
Committee (ELAC) 
meetings. 
 

In 2024-25, 33 parents 
completed the Spring 
School Climate 
surveys in digital form. 
 
1 parents participated 
in School Site Council 
(SSC) and/or English 
Learner Advisory 
Committee (ELAC) 
meetings. 
 

 As of January 27, 
2026, 3 MCIA parent 
participates on the 
SSC and 11 English 
Learner parent 
participates on ELAC. 

Increase the number 
of parent 
and community 
responses from 
the prior year. 
 
Increase the number 
of parents 
attending School Site 
Council 
(SSC) and/or English 
Learner 
Advisory Committee 
(ELAC) 
meetings. 
 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

3.1 Promote School Communication 
ParentSquare, which allows for two-way 
communication between school and home, 
and phone calls for school events will be used 
to contact all families. All communication will 
be provided in English and Spanish so parents 
of English Learner students are kept equally 
informed of school news and events. 
 
Translations of announcements and 
documents through ParentSquare will also 
provide opportunities for parents to provide 
feedback through surveys distributed through 
ParentSquare. 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

School to home 
communication 
is documented 
in PowerSchool 
log entries or in 
ParentSquare 
posts or 
messages sent 
to multiple 
families or 
individually. 
These logs 
allow 
subsequent 

100% of staff maintain 
PowerSchool log 
entries and use 
ParentSquare for 
school-to-home 
communication. 

$0.00 $0        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 26 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
Documents developed through the use of 
Document Tracking Services (DTS) will 
enhance communication to families through 
organized, clearly-written and developed 
documents.  DTS also provides translation 
services for essential documents. 
       
 
 
 
 

conversations 
with families to 
be more 
effective and 
ensure 
educational 
partners are 
informed. 

3.2 Promote Participation of Families of 
English Learners 
Spanish is the primary language of most 
English Learner students enrolled in PTC.  We 
will increase participation of the parents of our 
English Learners through personal invitations 
via phone calls from administrators, academic 
counselors, or other support staff.  Parent 
consultation and feedback meetings for the 
purpose of reclassification will also provide 
opportunities for parents to provide feedback. 
ParentSquare translates communications to 
the language of English Learner students' 
parents. Administrator, academic counselor, 
instructional assistant and support staff are 
Spanish-speaking and facilitate clear and 
prompt communication.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Planned MCIA staff uses 
complete 
translations on 
all 
programmatic 
documents 
shared with 
parents and 
guardians. 
MCIA staff also 
uses DTS for 
school 
accountability 
reports and 
plans that are 
translated as 
well. 
ParentSquare 
also has instant 
translations into 
17 languages. 
 
 

DTS educational 
documents, 
ParentSquare, MCIA 
school documents. 
These expenses will be 
incurred during the 2nd 
semester. 

$2,402.00 $531        

3.3 Increase Parent/Guardian Involvement and 
Attendance in School Functions 
Very low rates of parent involvement at MCIA 
have been shown in rates of completion (nine) 
on 2024 LCAP surveys which were sent via 
ParentSquare. To increase parent 
involvement, MCIA will do the following: 

• Academic Counselors will use 
ParentSquare app/website to 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

ParentSquare 
has been made 
available to all 
MCIA parents 
with an 
excellent usage 
rate among 
parents. Flyers 
are used to 

ParentSquare, 
Surveys, flyers, 
conferences 

$1,000.00 $230        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 27 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

promote, deliver, and translate 
educational information. Targeted 
events designed for the MCIA EL 
community will be a priority, with 
15% of the student population being 
EL students. 

• Printed flyers in both English and 
Spanish will be distributed on site. 
An MCIA academic counselor will 
use the parent surveys and follow-
up contact to determine a course of 
at least 3 parent seminars and 
workshops throughout the year. 

• MCIA teachers will continue to hold 
annual parent-teacher conferences 
as a follow-up to the initial meetings 
at enrollment. These conferences 
will focus on i-Ready data growth, 
academic progress, attendance 
updates, and general academic 
planning. 

• Open house and Family appreciation 
days will be hosted; one event in 
the fall and one in the spring. 

• ParentSquare will also be used more 
prominently to survey all parents on 
a regular basis. 

• MCIA administration team will set 
parameters and the program 
director will disaggregate and 
disseminate the data. 

 
 
 
 
 

announce MCIA 
activities and 
upcoming 
events and 
digital field trip 
permission 
forms. Parent-
Teacher 
Conferences 
were held 
during the fall 
semester. LCAP 
Surveys 
gathering 
student, parent, 
and staff input 
on programs 
and suggestions 
for future 
programming 
have been 
provided to staff 
and parents.  
Student LCAP 
surveys are 
scheduled to be 
sent on 
February 2, 
2026. 
 
 

3.4 Develop Greater Community Outreach 
Opportunities 
MCIA will increase participation of EL and SED 
students' parents through personal invitations 
via phone calls by administrators, academic 
counselors, or other support staff. Parent 
consultation and feedback meetings for the 
purpose of EL reclassification will also provide 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

Contract in 
place and 
scheduled with 
Parent Institute 
for a Quality 
Education 
(PIQE) for 
parent 

Parents attended PIQE 
parent institute; EL 
Reclassification to 
RFEP doc. 

$17,000.00 $15,000        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 28 of 29 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

opportunities for parents to provide feedback. 
ParentSquare translates communications into 
the language of EL students' parents. 
 
MCIA will partner with a parent organization to 
empower parents to better assist their children 
academically. 
       
 
 
 
 

education 
sessions to 
increase 
student 
achievement. A 
series of six 
sessions for the 
Fall semester 
saw 8 families 
complete the 
program. The 
spring semester 
cohort will occur 
later in the 
spring 
semester. 
Parent feedback 
during 1 student 
EL 
reclassification 
to RFEP 
meeting. 
 

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 29 of 29 

 

Impact to the Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Item As adopted in Budget Overview for Parents Mid-Year Update 
Total LCFF Funds 870,505 893,548 

LCFF Supplemental/Concentration Grants 240,540 246,907 
 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 1 of 46 

Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 
2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

This template is intended for internal monitoring purposes only. The 2025-26 LCAP template and instructions should be consulted when completing required 
documents.  

(6) (A) The superintendent of the school district shall present a report on the annual update to the local control and accountability plan and the local control
funding formula budget overview for parents on or before February 28 of each year at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board of the school
district. (B) The report shall include both of the following: (i) All available midyear outcome data related to metrics identified in the current year’s local control
and accountability plan. (ii) All available midyear expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the current year’s local control and
accountability plan.

Internal Notes 

Internal Notes 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla    Mr. Hugo Sánchez    

Program Director-Career Alternative Education 
Services 

hsanchez@mcsos.org   
559-662-6211

5.2.2



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 2 of 46 

Goal 1 
Goal Description 
All Pioneer Technical Center students will stay on course to graduate college and career ready through state adopted standards-based instruction.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

1.1 Access to Standards-Aligned 
Materials and State Standards 
Implemented in All Classrooms 
 
Reported to the MCSOS 
Governing Board 
        

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
100% of students have 
access to standards 
aligned curriculum 
materials. 
State standards are 
implemented in all 
classrooms and 
reported to the Board 
 

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
100% of students have 
access to standards 
aligned curriculum 
materials. 
State standards are 
implemented in all 
classrooms and 
reported to the Board 
 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
Governing Board] 
 

 MET -- Results 
reported 
 
100% of students have 
access to standards 
aligned curriculum 
materials. 
State standards are 
implemented in all 
classrooms and 
reported to the Board 
 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
Governing Board] 
 

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
100% of students will 
have access to 
standards aligned 
curriculum materials. 
 
State standards will be 
implemented in all 
classrooms. 
 

1.2 Number of Special Education 
Students Receiving Academic 
Intervention and Supports.        

All students with an 
IEP receive 
interventions and 
supports identified on 
their IEPs, and all 
students receive 
Academic Acceleration 
support per iReady 
results. 

All students with an 
IEP receive 
interventions and 
supports identified on 
their IEPs, and all 
students receive 
Academic Acceleration 
support per iReady 
results. 

 All students with an 
IEP receive 
interventions and 
supports identified on 
their IEPs, and all 
students receive 
Academic Acceleration 
support per i-Ready 
results. 

All students with an 
IEP will receive 
identified interventions 
and supports, and all 
students will receive 
Academic Acceleration 
support based on 
iReady results. 

1.3 Percentage of teachers and staff 
attending professional 
development trainings.        

100% of teachers 
have been involved in 
weekly professional 
development with 
other CAES teachers 
in the areas of math, 
WASC Self-Study, 
SEL, McKinney-Vento 
training, and Suicide 
Prevention Training. 

During SY 2024-25, 
100% of teachers 
have 
been involved in 
weekly professional 
development with 
other CAES teachers 
in the 
areas of Math 
pedagogy and 
instructional practices, 
Multi-Tiered Systems 

 During SY 2025-26, 
100% of teachers 
have been involved in 
weekly professional 
development with 
other CAES teachers 
in the areas of Math 
pedagogy and 
instructional practices, 
Multi-Tiered Systems 
of Support (MTSS), 
Social-Emotional 

100% of teachers will 
participate in 
professional 
development trainings 
with CAES colleagues 
and implement the 
strategies. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 3 of 46 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
of Support (MTSS), 
Social-Emotional 
Learning and 
McKinney-Vento 
Training. 
 

Learning, Human 
Trafficking Prevention 
Training, and 
McKinney-Vento 
Training. 

1.4 Teachers Appropriately 
Credentialed with No Mis-
assignments or Vacancies 
 
(Ed Code now requires that we use 
CDE data from the most recent 
DataQuest to report teacher 
assignment data.) 
        

31.5% of teachers are 
appropriately 
credentialed in 2021-
22. 

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
29.9% of teachers are 
appropriately 
credentialed and 
assigned in 2022-23 
(DataQuest) 
 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
Governing Board] 
 

 MET -- Results 
reported 
 
28.7% of teachers are 
appropriately 
credentialed and 
assigned in 2023-24 
(DataQuest) 
 

100% of teachers will 
be appropriately 
credentialed in 2024-
25. 

1.5 Average Number of Credits Earned 
by Credit-Deficient Students        

As of the Fall 
semester, 2023, 60% 
of 113 Low-Income 
students earned more 
than 30 credits; 
satisfying the 
minimum credit 
recovery requirement 
for the semester. 
 

As of the Fall 
semester of 2024, 
37% of 151 Low-
Income students 
earned more than 30 
credits, satisfying the 
minimum credit 
recovery requirement 
for the semester. 

 As of the Fall 
semester of 2025, 
53% of 137 Low-
Income students 
earned more than 30 
credits, satisfying the 
minimum credit 
recovery requirement 
for the semester. 

100% of students 
earned more than 30 
credits; satisfying the 
minimum credit 
recovery requirement 
for the semester. 
 

1.6 California School Dashboard: 
Distance from Standard (DFS) As 
Measured by the SBAC 
        

ELA Distance from 
Standard: 
Overall -- 87.1 Points 
Below 
English Learners --
103.3 Points Below 
Low-income -- 86.3 
Points Below 
Hispanic -- 85.9 Points 
Below 
 
Math Distance from 
Standard: 
Overall -- 203.2 Points 
Below 

ELA Distance from 
Standard: 
Overall -- 70.2 Points 
Below 
English Learners --
88.5 Points Below 
Long-Term English 
Learners (LTEL) -- 
103.7 Points Below 
Low-income -- 70.8 
Points Below 
Hispanic -- 70.1 Points 
Below 
 

 ELA Distance from 
Standard: 
Overall -- 92.5 Points 
Below 
English Learners --NO 
DATA 
Long-Term English 
Learners (LTEL) -- NO 
DATA 
Low-income -- 91.6 
Points Below 
Hispanic -- 93.7 Points 
Below 
 

ELA Distance from 
Standard: 
Overall -- 60 Points 
Below 
English Learners --65 
Points Below 
Low-income -- 60 
Points Below 
Hispanic -- 60 Points 
Below 
 
Math Distance from 
Standard: 
Overall -- 160 Points 
Below 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 4 of 46 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
English Learners --
203.7 Points Below 
Low-income -- 204.6 
Points Below 
Hispanic -- 192.0 
Points Below 
 
[2023 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

Math Distance from 
Standard: 
Overall -- 202.3 Points 
Below 
English Learners --
210.3 Points Below 
LTEL -- 210.7 Points 
Below 
Low-income -- 203.7 
Points Below 
Hispanic -- 202.2 
Points Below 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

Math Distance from 
Standard: 
Overall -- 199.1 Points 
Below 
English Learners --NO 
DATA 
LTEL -- NO DATA 
Low-income -- 198.3 
Points Below 
Hispanic -- 203.6 
Points Below 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

English Learners --160 
Points Below 
Low-income -- 160 
Points Below 
Hispanic -- 150 Points 
Below 
 
[2026 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

1.7 Percentage of English Learner 
reclassifications.        

5.3% of students 
reclassified as RFEP. 

2% of students were 
reclassified as RFEP, 
and four other 
students had an 
ELPAC score "4", but 
did not meet local 
criteria for 
reclassification. 

 0% of students were 
reclassified as RFEP, 
and four other 
students had an 
ELPAC score "4", but 
did not meet local 
criteria for 
reclassification. 

10% of students 
reclassified as RFEP 

1.8 California School Dashboard: 
Rate of English Learner Students 
Making Progress toward English 
Proficiency (ELPI) 
        

52.9% of EL students 
making progress 
towards English 
proficiency. 
 
[2023 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

59.0% of EL students 
making progress 
towards English 
proficiency 
(Green/High 
performance level) 
 
LTEL: 61.0% 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

 40.4% of EL students 
making progress 
towards English 
proficiency 
(Green/High 
performance level) 
 
LTEL: 61.0% 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

60% of EL students 
making progress 
towards English 
proficiency. 
 
70% of LTEL students 
making progress 
towards English 
proficiency. 
 
[2026 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

1.9 Percentage of Low-Income and 
English Learner students showing 
growth on i-Ready assessments in 
ELA and Math.        

Percentage of Low-
Income and English 
Learner students 
showing growth on i-
Ready assessments in 
ELA and Math. 
 

Percentage of Low-
Income and English 
Learner students 
showing growth on i-
Ready assessments in 
ELA and Math. 
 

 Percentage of Low-
Income and English 
Learner students 
showing growth on i-
Ready assessments in 
ELA and Math. 
 

Low-income and 
English Learners will 
show growth toward 
grade-level proficiency 
as measured by i-
Ready in ELA and 
Math: 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 5 of 46 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
ELA Growth: 
EL Group - 12.2% 
SED Group - 23.6% 
 
Math Growth: 
EL Group - 12.5% 
SED Group - 29.2% 
 

ELA Growth: 
EL Group - 20% 
SED Group - 44% 
 
Math Growth: 
EL Group - 18% 
SED Group - 43% 
 

ELA Growth: 
EL Group - 20% 
SED Group - 18% 
 
Math Growth: 
EL Group - 35% 
SED Group - 41% 
 

 
ELA Growth: 
EL Group - 27.2% 
SED Group - 32.6% 
 
Math Growth: 
EL Group - 27.5% 
SED Group - 38.2% 
 

1.10 Percentage of students completing 
20 Credits in CTE/ROP Courses 
Before Graduation        

100% of students 
graduating in Fall of 
2023 completed at 
least 20 credits of 
CTE/ROP. 

100% of students 
graduating in Fall of 
2024 completed at 
least 20 credits of 
CTE/ROP. 

 100% of students 
graduating in Fall of 
2025 completed at 
least 20 credits of 
CTE/ROP. 

100% of students 
graduating in Fall of 
2026 will complete at 
least 20 credits of 
CTE/ROP. 

1.11 California School Dashboard: 
Graduation Rate 
        

Overall -- 41.9% 
English Learners -- 
29.7% 
Low-income -- 40.9% 
Hispanic -- 38.7% 
 
[2023 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

Overall -- 53.5% 
English Learners -- 
44.2% 
LTEL -- 42.5% 
Low-income -- 53.1% 
Hispanic -- 52.6% 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

 Overall -- 76.7% 
English Learners -- 
75.8% 
LTEL -- 75.8% 
Low-income -- 76.7% 
Hispanic -- 76.1% 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

Overall -- 70% 
English Learners -- 
70% 
Low-income -- 70% 
Hispanic -- 70% 
 
[2026 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

1.12 11th Grade Academic Proficiency 
on SBAC ELA, Math, and Science 
Assessments for 
Low-Income and English Learner 
Students 
        

ELA 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 16.5% 
English Learners --
9.0% 
Low-income -- 16.1% 
 
Math 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 0% 
English Learners --0% 
Low-income -- 0% 
 
Science 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 11.1% 
English Learners -- n/d 

ELA 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 15.9% 
English Learners -- 0% 
Low-income -- 16.7% 
 
Math 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 0% 
English Learners --0% 
Low-income -- 0% 
 
Science 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 5.1% 
English Learners -- n/d 
Low-income -- 5.4% 

 ELA 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 14.08% 
English Learners -- 0% 
Low-income -- 13.64% 
 
Math 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 0% 
English Learners --0% 
Low-income -- 0% 
 
Science 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 5.0% 
English Learners -- 0% 
Low-income -- 5.26% 

ELA 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 35% 
English Learners --
30% 
Low-income -- 35% 
 
Math 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 20% 
English Learners --
20% 
Low-income -- 20% 
 
Science 
Meeting/Exceeding 
Standard: 
Overall -- 25% 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 6 of 46 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
Low-income -- 13.0% 
 

 
[2024 SBAC] 
 

 
[2025 SBAC] 
 

English Learners -- 
25% 
Low-income -- 25% 
 

1.13 Percentage of students 
who have access to 
Instructional technology 
        

100% of students have 
access to 1:1.  
Currently 213 
Chromebooks 
checked out and 65 
Wi-Fi Hotspots. 

100% of students have 
access to 1:1.  
Currently, 213 
Chromebooks 
checked out and 65 
Wi-Fi Hotspots. 

 100% of students have 
access to 1:1.  
Currently, 265 
Chromebooks 
checked out and 100 
Wi-Fi Hotspots. 

100% of students will 
have access to 1:1. 

1.14 Percentage of students 
who have access and 
receive a broad course of study. 
        

100% of PTC students 
had access to a broad 
course of study 
including Edgenuity 
online curriculum. 

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
100% of PTC students 
had access to a broad 
course of study 
including Edgenuity 
online curriculum. 
 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
the Board] 
 

 MET -- Results 
reported 
 
100% of PTC students 
had access to a broad 
course of study 
including Edgenuity 
online curriculum. 
 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
the Board] 
 

100% of PTC students 
had access to a broad 
course of study 
including Edgenuity 
online curriculum. 

1.15 Early Assessment 
Program (EAP): 
% PUPILS SCORING 
“Standard Met or 
Exceeded” on SBAC ELA and 
Math Assessments 
        

ELA: Overall: 1.27% 
SED: 1.49% 
EL: 0% 
Hispanic: 1.61% 
 
Math: Overall: 0% 
SED: 0% 
EL: 0% 
Hispanic: 0% 
 
[2023 SBAC Data] 
 

ELA: Overall: 1.22% 
SED: 1.28% 
EL: 0% 
Hispanic: 1.45% 
 
Math: Overall: 0% 
SED: 0% 
EL: 0% 
Hispanic: 0% 
 
[2024 SBAC Data] 
 

 ELA: Overall: 0% 
SED: 0% 
EL: 0% 
Hispanic: 1.45% 
 
Math: Overall: 0% 
SED: 0% 
EL: 0% 
Hispanic: 0% 
 
[2025 SBAC Data] 
 

ELA: Overall: 6% 
SED: 6% 
EL: 6% 
Hispanic: 6% 
 
Math: Overall: 5% 
SED: 5% 
EL: 5% 
Hispanic: 5% 
 
[2026 SBAC Data] 
 

1.16 California School Dashboard: 
College and Career Indicator 
(Percentage of Students 
"Prepared")        

Overall: 2% 
SED: 2% 
EL: 0% 
Hispanic: 2.5% 
 
[2023 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

Overall: 0% 
SED: 0% 
EL: 0% 
Hispanic: 0% 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

 Overall: 1.5% 
SED: 1.5% 
EL: 0% 
Hispanic: 2% 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

Overall: 10% 
SED: 10% 
EL: 10% 
Hispanic: 10% 
 
[2026 California 
School Dashboard] 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 7 of 46 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

1.1 Provide Standards-Aligned Curriculum to 
All Students 
 
Improve Low-Income Students' 
Achievement in Math and ELA 
 
The Pioneer Technical Center (PTC) will 
provide all students with rigorous and 
engaging adopted instructional curricula that 
have been state and/or locally approved to 
support the implementation of California State 
Standards. 
 
Although the number of students completing 
the SBAC is too small to generate data for the 
California School Dashboard, an examination 
of student data indicates that most Low-
Income students have not demonstrated 
meeting or exceeding standard on SBAC 
assessments in ELA or Math. MCIA will 
provide Low-Income students with high-quality, 
standards aligned instructional support 
materials in ELA, Math, ELD, Social Science, 
and Science. 
 
Materials will include textbooks, math 
curriculum, StudySync (books and software) 
and other online software/curriculum. The 
increased rigor will support academic progress 
toward proficiency with an emphasis on ELA 
and Math. 
 
An examination of student data indicates that 
0% of Low-Income students have 
demonstrated meeting or exceeding standard 
on SBAC assessments in ELA or Math. 
Pioneer Technical Center will provide Low-
Income students with high-quality, standards 
aligned instructional support materials in ELA, 
Math, ELD, Social Science, and Science. 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Materials and 
supplies are 
purchased to 
support every 
academic 
acceleration 
student. 
 

Instructional materials 
including software 
licenses for students 

$12,000.00 $0        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 8 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Materials will include textbooks, StudySync 
(books and software) and other online 
software/curriculum. The increased rigor will 
support academic progress toward proficiency 
with an emphasis on ELA and Math. 
       
 
 
 
 

1.2 Support Students with IEPs 
Since students are enrolled at Pioneer 
Technical Center on an ongoing basis, all 
teachers receive an updated roster of students 
on IEPs, which allows teachers to make 
appropriate instructional accommodations for 
all students. To assist students with learning, 
an RSP teacher meets with all students on 
IEPs either individually or in small groups. 
Direct support for students is provided 
primarily with scheduled time with the RSP 
teacher and Instructional .  Regular 
communication between independent study 
teachers and the RSP teacher ensures 
identified students are receiving appropriate 
support.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

RSP Teacher 
provides 
instructional 
support to  
students on 
IEPs throughout 
the year.  The 
students are 
scheduled to 
designated 
times 
throughout the 
week, which 
allows for 
consistency and 
ongoing 
support.  The 
RSP teacher 
and 
Instructional 
Assistant are 
accommodating 
to meet the 
students needs 
when 
unforeseen 
circumstances 
impact 
scheduled RSP 
support times. 
 

Teacher/student 
weekly schedules and 
appointments, daily 
rosters of students on 
IEPs 

$77,952.00 $26,532        

1.3 Instructional Staff Professional 
Development Program 

 
X 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

Professional 
development for 
instructional 

Professional 
development calendar, 

$4,500.00 $995        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 9 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Weekly professional development for PTC staff 
is designed to meet the academic, social, and 
emotional needs of students to maximize 
academic achievement. Professional 
development is designed for teachers, 
administrators, counselors, and other support 
staff. Topics include (but not limited to): 

• Social emotional learning 
• Identifying and implementing best 

instructional practices principally 
directed at meeting the needs of 
English Learners 

• Meeting the needs of Homeless 
students and Foster Youth 

• Multi-Tiered Support System 
(MTSS) 

• Academic Achievement 
 
Teachers are encouraged to seek professional 
development opportunities or conferences 
provided by other educational organizations, 
aside from those provided by MCSOS, cited 
Goal 1 Action 5. 
 
 
 
 
 

staff is designed 
to meet the 
academic, 
social, and 
emotional 
needs of 
students to 
maximize 
academic 
achievement. 
Professional 
development 
will also focus 
on 
identifying and 
implementing 
best 
instructional 
practices 
principally 
directed at 
meeting the 
needs of 
English 
Learners. 
Professional 
development is 
designed for 
teachers, 
administrators, 
counselors, and 
other support 
staff. Teachers 
are encouraged 
to seek 
professional 
development 
opportunities or 
conferences 
provided by 
other 
educational 
organizations, 
aside from 

materials purchased for 
training 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 10 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

those provide 
by MCSOS. 
 

1.4 Low-Income Students to Make Academic 
Progress in Math 
Based on annually low SBAC  and i-Ready 
Math scores for Low-Income students and 
English Learners, described in the 
"Reflections" section, PTC will contract with 
Fresno County Superintendent of Schools to 
provide focused, professional development in 
Math for all teachers and support staff for 
increasing capacity to teach math effectively. 
Based on PTC staff survey of PD needs, 50% 
of staff requested mathematics instructional 
support and 50% requested mathematics 
pedagogical support. Training will be 
pedagogical to improve instruction and 
teachers will develop a mathematical mindset 
and understand the foundational math 
requirements to prepare students to be 
successful for the next grade level. 
 
This professional development will improve 
teachers' instructional practices and close the 
achievement gap for Low-Income students in 
mathematics. This action has resulted in 
increases in achievement (Distance from 
standard) on state and local assessments 
since its inception. 
       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

All teachers 
receive 
instructional 
support from a 
Math expert 
from Fresno 
County 
Superintendent 
of Schools by 
way of monthly 
training in a 
whole group 
setting. 
Furthermore, 
one 
IS/Academic 
Acceleration 
teacher 
attended a math 
conference in 
December 2025 
to improve 
instructional 
practices in 
mathematics. 
 

Professional 
development calendar, 
shared resources 
 

$7,000.00 $0        

1.5 Retain Highly Effective Teachers Through 
Individualized Professional Development 
To positively affect academic achievement of 
Low-Income students in ELA, math, and 
English language proficiency, PTC staff will 
provide high quality professional development 
to increase teacher and staff effectiveness. 
Building teacher capacity in this manner will 
increase staff retention and contribute to a 

 
 

Low
-

Inco
me 

 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Pioneer 
Technical 
Center staff 
participate in a 
weekly 
ongoing 
professional 
development 
program 

Conference fees and 
professional 
development materials 
 

$8,862.00 $3,249        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 11 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

positive working environment. Teachers are 
encouraged to seek professional growth 
opportunities or conferences from other 
educational organizations to improve their 
instructional practices and increase student 
achievement in the areas of ELA, designated 
English language development and math.  
Individualized professional growth that meets 
the needs of the teacher will be emphasized. 
 
Title II 
       
 
 
 
 

designed to 
improve student 
achievement 
and teacher/IA 
efficacy. 
Teachers have 
participated in 
training related 
to the WASC 
Self Study, 
Foster 
Youth/Homeles
s, Project 
Protect, Suicide 
Awareness and 
Prevention, and 
LCAP training. 
Teachers are 
encouraged to 
seek relevant 
professional 
development 
offered by other 
educational 
agencies as 
well. 
 

1.6 Provide Instructional Support and 
Instructional Materials to Increase Student 
Achievement in ELA and Math 
To increase student performance in ELA and 
Mathematics, PTC staff will provide 
supplemental instructional support and be 
provided supplemental instructional materials 
to support students' academic growth as 
measured by SBAC ELA and Mathematics 
assessments. Results will be analyzed by 
administrators, teachers, and academic 
counselors to improve instruction and close 
achievement gaps. Replacement of books in 
the school book repository will be needed for 
all students to have access to the necessary 
subjects for credit recovery and advancement. 
Access to texts and instructional materials will 
improve academic performance.       

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Instructional 
staff members 
provide services 
to students. 
Additional staff 
members 
provide 
administrative 
support, 
secretarial 
support, and 
administration 
of the overall 
program. 
Additionally, 
supplies and 
instructional 
materials 

Staff members, 
supplies, instructional 
materials 
 

$1,037,500.00 $491,168        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 12 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
 
 
 

purchased to 
support the 
mission of the 
school. 
 

1.7 Maintain Low Student-to-Teacher Ratio 
Charter guidelines require student to teacher 
ratio to remain below ratio of the largest district 
in Madera County, which is currently 30:1. 
Low-Income Students, English Learners, and 
Foster Youth learn and perform at the highest 
levels when class sizes are lower, so PTC will 
reduce the teacher caseloads below the 30:1 
ratio, allowing more time spent with students 
and providing a more accurate benchmark to 
measure student success.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

Since the 
student 
population is 
almost 95% 
SED, 30% 
English 
Learners, and 
most are credit 
deficient, PTC 
provides 
increased 
academic 
support to 
students.  
Additionally, 
students not 
achieving at 
grade-level in 
reading and 
mathematics 
are provided 
classes to 
address subskill 
areas of growth. 

Student enrollment to 
teacher ratio 

$1,284,717.00 $427,113        

1.8 English Learner Support 
PTC will provide English Language 
Development (ELD) instruction in order to 
support students’ language acquisition and 
increased access to core curriculum. PTC also 
provides professional development to support 
teachers in their ELD instruction. PTC will 
provide English Language Development (ELD) 
supplemental materials and additional support 
to English Learners who experience academic 
difficulties. 
 
To support English Learner students in 
achieving English Language reclassification, 
PTC will use i- Ready English Language 

 
 

Engl
ish 

Lear
ners 

 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

MCSOS 
ELA/ELD 
Program 
Director 
provides a 
Bilingual 
Network 
program for all 
CAES ELD 
teachers for 
discussing 
latest 
instructional 
practices, 

Monthly Bilingual 
Network Meetings, 
weekly teacher 
observations, and 
coaching feedback 
meetings 
 

$20,293.00 $9,953        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 13 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Proficiency Assessments as the local 
assessments to meet reclassification criteria.  
The Program Director (bilingual coordinator), 
along with the academic counselor will review 
assessment results and consult with teacher.  
The MCSOS ELA/ELD Program Director will 
continue to work with teachers to incorporate 
research- based instructional strategies to 
academically support EL students. The 
strategies will be implemented in individual or 
small group settings. 
 
Title I, Part A 
       
 
 
 
 

ELPAC testing 
procedures and 
requirements, 
student 
outcome data, 
as well as 
provides 
teacher 
observation and 
relevant teacher 
feedback of 
instructional 
practice 
success. 
 

1.9 Provide Intervention and Instructional 
Support for Struggling Learners 
Students identified as needing additional 
academic support beyond the parameters of 
the independent study appointment will be 
provided additional support from an 
Instructional Assistant at Pioneer Technical 
Center, Chowchilla.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

An Instructional 
Assistant 
provides 
intensive 
support for all 
students 
performing 
below grade 
level in Reading 
and/or Math. 
Students are 
assigned 
prescriptive 
lessons by 
i-Ready to 
address subskill 
weaknesses. 
 

Instructional Assistant 
provides direct 
assistance to students 
daily for students 
requiring support in 
reading/math 
 

$99,847.00 $24,388        

1.10 i-Ready Assessments for Grade Level 
Proficiency 
i-Ready assessments will be used to show 
academic growth and measure grade-level 
proficiency in ELA and Math. Teachers will use 
formative i- Ready assessments and 
prescriptive lessons to help students become 
more academically proficient. Teachers will 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

i-Ready 
assessments 
have been 
administered 
twice to 
students behind 
grade-level in 
reading or math 

Instructional Assistants 
provides direct support 
to students daily for 
students, i-Ready 
results 

$63,190.00 $30,002        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 14 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

assign i-Ready lessons as part of the required 
classwork to support learning and increase 
academic proficiency.  One Instructional 
Assistant (IA) will assist students performing 
below grade level in reading and mathematics 
during Academic Acceleration classes.   The 
IA will provide individual or small group support 
to students in the class.  Classroom supplies 
and materials will be provided to students in 
the Acceleration Class to increase academic 
proficiency in ELA and Math. 
 
Title I, Part A 
       
 
 
 
 

during the 2025-
26 
academic year 
and 16% of 
assessed 
students have 
shown growth in 
Reading over 
this time last 
year. Students 
have shown 
growth 39% in 
Math during the 
same time 
frame. 
 

1.11 Increase Students Completing CTE 
Courses 
94.7% of PTC students are identified as Socio-
Economically Disadvantaged (SED), and 1.5% 
of those students have met the College and 
Career Readiness indicator on the 2025 CA 
Dashboard. Expanding CTE pathways through 
the usage of in-person and on-line learning will 
ensure that Low-Income students, English 
Learners, and Foster Youth are given the 
opportunity to fulfill CTE/ROP graduation 
requirements. To address this need, students 
will be required to successfully complete 20 
credits in CTE/ROP courses before 
graduation.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

CTE teachers 
provide weekly 
instruction to 
student, and 
place them in 
setting to apply 
what is 
taught/learned 
in classes.  The 
expectation at 
the end of each 
course is for 
every 
student to be 
able to apply 
skills and 
theories learned 
in the class and 
develop career-
ready skills. 
Students 
enrolled in the 
CTR/ROP 
increase their 
required time on 
campus which 
also contributes 

CTE credits earned for 
in-person instruction 
and Edgenuity online 
courses 

$303,552.00 $126,038        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 15 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

to school 
connectedness. 
 

1.12 Increase Student Support Toward 
Completing CTE Courses 
94.7% of PTC students are identified as Socio-
Economically Disadvantaged (SED), and 1.5% 
of those students have met the College and 
Career Readiness indicator on the 2025 CA 
Dashboard. Expanding CTE pathways through 
the usage of in-person and on-line learning will 
ensure that Low-Income students, English 
Learners, and Foster Youth are given the 
opportunity to fulfill CTE/ROP graduation 
requirements. To address this need, students 
will be required to successfully complete 20 
credits in CTE/ROP courses before 
graduation. To support SED students in 
CTE/ROP, an Instructional Assistant (I/A) will 
provide support during learning opportunities 
for Low-Income students, English Learners, 
and Foster Youth students       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

AN Instructional 
Assistant 
provides direct 
academic 
support to 
students in the 
CTE classes to 
support their 
applying theory 
to practice.  The 
high percentage 
of students who 
are behind 
grade-level in 
reading requires 
additional 
academic 
support to 
ensure they can 
develop career-
ready skills. 

Instructional Assistant 
provides direct support 
to students daily for 
students and facilitates 
regular communication 
with parents or 
guardians 

$57,694.00 $24,195        

1.13 Increase Reading Proficiency 
PTC will purchase the Accelerated Reader 
program to encourage recreational reading to 
build reading proficiency.  Materials will include 
textbooks, Accelerated Reader (books and 
software), and online software/curriculum.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

The high 
percentage of 
PTC students 
has resulted in 
many of them 
not having 
developed a 
"love" for 
reading.  The 
Accelerated 
Reader program 
allows students 
to find books 
that they can 
connect to with 
topics that are 
of interest.  
Furthermore, 

Accelerated Reader 
books and materials 

$10,000.00 $3,243        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 16 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

the books are at 
various grade 
levels, which 
allows students 
to find books 
and their 
reading levels 
and increase 
their language 
proficiency. 

1.14 Academic and Social Emotional Counseling 
for At-Promise Students 
The School Counselor will grade-level 
reclassify all qualifying students based on 
credits earned, as opposed to traditional 
freshman, sophomore, junior, and senior years 
in high school. In addition, school counselors 
screen students for Assembly Bills (ABs) or 
other appropriate ABs to determine 
qualification for modified graduation 
requirements. Upon satisfying requirements for 
any of the programs, appropriate courses will 
be assigned, as graduation requirements may 
change. The School Counselor will inform the 
Counseling Specialist and teachers to ensure 
records are updated and students are enrolled 
in appropriate classes. 
 
The counselor will also work with students on 
supporting social-emotional development 
through teaching, modeling, and practicing 
social-emotional skills that support a safe and 
positive climate for learning. 
 
Title I, Part A 
       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

School 
Counselor 
works with 
students on 
supporting SEL 
needs through 
teaching, 
modeling, and 
practicing 
social-emotional 
skills that 
support a safe 
and positive 
climate for 
learning. Daily 
Seity SEL 
check-ins are 
completed by 
students to 
allow students 
to express how 
they are feeing 
emotionally.  
Teacher and 
other staff make 
referrals for 
counselors to 
provide 
appropriate 
support to 
students in 
need.  Credits 
are assigned 
and academic 
records with 

Staff, counseling 
support and student 
counseling, student 
information system 
support, state 
assessments support 
 

$228,967.00 $115,129        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 17 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

district of 
residence are 
updated soon to 
minimize loss of 
credits and 
progress toward 
graduation. 
 

1.15 Provide Credit Recovery Options for Low-
Income Students 
A significant percentage of students enrolling 
in PTC are credit deficient. To help these 
students recover credits needed to fulfill 
graduation requirement, CAES school 
counselors will register students in appropriate 
in-person and online courses. Students 
requiring credit recovery opportunities can be 
enrolled in Edgenuity online learning courses. 
This will require school counselors to update 
credit evaluations after each grading period, 
along with academic planning sessions with 
students to develop a comprehensive 
graduation plan. Professional development 
time of up to 3 hours can be provided for 
teachers needing support accessing and using 
the Edgenuity platform. 
 
Title I, Part A 
       
 
 
 
 

 
 

SED 
Stud
ents 

 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

PTC students 
access 
Edgenuity 
platform as 
needed to earn 
high school 
credits toward 
graduation 
including CTE 
and increased 
elective course 
offerings. 
 

Number of students 
enrolled in Edgenuity 
courses, academic 
credits earned in 
Edgenuity 
 

$47,000.00 $30,600        

1.16 Access to a Broad Course of Study for 
Low-Income Students 
PTC is committed to making certain all 
students have equitable access to a broad, 
high-quality course of study, participating in a 
full curriculum that includes science, social 
studies, and the arts. 
 
Software and technology will be provided to 
allow the broadest possible access to these 
curricular areas. Based on Educational Partner 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Materials and 
supplies are 
purchased to 
support the 
academic needs 
of every 
student through 
the use of 
textbooks and 
online courses 
to meet high 

Device replacements, 
fees for course 
licenses 
 

$13,000.00 $1,486        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 18 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

input, less than half of all parents of Low-
Income students stated their child(ren) have 
access to technology (Chromebook and WIFI 
hotspot). To address this need, PTC will 
provide these devices, issued on an annual 
basis to families and returned at the end of the 
year. Student learning is enhanced using 
Chromebook technology by the following: full 
access to curricula, digital citizenship, and 
frequency in using all formative and summative 
online assessments. Additional needs may 
include curriculum to support core academic 
instruction, elective digital citizenship, 
associated monthly service fees and 
replacement costs. 
       
 
 
 
 

school 
graduation 
requirements. 
This includes 
Chromebook 
replacements 
as needed for 
coursework 
completion. 
 

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 19 of 46 

Goal 2 
Goal Description 
PTC will provide resources and services to ensure the social and emotional wellbeing of students and staff, while providing a safe learning environment and 
learning opportunities.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

2.1 California School Dashboard: 
Chronic Absenteeism (Grades K-8) 
        

All Students -- 14.3% 
Low-Income -- 14.3% 
 
No other groups 
reported due to 
numbers <11. 
 
[2023 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

All Students -- 0% 
Low-Income -- 0% 
Hispanic -- 0% 
 
No other groups 
reported due to 
numbers <11. 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

 All Students -- 5.9% 
No other groups 
reported due to 
numbers <11. 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

All Students -- 5% 
Low-Income -- 5% 
 
[2026 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

2.2 Number of Student Recognition 
Assemblies Conducted Throughout 
the Year        

Students recognized 
at Quarter and 
Semester for 
Academic 
Achievement, PTC 
PRIDE, and Good 
Attendance. 
 
Five ceremonies 
conducted in 2023-24. 
 

Students recognized 
at Quarter and 
Semester for 
Academic 
Achievement, PTC 
PRIDE, Good 
Attendance, 
participation in CTE 
events and Student 
Leadership. 
 
Six recognition events 
conducted in 2024-25. 
 

 Students recognized 
at Quarter and 
Semester for 
Academic 
Achievement, PTC 
PRIDE, Good 
Attendance, 
participation in CTE 
events and Student 
Leadership. 
 
3 recognition events 
conducted in fall 
semester 2025-26. 
 

PTC will maintain or 
increase the number 
of student recognition 
ceremonies conducted 
in the 2026-27 school 
year. 

2.3 Number of Students Participating 
in Learning Opportunities Outside 
of the Classroom        

In 2023-24: 
Two team 
competitions in 
athletics (eight 
students) 
Two CTE trips to 
MCIA for student 
support during school 
functions 

In 2024-25: 
Two team 
competitions in 
athletics (nine 
students) 
Six CTE trips to MCIA 
for student support 
during school 
functions and other 

 In 2025-26: 
One team 
competitions in 
athletics (three 
students) 
Three CTE trips for 
community classroom 
learning opportunities 
and hands-on events 

Increase number of 
students participating 
in external learning 
opportunities from the 
prior year. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 20 of 46 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
One community 
service trip to Madera 
Food Bank (5 
students) 
 

community classroom 
learning opportunities 
provided opportunities 
for 22 students 
31 on-site and off-site 
Enrichment 
opportunities attended 
by 200 students total 
(duplicate students) 
 

provided opportunities 
for 18 students 
12 on-site and off-site 
Enrichment 
opportunities attended 
by 191 students total 
(duplicate students) 
 

2.4 School Climate Survey: 
Percentage of Students 
Responding they 
Feel Safe and Connected to 
School 
        

Students responding 
that they feel safe at 
school --97.4%. 
 
Students responding 
that they feel 
connected to school --
96.2%. 
 
[2024 Local Climate 
Surveys] 
 

Students responding 
that they feel safe at 
school --94.9%. 
 
Students responding 
that they feel 
connected to school --
90.8%. 
 
[2025 Local Climate 
Surveys] 
 

 Students responding 
that they feel safe at 
school --94.9%. 
 
Students responding 
that they feel 
connected to school --
90.8%. 
 
[2025 Local Climate 
Surveys] 
 

Students responding 
that they feel safe at 
school --98%. 
 
Students responding 
that they feel 
connected to school --
98%. 
 
[2027 Local Climate 
Surveys] 
 

2.5 California School Dashboard: 
Suspension Rate 
        

0% 
 
[2023 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

0%, assigned the Blue 
performance level. 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

 0%, assigned the Blue 
performance level. 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

0% 
 
[2026 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

2.6 Attendance Rate        93% as of 4/29/24. 
 
[Local Calculation] 
 

93% as of 4/11/25. 
 
[Local Calculation] 
 

 93.4% as of 12/19/25. 
 
[Local Calculation] 
 

100% 
 
[Local Calculation] 
 

2.7 Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT)        The FIT report for PTC 
(October 2023) 
showed facilities in 
good repair. 

MET-- Results 
reported 
 
The FIT report for PTC 
showed facilities in 
good repair. 
 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
the Board] 

 MET-- Results 
reported 
 
The FIT report for PTC 
showed facilities in 
good repair. 
 
[June, 2026, Local 
Indicators Report to 
the Board] 

The FIT report for PTC 
(October 2026) will. 
show facilities in good 
repair. 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 21 of 46 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
  

2.8 High School Dropout Rate        All Students -- 32.3% 
Low-Income -- 32.7% 
English Learners -- 
37.5% 
Hispanic -- 31.3% 
White -- 33.3% 
 
No other groups 
reported due to 
numbers <11. 
 
[2022-23 DataQuest 
Four-Year Adjusted 
Cohort Outcomes] 
 

All Students -- 22.9% 
Low-Income -- 23.2% 
English Learners -- 
20.0% 
Hispanic -- 21.0% 
White -- 36.4% 
 
No other groups 
reported due to 
numbers <11. 
 
[2023-24 DataQuest 
Four-Year Adjusted 
Cohort Outcomes] 
 

 All Students -- 9.2% 
Low-Income -- 9.2% 
English Learners -- 
15.0% 
Hispanic -- 9.8% 
White -- 8.3% 
 
No other groups 
reported due to 
numbers <11. 
 
[2024-25 DataQuest 
Four-Year Adjusted 
Cohort Outcomes] 
 

All Students -- 6.5% 
Low-Income -- 6.5% 
English Learners -- 
6.5% 
Hispanic -- 6.5% 
White -- 6.5% 
 
Target based on 2022-
23 Statewide data. 
 
[2025-26 DataQuest 
Four-Year Adjusted 
Cohort Outcomes] 
 

2.9 Expulsion Rate        0% 
 
[2022-23 DataQuest 
Expulsion Rate] 
 

0% 
 
[2023-24 DataQuest 
Expulsion Rate] 
 

 0% 
 
[2024-25 DataQuest 
Expulsion Rate] 
 

0% 
 
[2025-26 DataQuest 
Expulsion Rate] 
 

2.10 Number of Times Needed Home-
School Transportation Is Provided 
for Low-Income Students        

MAXX passes are 
currently free of 
charge for students 
being transported from 
designated stop to 
stop.  14 students 
have used this method 
of transportation 
during the 2023-24 
school year. 
 
MUSD bus 
transportation to PTC 
has not resumed. 
 

MAXX passes are 
currently free of 
charge for students 
being transported from 
home to school.  9 
students have used 
this method of 
transportation during 
the 2024-25 school 
year. 

 MAXX passes are 
currently free of 
charge for students 
being transported from 
home to school.  5 
students have used 
this method of 
transportation during 
the 2025-26 school 
year. 

All students or families 
in need will be 
provided 
transportation or 
vouchers/tickets for 
local public 
transportation. 

2.11 Number of Parenting Teens, 
Foster Youth and/or Homeless 
Students Receiving Academic and 
Social-Emotional Services        

In 2023-24, there were 
32 student referrals to 
the School 
Psychologist, with 
some students 
receiving referrals for 
further social-

In 2024-25, there were 
13 student referrals to 
the School 
Psychologist, with 
some students 
receiving referrals for 
further social-

 In 2025-26, there have 
been 12 student 
referrals to the School 
Psychologist, with 
some students 
receiving referrals for 
further social-

Maintain access for all 
parenting, foster 
youth, and/or 
homeless students 
accessing and 
receiving intervention 
and support services. 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 22 of 46 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
emotional support 
from outside mental 
health agencies. 

emotional support 
from outside mental 
health agencies. 

emotional support 
from outside mental 
health agencies. 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

2.1 Maintain a Safe Campus 
PTC will continue to provide active and 
proactive interactions by all staff to create a 
safe and secure learning environment for 
students. This will be done by maintaining 
regular supervision schedules before school 
and during breaks and lunch. Professional 
development in the following will be discussed: 
conflict resolution, restorative justice, 
substance use and abuse awareness, and 
other social emotional topics. Professional 
development may be provided by PTC 
leadership, MCSOS specialists, or outside 
sources which could include Madera County 
Probation, Madera County Behavioral Health, 
Specialists from other County Offices of 
Education, or other specialists as needed.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

PTC staff 
communicates 
and addresses 
student safety 
concerns in a 
timely manner. 
Professional 
development 
has increased 
capacity of all 
staff, especially 
in the area of 
social-emotional 
learning which 
contributes to 
responding to 
situations 
appropriately. 
Referrals to 
counseling and 
other specialists 
allow students 
to get the 
support they 
need. 

ParentSquare fees, 
PTC school documents 

$10,000.00 $8,561        

2.2 Maintain School Facilities 
PTC staff will help provide a clean and safe 
campus that fosters student learning and pride 
in the facilities. This is done through regularly 
scheduled facilities inspections, 
communication with site and maintenance staff 
to identify and address problems in a timely 
manner. Work orders are submitted and 
attended to while prioritizing any that pose 
safety concerns.       

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

PTC is 
maintained daily 
by custodial 
staff and weekly 
by landscaping 
services. 
Maintenance 
concerns 
addressed 
throughout the 

FIT inspections Fall 
2025, maintenance 
work order system, 
maintenance personnel 

$227,000.00 $105,623        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 23 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
 
 
 

year as needed.  
FIT inspection 
yielded PTC 
campuses in 
"Good Repair." 

2.3 Host Annual School Events 
At least two events held annually to support 
greater school connections. Administrators, 
Principal, School Counselors, teachers, and 
other staff plan to make preparations to 
provide engaging opportunities (Open House, 
Parent-Teacher Conferences and Family 
Appreciation Day) for all PTC families.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

PTC has hosted 
12 school 
events for 
students and 
parents, 
including Parent 
Teacher 
Conferences, 
enrollment 
orientations, 
college 
presentations 
and high school 
graduation. 

Requisitions for 
supplies and materials 
for events 

$1,500.00 $750        

2.4 Provide Student Transportation As Needed 
to and from School 
As 90% of PTC students are Low-Income, 
PTC will provide transportation for students 
whose families have mobility issues or 
economic challenges to attend PTC or PTC 
events.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

Currently, five 
students require 
assistance from 
public 
transportation to 
get to/from 
school.  
Currently, this 
transportation 
through the city 
of Madera has 
come at no 
cost.  Some 
students living 
in rural areas 
have requested 
assistance and 
tickets have 
been purchased 
for the second 
semester. 

5 students use public 
transportation to get 
to/from school 

$1,200.00 $0        

2.5 Increase Student Attendance 
Understanding that academic success 
increases when students attend school, PTC 
staff believe all students achieve more when 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Staff members 
regularly review 
attendance and 
academic 

School counselor time, 
counselor referral 
forms, Tiered 

$62,583.00 $33,487        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 24 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

they attend on a regular basis.  PTC will 
increase student attendance rates and 
decrease chronic absenteeism rates by 
celebrating and recognizing good attendance 
through the use of incentives.  Students with 
perfect attendance will be celebrated monthly 
with certificates and other school incentives.  
Additionally,  effective home-school 
communication, building positive relationships, 
ParentSquare messages, parent meetings, 
and home visits by administrators, academic 
counselors, and the school psychologist will 
increase school connectedness and the desire 
to attend regularly.       
 
 
 
 

progress data to 
identify  how to 
best support 
students and 
help maintain 
their progress 
toward 
completing 
courses and 
graduation 
requirements.  
A school 
psychologist is 
available to 
meet with 
students and 
parents to 
support SEL 
needs and 
make 
appropriate 
referrals for 
services with 
Madera County 
service 
providers. 
Communication 
between  school 
and home is 
translated to 
keep Spanish-
speaking 
families 
informed. 
Counselor 
meets with 
every parent of 
new student 
enrollments to 
address 
attendance 
procedures and 
the process for 
communicating 
concerns. 

Reengagement Policy, 
PowerSchool 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 25 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 

2.6 Counseling Presentations 
School Counselors present or invite guest 
presenters to provide information on resources 
and services available to students. 
Presentations include topics such as workforce 
preparation, college registration, financial aid, 
Job Corps, and other topics of interest. In 
addition, grade-level cohort meetings to inform 
students and parents of academic progress 
toward graduation.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

There were 9 
counselor 
presentations at 
PTC and 
included 
information on 
college, credits, 
enrollment in 
Independent 
Study, and 
financial aid. 

Sign in sheets $8,000.00 $1,779        

2.7 Reduce Dropout Rates for Low-Income, 
Homeless, and English Learner Students 
To address dropout rates, PTC will do the 
following: Administrators/Principal and School 
Counselors will make home visits to students 
in need of intervention. Academic counselors 
and teachers will maintain communication to 
intervene with students who are falling behind 
academically and/or have attendance issues. 
Communication with English and Spanish 
speaking parents will be made by 
administration, academic counseling, teachers 
and other staff to ensure parents are aware of 
academic and attendance issues in a timely 
manner through phone calls, conferences, and 
ParentSquare. Administration and academic 
counseling will plan to provide parent 
education nights to inform and give strategies 
parents to help intervene and support their 
students academics and attendance issues. 
Site Administration/Principal and School 
Counselor will maintain a priority list of 
students to monitor for intervention.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

Ongoing 
communication 
amongst staff 
allows 
identification of 
students with 
attendance 
concerns or lack 
of academic 
progress.  
Students and 
parents are 
informed of 
concerns to also 
identify 
additional 
support that 
may be required 
at home or 
school.  
Communication 
with families is 
available in 
Spanish for 
those requiring 
it.  
ParentSquare 
communication 
allows families 

TRP meeting, SNL and 
TNL notifications, 
ParentSquare 

$3,000.00 $225        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 26 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

to communicate 
with PTC in a 
preferred 
manner and 
language they 
understand. 

2.8 Provide Behavioral Health Intervention and 
Support Services 
PTC staff will coordinate with behavioral health 
and a School Psychologist in the areas of 
substance abuse, anger and grief 
management, suicide prevention, stress, 
anxiety, depression, and drug and alcohol 
counseling. Professional Development aligned 
to substance use and abuse identification and 
prevention will be provided to all PTC staff. 
When necessary, support from outside 
agencies may be explored and provided to 
individual students or groups with common 
areas of intervention.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

The contracted 
school 
psychologist 
time allocated 
currently meets 
the needs of 
students on 
IEPs. In addition 
to this position, 
Pioneer 
Technical 
Center partners 
with 
Camarena 
Health Services 
for the 
administration 
of a Navigators 
program which 
provides 
services to 
students at no 
cost to families.  
Additional 
partnerships 
with Madera 
County Juvenile 
Probation, 
Behavioral 
Health and 
Public Health 
allow for 
families to 
access required 
resources and 
services. As of 
1/31/26, no 
additional 
materials have 

Tiered Reengagement 
Policy notifications and 
meetings, counseling 
referral form, IEPs 
 

$3,000.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 27 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

been 
required/purcha
sed. 
 

2.9 Suspension Rates 
PTC will maintain low suspension rates by 
continuing opportunities for students to 
increase connectedness to school. Regular 
communication with teachers, administrators, 
and families will help support students' needs. 
Behavioral concerns will be addressed and 
communicated in a timely manner. Parent 
conferences develop better communication 
between home and school, as well as student 
report cards, progress reporting and regular 
calls home. Professional development 
provided by PTC, specialists from MCSOS, 
and outside educational agencies in the areas 
of behavior intervention and other practices will 
be provided to all PTC staff.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

There has been 
zero 
suspensions as 
of 
1/23/26.Parent 
communication 
is a cornerstone 
to the PTC 
program as all 
staff and 
parents value 
home/school 
communication. 
Behavioral 
concerns are 
addressed 
quickly and 
communicated 
with families. 
Home/School 
communication 
is easily 
handled down 
to the individual 
family level. 
Also, PTC uses 
a school 
reporting 
system for 
report cards and 
progress reports 
to inform 
parents of 
student 
progress. 
School 
information 
forms are 
translated to 
assist parents in 
being more 

Local suspension data; 
At presents there have 
not been any cost 
items but presentations 
on SEL and gang 
awareness builds 
capacity for staff to be 
aware of potential 
concerns 

$1,500.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 28 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

informed about 
scholastic 
programs. Staff 
trained as 
needed for 
using tools. 

2.10 Expand Support Services for Parenting 
Teens, Foster and Homeless Youth 
Based upon the increased SEL needs of 
students who are parents themselves and 
other at-promise youth; all parenting teens, 
foster youth and/or homeless students will 
have the opportunity to receive increased 
academic and social-emotional services 
provided by academic interventions and 
service referrals from teachers, counseling, 
school psychologist, foster/homeless youth 
coordinator, and connections/referrals to 
Madera County Health services. Professional 
Development is provided to PTC staff to better 
support students' SEL needs. PD will be 
offered at least three times per year by mental 
health professionals, including the school 
psychologist.       
 
 
 
 

 
 

Pare
ntin
g 

Tee
ns, 

Fost
er 

and 
Hom
eles

s 
Yout

h 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Quarterly 
check-ins 
conducted by 
Foster Youth 
Services (FYS) 
and Educating 
Homeless 
Children and 
Youth (EHCY) 
program staff 
were 
implemented 
Fall for CAES 
foster and 
homeless 
students. 
Updates on 
grades, 
attendance, and 
behavior are 
obtained from 
teachers and 
instructional 
support staff. 
Academic, 
social-
emotional, and 
health referrals 
are made as 
needed. Phone 
calls to 
parents/guardia
ns are made to 
provide updates 
on students as 
well as to 
ensure that 
student’s needs 
are being met. 

Contact logs, 
student/parent sign in 
sheets, ParentSquare 

$18,333.00 $9,171        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 29 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

In addition, 
emergency 
support services 
are provided 
including 
housing, 
eyeglasses, 
clothing, 
toiletries and 
school supplies 
as needed. 
CAES foster 
and homeless 
students are 
prioritized for 
county-wide 
events including 
college field 
trips, monthly 
College & 
Career 
Awareness 
Workshops 
(middle school), 
and the annual 
R.I.S.E. Youth 
Conference 
(middle school). 
Outreach to 
students 
regarding these 
events is 
conducted via 
mail, Parent 
Square, and 
personal phone 
call. In addition, 
teachers are 
asked to speak 
with students 
regarding these 
opportunities 
and encourage 
them to 
participate. All 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 30 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

CAES foster 
and homeless 
students meet 
with the 
academic 
counselor upon 
enrollment to 
discuss 
academic 
requirements, 
grades, 
attendance, 
behavior, etc. 
Parents/Guardia
ns of CAES 
foster and 
homeless 
students are 
invited to 
participate in 
monthly Parent 
Connection 
Workshops. 
Information 
specific to the 
unique needs of 
foster and 
homeless 
students is 
provided to 
ensure 
familiarity with 
rights and 
responsibilities 
as well as to 
have the 
necessary 
information to 
advocate for 
students. Topics 
discussed so far 
include: 
AB490/McKinne
y-Vento, School 
Technology, 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 31 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Strategies for 
the Academic 
Success of 
Students, 
Substance Use 
Awareness, 
Suicide 
Prevention & 
Mental Health 
Awareness, and 
Trauma and It’s 
Behavioral and 
Academic 
Effects. 

2.11 Positive Student Recognition Program 
PTC administration, academic counselors, 
teachers, and other staff will plan and conduct 
4 student recognition assemblies throughout 
the year to build a connection to the school 
community, affect positive school culture, and 
outreach to parents. Students are recognized 
for academic progress, attendance, and 
P.R.I.D.E. citizenship awards, and parents are 
invited to attend the assemblies. Teachers 
recognize and nominate students. Support 
staff to contact students and parents, and 
students and parents are contacted using 
ParentSquare as well.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

Students 
received 
P.R.I.D.E 
awards for 
perfect 
attendance, 
citizenship, and 
academic 
achievement at 
the quarter and 
semester. 

184 students have 
received recognition 
certificates (Duplicated) 

$3,000.00 $900        

2.12 Climate Survey Responses 
A Google link survey will be sent out annually 
on ParentSquare in both English and Spanish. 
To address how to increase the return rate 
percentages for each year, data will be 
disaggregated, led by the Program Director 
and CAES Leadership team. LCAP 
Educational partner input will be solicited 
through School Site Council (SSC) ELAC, and 
Parent Advisory Committee (PAC) meetings. 
Surveys will be administered through the 
ParentSquare portal and information from 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Partially 
Implemented 

Students and 
parents will be 
given LCAP 
surveys starting 
January 26, 
2026, which 
contains 
questions 
directly tied to 
school climate. 

Student, Parent LCAP 
Survey responses 

$0.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 32 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

students and parents through teacher 
communication and parent- teacher 
conferences. Feedback and professional 
development in the areas of site and student 
safety will be administered by PTC leadership, 
MCSOS specialists, or outside agencies with 
expertise in school and student safety.       
 
 
 
 

2.13 External Learning Opportunities for 
Students 
For the 2024-25 school year, teachers will plan 
field trips and guest presenters that enhance 
student learning and increase a 
connectedness to school. Field trips allow for 
virtual access, which can also contribute to 
learning goals. Academic counselors to 
provide workshops on career exploration, SEL, 
and other relevant topics. Curriculum, 
materials, and other software programs to be 
purchased to support these increased 
interventions.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

PTC students 
are rewarded 
for various 
academic 
successes 
including perfect 
attendance and 
student of the 
month 
recognition with 
external 
learning field 
trips. As of 
January 23, 
2026, 
71 students 
have attended 
seven field trips, 
including CTE 
competitions 
and college 
trips, and there 
are several trips 
planned for the 
second 
semester. 
 

Bus contracts, 
entrance fees, student 
participation 

$45,000.00 $8,420        

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 33 of 46 

Goal 3 
Goal Description 
PTC will encourage greater educational partnership and input by developing meaningful community, parent and family relationships.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

3.1 Percentage of Parents Using 
ParentSquare to Communicate 
with the 
School 
        

100% of parents are in 
contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare texting 
feature. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

100% of parents are in 
contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare texting 
feature. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

 100% of parents are in 
contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare texting 
feature. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

100% of parents will 
be in 
contact with teachers 
via 
ParentSquare texting 
feature. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.2 Percentage of Parents of English 
Learners 
Using ParentSquare to 
Communicate with 
the School 
        

100% of parents of 
English Learners are 
in contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare 
texting feature. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

100% of parents of 
English Learners are 
in contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare 
texting feature. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

 100% of parents of 
English Learners are 
in contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare 
texting feature. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

100% of parents of 
English 
Learners will be in 
contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare 
texting feature. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.3 Percentage of Teachers Making 
ParentSquare Log Entries 
        

100% of Teachers 
were provided access 
to PowerSchool to log 
entries in 2023-24. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

100% of Teachers 
were provided access 
to PowerSchool to log 
entries in 2024-25. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

 100% of Teachers 
were provided access 
to PowerSchool to log 
entries in 2025-26. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

100% of Teachers will 
provide 
access to 
PowerSchool to log 
entries in 2026-27. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.4 Number of Parents Attending 
School 
Events 
        

4 school events 
offered to parents/ 
family members in 
2023-24. 
 
15 parents/family 
members attended 
events. 
 

16 school events 
offered to parents/ 
family members in 
2024-25. 
 
72 parents/family 
members attended 
school events. 
 

 11 school events 
offered to parents/ 
family members in 
2025-26. 
 
82 parents/family 
members attended 
school events.  Over 
200 parents and family 

7 school events will be 
offered to parents/ 
family members in 
2026-27. 
 
50 parents/family 
members will attend 
events. 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 34 of 46 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
[Local Data] 
 

[Local Data] 
 

members attended 
Fall 2025 high school 
graduation ceremony 
on 12/18/25 for 22 
graduates. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

[Local Data] 
 

3.5 Community Outreach 
Opportunities        

With the additional of 
PIQE, PTC now has 6 
community partners. 
 
Five families 
participated in the 
Community 
Appreciation Day. 
 

PTC now has six 
community partners, 
and five community 
partners participated in 
a Wellness event 
hosted at PTC on 
5/16/25, which was 
attended by 24 
students, 5 parents, 17 
staff, and 29 other 
community partners. 

 PTC now has six 
community partners. 

Increase the number 
of community partners 
and connect them with 
families and students. 

3.6 Educational Partner Input and 
Participation        

In 2023-24, 36 parents 
completed the Spring 
School Climate 
surveys in digital form. 
 
15 parents participated 
in School Site Council 
(SSC) and/or English 
Learner Advisory 
Committee (ELAC) 
meetings. 
 

In 2024-25, 33 parents 
completed the Spring 
School Climate 
surveys in digital form. 
 
12 parents participated 
in School Site Council 
(SSC) and/or English 
Learner Advisory 
Committee (ELAC) 
meetings. 
 

 In 2025-26, 
_________ parents 
completed the Spring 
School Climate 
surveys in digital form.   
TBD 
 
14 parents participated 
in School Site Council 
(SSC) and/or English 
Learner Advisory 
Committee (ELAC) 
meetings. 
 

Increase the number 
of parent and 
community responses 
from the prior year. 
 
Increase the number 
of parents attending 
School Site Council 
(SSC) and/or English 
Learner Advisory 
Committee (ELAC) 
meetings. 
 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

3.1 Promote School Communication 
ParentSquare, which allows for two-way 
communication between school and home, 
and phone calls for school events will be used 

 
X 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

School to home 
communication 
is documented 
in PowerSchool 

DTS contracts, 
ParentSquare fees 

$3,150.00 $2,563        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 35 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

to contact all families. All communication will 
be provided in English and Spanish so parents 
of English Learner students are kept equally 
informed of school news and events. 
 
Translations of announcements and 
documents through ParentSquare will also 
provide opportunities for parents to provide 
feedback through surveys distributed through 
ParentSquare. 
 
Documents developed through the use of 
Document Tracking Services (DTS) will 
enhance communication to families through 
organized, clearly-written and developed 
documents.  DTS also provides translation 
services for essential documents. 
 
       
 
 
 
 

log entries or in 
ParentSquare 
posts or 
messages sent 
to multiple 
families or 
individually. 
These logs 
allow 
subsequent 
conversations 
with families to 
be more 
effective and 
ensure 
educational 
partners are 
informed. 
 

3.2 Promote Participation of Families of 
English Learners 
Spanish is the primary language of more than 
99% of English Learner students enrolled in 
PTC.  PTC staff will increase participation of 
the parents of our English Learners through 
personal invitations via phone calls from 
administrators, academic counselors, or other 
support staff.  Parent consultation and 
feedback meetings for the purpose of 
reclassification will also provide opportunities 
for parents to provide feedback. ParentSquare 
translates communications to the language of 
English Learner students' parents. 
Administrator, School Counselor, Instructional 
Assistants and support staff are Spanish-
speaking and facilitate clear and prompt 
communication.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Staff uses 
complete 
translations on 
all 
programmatic 
documents 
shared with 
parents and 
guardians. Staff 
also uses DTS 
for school 
accountability 
reports and 
plans that are 
translated as 
well. 
ParentSquare 
also has instant 
translations into 
17 languages. 
 

DTS fees for 
translations, Student 
and Parent LCAP 
Surveys to be 
completed February 
2026, 94.6% of parents 
are contactable 
through ParentSquare 
 

$2,692.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 36 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

3.3 Increase Parent/Guardian Involvement and 
Attendance in School Functions 
PTC parents have shown low rates of home to 
school communication and participation such 
as completion of LCAP surveys, and attending 
school events including college preparation 
seminars that were offered 3-5 times a year by 
the counseling team. To increase parent 
involvement, PTC will do the following: 

• Counseling will use ParentSquare 
app/website to promote, deliver, 
and translate college preparation, 
financial aid documents, and parent 
seminar and workshop flyers. 

• Presentations specifically designed 
for the EL community will be a 
priority, with 17% of the PTC 
student population being English 
Learner students and RFEP (30% 
of enrollment) students. 

• Printed flyers in both English and 
Spanish will be distributed on site. 

• Two CAES counselors will use 
parent surveys and follow-up 
contact to determine a course of at 
least 3 parent seminars and 
workshops throughout the year. 

• PTC teachers will continue to hold 
parent-teacher conferences at the 
beginning of the Spring semester as 
a follow up to initial meetings at 
enrollment. These conferences will 
be focused on i- Ready data 
analysis, academic progress, 
attendance updates, and general 
academic planning. 

• Administration, counseling, teaching, 
and leadership students will 
develop PTC community events 
such as a school carnival, open 
house and back to school nights. 
Coordination of a career fair that 
include military representation, local 
community colleges, local 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Parent and 
family members 
have attended 
high school 
graduations and 
other school 
events. Parents 
also attend IEP 
meetings, 
Tiered 
Reengagement 
Policy meetings. 
college 
matriculation, 
parent 
conferences, 
grade-level 
cohort meetings 
and FAFSA 
application 
meetings. 
 

ParentSquare usage 
by staff and parents, 
LCAP Surveys, student 
and family events on 
campus 
 

$0.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 37 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

employers, job corps, and the 
Madera County Workforce 
Development will take place once a 
year. 

• ParentSquare will be used to survey 
and poll all parents on a regular 
basis. PTC administration will set 
parameters and Program Director 
will disaggregate and disseminate 
the data from those surveys. 

 
 
 
 
 

3.4 Develop Greater Community Outreach 
Opportunities 
Since 94.7% of PTC students are SED, all 
students would benefit from PTC's 
participation in the Madera County Compact.  
With the need for PTC students to have 
positive community interactions, building 
outreach opportunities will be beneficial to our 
students. 
 
PTC will establish partnerships and engage in 
community outreach. PTC leadership will 
continue to attend the quarterly Madera 
Compact Meetings, the monthly Commercially 
Sexually Exploited Children CSEC) meetings, 
and quarterly Juvenile Justice Coalition (JJC) 
meetings with Madera County Probation. PTC 
counselors will continue to coordinate with 
both Madera Community College and Merced 
Community College to provide students with 3-
4 financial aid information nights, a 
Registration-to-Go information night each 
semester. Many SED students are not aware 
of options available to them. Outreach and 
connection to local community colleges can 
provide future opportunities. 
 
To build community outreach for students 
beyond supporting the Kids' Day fundraiser for 

 
X 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

School 
administrators 
participate in 
Madera 
County 
COMPACT, 
FRESNO ROP, 
Juvenile 
Justice Coalition 
Committee 
meetings, 
meetings with 
probation 
partners, 
counselors 
partner with 
Madera 
Community 
College for 
Reg-To-Go, 
CTE 
teachers meet 
with 
advisory 
committee 
members to 
discuss 
current trends 
and needs 

Contracts, MOUs, 
Participation in 
PTC Partner meetings 
and fees paid 
 

$1,000.00 $200        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 38 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Valley Children's Hospital, former partnerships 
with community groups such as GRID Solar 
Solutions, and 4C's Construction need to be 
rekindled and expanded upon through 
exploration of other options within the 
community. Participation in the Madera County 
Compact can provide contacts to continue 
expanding student opportunities in the 
community. The Compact has utilized 
Leadership students for serving and hosting 
during their Compact Luncheon and PTC plans 
to continue this partnership in the future. 
 
Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQE) 
has become a new educational partner for 
PTC. Existing partnerships include Camarena 
Heath, Madera County Behavioral Health, 
Fresno ROP, and Madera County Juvenile 
Probation. 
       
 
 
 
 

of preparing 
students for 
career 
opportunities 
after 
graduation. 
 

3.5 Increase Educational Partner Input and 
Participation 
As a step to hasten the data collection 
process, increasing educational partner 
participation continues to be important for 
PTC. To increase participation in surveys to 
inform planning and decision-making, a digital 
Google link will be sent out to all families via 
ParentSquare. 
 
PTC will also provide opportunities for parent 
input through participation in formal and 
informal advisory committees, including the 
School Site Council (SSC), English Language 
Advisory Committee (ELAC), Parent Advisory 
Committee (PAC), and other school 
engagement meetings. This will increase 
parent involvement for the unduplicated 
student population; which makes up 90% of 
PTC's overall student population. As it has 
been quite challenging to reach all PTC 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

PTC Staff has 
developed 
parent and 
student 
surveys for 
LCAP input 
and will send to 
families 
in February 
2026. Also, 
throughout 
school year 
2025-26, all 
families 
enrolling with 
PTC take 
an enrollment 
survey 
which provides 
instant 

94.6% of parents are 
contactable through 
ParentSquare, use by 
staff and parents, 
LCAP Surveys, student 
and family events on 
campus 

$0.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 39 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

families, all avenues of communication are 
considered. Increased communication from the 
principal, counselors, and teachers through the 
ParentSquare app/website keeps families 
informed and provides translation of all text 
information. The Principal/Program Director 
and teachers send weekly messages to 
parents and students to keep information up to 
date. Phone calls to parents of EL students in 
Spanish are also made to support staff prior to 
all meeting opportunities. Parents of RFEP 
students are also a focus group to increase 
participation. ParentSquare will also be used 
more prominently to survey and poll all parents 
on a regular basis. 
 
Currently 98% of parents are able to be 
contacted through the website. PTC staff will 
set poll parameters and disaggregate and 
disseminate collected data from those polls. 
       
 
 
 
 

programmatic 
feedback 
and generates 
parent 
volunteers for 
school 
committees.  
Zoom meetings 
allow for full, 
virtual 
participation 
from parents of 
students in 
school 
programs. This 
has increased 
participation 
from staff and 
students for 
input meetings. 
 

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 40 of 46 

Goal 4 
Goal Description 
By June 30, 2026, Pioneer Technical Center will increase the graduation rate by 10%.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

4.1 Graduation Rate        41.9% graduation rate 
according to the 2023 
CA School Dashboard. 

Overall -- 53.5% 
English Learners -- 
44.2% 
LTEL -- 42.5% 
Low-income -- 53.1% 
Hispanic -- 52.6% 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

 Overall -- 76.7% 
English Learners -- 
75.8% 
LTEL -- 75.8% 
Low-income -- 76.7% 
Hispanic -- 76.1% 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

Grad rate will be 
71.9% according to 
the CA School 
Dashboard. 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

4.1 Increased Support for EL Students 
Due to a significant increase in the English 
Leaner student population over the last 3 
years, An Instructional Assistant (0.2 FTE) will 
be assigned to provide additional direct 
support to EL students in designated ELD 
classes. This additional support will help EL 
students gain greater access to curriculum and 
contribute toward increased re-designation and 
graduation rates.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

An Instructional 
Assistant 
(IA) provides 
intensive 
support for 
English Learner 
students to 
increase 
language 
proficiency in 
reading, writing, 
listening, and 
speaking 
domains. The IA 
works closely 
with the 
designated ELD 
teacher to 
maximize 
instructional 

IA provides eight hours 
weekly service 
in ELD classroom 
support 
 

$46,000.00 $8,110        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 41 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

time and 
program 
effectiveness. 
 

4.2 Increased Parent Education 
As a result of parent feedback via school 
enrollment and LCAP surveys, a significant 
number of parents requested parent education 
on how best to help their children be 
successful in the Pioneer Technical Center 
program as a necessary measure for 
improving student success toward meeting 
graduation requirements. PTC staff will 
continue to partner with a Parent Education 
Organization to empower parents to better 
assist their children.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

During Fall 
2025, PTC 
continued its 
partnership with 
PIQE (Parent 
Institute for 
Quality 
Education) to 
host an online 
classes for 
parents to learn 
how to better 
support their 
child's 
social, 
emotional, and 
academic needs 
as 
students.  15 
parents 
attended at 
least one 
session. 
 

PIQE Contracts, roster 
of 
families who 
participated in Fall 
training; Spring session 
pending 
 

$75,000.00 $0        

4.3 Increase School Connectedness for all 
Students 
Students achieving at least 95% attendance 
will have opportunities for participating in 
monthly, quarterly, semesterly, and yearly 
school activities to strengthen a 
connectedness to the PTC academic program.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

PTC staff have 
held on campus 
events at school 
to help students 
feel 
connected to 
staff and 
teachers. Field 
trips 
and/or other 
incentives 
are planned for 
the 
second 
semester. A 

Field trip requests, 
sign-in sheets, 
requisitions 

$25,000.00 $15,949        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 42 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

student 
leadership 
group 
continues to 
plan 
student/family 
events to 
increase 
student 
participation 
and school 
connectedness. 
 

4.4 Monitor Plan Effectiveness 
PTC staff will monitor and evaluate the plan by 
meeting regularly (at least four times per year) 
to review and analyze data related to metrics 
identified in the school’s CSI plan, and 
identification of next steps to be taken based 
on that analysis. Also, PTC staff will review 
and analyze data related to ‘implementation 
progress markers” identified in the school’s 
CSI plan, and identification of next steps to be 
taken based on that analysis. PTC staff will 
review the effectiveness of the plan which shall 
be based on whether the actions in the plan 
are being implemented in a timely fashion, and 
whether the ongoing absenteeism data show 
the rate to be declining with implementation of 
the plan. The final evaluation of its 
effectiveness will be based on the school 
exiting CSI. The Executive Director will make 
reports to the Superintendent or designee 
regarding progress.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

According to the 
California 
School 
Dashboard, the 
Graduation 
Rate for PTC 
students 
increased by 
23.2% from the 
previous 
year, and 
currently stands 
at 76.7%. 
 

Leadership staff 
analyzes and reports 
data on various 
accountability reports 

$0.00 $0        

4.5 Edgenuity Licenses 
Additional Edgenuity licenses will be 
purchased to provide low performing students 
access to A-G and CTE approved courses that 
will meet graduation requirements.       
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Additional 
licenses 
purchased to 
increase 
access to CTE 
and credit 

55 students currently 
taking 
online courses through 
Edgenuity. 
 

$105,000.00  



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 43 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
 
 

recovery 
courses. Since 
students 
typically enroll 
at PTC 
significantly 
behind in 
academic 
credits and at-
risk of not 
graduating, the 
Edgenuity 
courses 
contribute to 
increased 
credits earned 
by students. 
 

4.6 Academic Support for Low-Performing 
Students 
Pioneer Technical Center staff uses i-Ready 
diagnostic assessments and prescriptive 
lessons as a means of remediating all SED 
and English Learner students in the areas of 
Reading and Mathematics to ensure students 
become grade level proficient and meet 
graduation requirements.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Students not 
performing 
academically on 
grade 
level in Reading 
and 
Math, as 
measured by 
i-Ready, are 
assigned 
prescriptive 
lessons to 
address subskill 
weaknesses. 
Students are 
provided 
additional 
support through 
Acceleration 
Classes that 
are determined 
by grade level 
performance. 
 
 

i-Ready costs, 
prescriptive lessons 

$75,000.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 44 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

4.7 Supplemental Curriculum for English 
Learners 
PTC uses StudySynch as the curriculum for 
English Language Arts, and the StudySynch 
Designated ELD curriculum for all ELD 
classes. Given the complexity of the program, 
and increased number of English Learners in 
the program over the last three years, still 
small numbers of students are being 
reclassified as Re-designated Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP), and many low performing 
EL students are not progressing toward 
English Language Proficiency as measure by 
ELPAC. English Learners in the Level I and 
Level 2 courses are in need of supplemental 
curriculum to target greater foundational skills 
that will lead to greater English Proficiency.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Planned Program 
Director for 
MCSOS has 
assisted in 
researching a 
curriculum 
to support the 
language 
proficiency 
needs of long 
term English 
learners 
that are 
performing at 
levels 1 and 2. 
The 
curriculum 
would help 
students make 
progress 
toward 
reclassification.  
Feedback from 
educational 
partners has not 
yielded a 
program that 
meets the 
needs for 
student in ELD 
in a non-
classroom 
based school. 
 

Researching 
curriculum 

$30,000.00 $31,041        

4.8 Provide Additional Student Support 
Some SED students may require additional 
support throughout the school year, beyond 
the academic support provided by teachers 
and instructional staff. Students who fall 
behind academically tend to have higher 
absenteeism rates and lower stability rates, 
which affect the graduation rate.   These 
students have lost instructional time at school 
and may be absent due to lack of personal 
school items such as backpacks or other 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Planned All enrolled 
students receive 
a new backpack 
with school 
supplies.  
Parents and 
students have 
provided 
positive 
feedback on not 
needing to 

Requisitions $40,000.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 45 of 46 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

needs that prevent students from attending 
school.  This action will provide funding for 
special or additional supplemental materials 
that are principally directed toward meeting the 
needs of those students.       
 
 
 
 

purchase school 
supplies. 

4.9 Summer School for Credit-Deficient 
Students 
Summer school will allow SED students a 
greater opportunity to graduate with their 
cohorts.  Most students who enroll at PTC after 
their first year of high school are already credit 
deficient and are less likely to graduate high 
school in four years. This action is intended to 
have a positive effect on the graduation rate at 
PTC. "While most students that failed one or 
more classes did not graduate from high 
school, the findings indicated that these 
students are more likely to graduate from high 
school if they participate in the summer school 
program than if they do not. As the number of 
times that students participated in the summer 
school program increased, the more likely they 
were to graduate from high school." Trujillo, G. 
2012.  Participation in Summer School and 
High School Graduation in the Sun Valley 
School District (ED551743).       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Planned Cohort data 
from junior and 
senior students 
will help 
determine the 
need for offering 
a summer 
school program 
in Summer 
2026 

TBD $25,000.00 $0        

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 46 of 46 

 

Impact to the Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Item As adopted in Budget Overview for Parents Mid-Year Update 
Total LCFF Funds 3,303,790 3,351,051 

LCFF Supplemental/Concentration Grants 986,707 1,000,821 
 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 1 of 44 

Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 
2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

This template is intended for internal monitoring purposes only. The 2025-26 LCAP template and instructions should be consulted when completing required 
documents.  

(6) (A) The superintendent of the school district shall present a report on the annual update to the local control and accountability plan and the local control
funding formula budget overview for parents on or before February 28 of each year at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board of the school
district. (B) The report shall include both of the following: (i) All available midyear outcome data related to metrics identified in the current year’s local control
and accountability plan. (ii) All available midyear expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the current year’s local control and
accountability plan.

Internal Notes 

Internal Notes 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor 
and Voyager Schools)     

Hugo Sanchez    
Program Director-Career Alternative Education 
Services 

hsanchez@mcsos.org   
(559) 662-6211

5.2.3



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 2 of 44 

Goal 1 
Goal Description 
Endeavor/Voyager students will stay on course to graduate and qualify as prepared to be college and career ready through state adopted standards-based 
instruction.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

1.1 Access to Standards-Aligned 
Materials and State Standards 
Implemented in All Classrooms 
 
Reported to the MCSOS 
Governing Board 
        

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
100% of students have 
access to standards 
aligned curriculum 
materials. 
 
State standards are 
implemented in all 
classrooms and 
reported to the Board 
 
[2024 Report to the 
Local Board] 
 

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
100% of students have 
access to standards 
aligned curriculum 
materials. 
 
State standards are 
implemented in all 
classrooms and 
reported to the Board 
 
[June, 2025 Report to 
the Board] 
 

 100% of students have 
access to standards 
aligned curriculum and 
relevant instructional 
materials. 
 
State standards are 
implemented in all 
classrooms and 
reported to the Board. 
 

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
100% of students will 
have access to 
standards aligned 
curriculum materials. 
 
State standards will be 
implemented in all 
classrooms. 
 

1.2 Percent of Special Education 
students receiving academic 
intervention and support.        

100% of students with 
an IEP received 
interventions and 
supports identified on 
their IEPs, and all 
students receive 
Academic Acceleration 
support per i-Ready 
diagnostic results. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

100% of students with 
an IEP received 
interventions and 
supports identified on 
their IEPs, and all 
students receive 
Academic Acceleration 
support per i-Ready 
diagnostic results. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 100% of students with 
an IEP receive 
interventions and 
supports identified on 
their IEPs, and all 
students receive 
Academic Acceleration 
support per i-Ready 
diagnostic results. 

100% of students with 
an IEP will receive 
identified interventions 
and supports, and all 
students will receive 
Academic Acceleration 
support based on i-
Ready diagnostic 
results. 

1.3 Percentage of teachers and staff 
attending professional 
development trainings.        

100% of teachers 
have been involved in 
weekly professional 
development with 
other CAES teachers 
in the areas of math, 
WASC Self-Study, 

100% of 
Endeavor/Voyager 
teachers and 
Instructional Assistant 
have been involved in 
Professional 

 100% of Endeavor/ 
Voyager teachers and 
Instructional Assistant 
involved in 
Professional 
Development training. 

100% of teachers will 
participate in 
professional 
development trainings 
with CAES colleagues 
and implement the 
strategies. 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 3 of 44 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
SEL, McKinney-Vento 
training, and Suicide 
Prevention Training. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

Development training 
during SY 24-25. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

1.4 Teachers Appropriately 
Credentialed with No Mis-
assignments or Vacancies 
 
(Ed Code now requires that we use 
CDE data from the most recent 
DataQuest to report teacher 
assignment data.) 
        

72.8% of teachers are 
appropriately 
credentialed in 2021-
22. 
 
[2024 DataQuest] 
 

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
48% of teachers were 
appropriately 
credentialed in 2022-
23. (DataQuest) 
 

 68.3% of teachers 
were appropriately 
credentialed in 2023-
24. 
 
[2025 Data Quest] 
 

100% of teachers will 
be appropriately 
credentialed in 2024-
25. 

1.5 Average number of credits earned 
by credit-deficient students.        

As of May 1, 2024, 
127 incarcerated 
students earned 
1029.75 credits for an 
average of 8.11 credits 
per student. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

As of May 1, 2025, 
162 incarcerated 
students earned 
1,462.5 credits for an 
average of 9.02 credits 
per student. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 As of 1/15/26, 120 
high school students 
earned 1279.5 credits 
for an average of 
10.66 credits per 
student. 

Increase the average 
number of credits 
earned by credit-
deficient students. 

1.6 California School Dashboard: 
Distance from Standard (DFS) 
standard as measured by SBAC 
        

SBAC data not 
available due to 
minimum cohort 
requirement of 11 
students not met. 
 
[2023 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

SBAC data not 
available due to 
minimum cohort 
requirement of 11 
students not met. 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

 SBAC data not 
available due to 
minimum cohort 
requirement of 11 
students not met. 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

Decrease Distance 
from Standard in both 
ELA and Math. 

1.7 Percentage of English Learner 
(EL) reclassifications.        

0% of EL students 
were reclassified as of 
May 1, 2024. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

0% of EL students 
were reclassified as of 
May 1, 2025. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 0% of EL students 
reclassified as of 
1/15/26. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

5% of EL students will 
be reclassified. 
 
[2027 Local Data] 
 

1.8 California School Dashboard: 
ELPAC Summative Assessment: 
Rate of English Learner Students 

ELPI data not 
available due to 
minimum cohort 

ELPI data not 
available due to 
minimum cohort 

 Fewer than 11 
students - data not 
displayed for privacy. 
 

Increase the 
percentage of English 
Learner Students 
Making Progress 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 4 of 44 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
Making Progress toward English 
Proficiency (ELPI) 
        

requirement of 11 
students not met. 
 
[2023 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

requirement of 11 
students not met. 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

toward English 
Proficiency. 

1.9 Percentage of Low-Income 
students showing growth on i-
Ready assessments in ELA and 
Math.        

Diagnostic results from 
i-Ready assessments 
for Low-Income 
students completed 
through May 1, 2024, 
yield 6.94% of 
students are 
performing at or above 
grade-level in Reading 
(with 31% having 
showed growth) and 
1.4% at grade level in 
Math. However, Math 
results indicate 
23.94% of students 
showed growth of at 
least one grade-level 
during the second 
semester. 
 
[2023-24 Local Data] 
 

Diagnostic results from 
i-Ready assessments 
for Low-Income 
students completed 
through May 1, 2025, 
yielded 0% of students 
are performing at or 
above grade-level in 
Reading (with 52% 
having showed 
growth) and 0% at 
grade level in Math. 
However, Math results 
indicate 56% of 
students showed 
growth of at least one 
grade-level during the 
second semester. 
 
[2024-25 Local Data] 
 

 Diagnostic results from 
i-Ready assessments 
for Low-Income 
students completed 
through 1/15/26, yield 
11% of students are 
performing at or above 
grade-level in Reading 
(with 32% having 
shown growth) and 0% 
at grade level in Math. 
However, Math results 
indicate 29% of 
students showed 
growth of at least one 
grade-level during the 
first semester. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

30% of students 
performing at or above 
grade-level in 
Reading. 
 
10% at or above grade 
level in Math. 
 

1.10 Number of Students completing 
credit in a Career Technical 
Education (CTE) Class        

As of January 2024, 6 
students in the Cadet 
Academy enrolled and 
earned credit in the 
Introduction to 
Welding course 
(Virtual). 
 
Additionally, 5 
students completed a 
CTE course via 
Edgenuity for a total of 
49 credits. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

As of May 1, 2025, 5 
students in the Cadet 
Academy enrolled and 
3 earned credit in the 
Introduction to 
Welding course 
(Virtual). 
 
Additionally, 10 
students completed a 
CTE course via 
Edgenuity for a total of 
56.5 credits. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 As of 1/15/26, 8 
students in the Cadet 
Academy enrolled and 
earned credit in the 
Introduction to 
Welding course 
(Virtual). Additionally, 
6 students completed 
a CTE course via 
Edgenuity for a total of 
14.5 credits. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

10 students will earn 
credit in a CTE class. 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 5 of 44 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
1.11 Number of 11th and 12th grades 

students screened to qualify for 
modified graduation track or grade 
level reclassification.        

25 students have been 
screened. Five 
students were placed 
on a modified 
graduation track. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

As of May 1, 2025, 20 
students have been 
screened. Ten 
students were placed 
on a modified 
graduation track. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 8 Students screened 
for modified 
graduation track (AB 
2306) upon release 
and enrollment at 
district of residence. 
Two students were 
approved and placed 
on modified track. 
Students are no longer 
grade level reclassified 
according to credits 

All 11th and 12th 
grades students will be 
screened. 

1.12 California School Dashboard: 
Students Graduating with a High 
School Diploma 
        

Dashboard graduation 
data not reported due 
to minimum cohort 
requirement of 11 
students not met. 
 
[2023 California 
School Dashboard] 
 
As of June 2024, four 
Endeavor students 
graduated during the 
2023-24 school year. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

Dashboard graduation 
data not reported due 
to minimum cohort 
requirement of 11 
students not met. 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

 Dashboard graduation 
data not reported due 
to minimum cohort 
requirement of 11 
students not met. 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard] 
 
As of 1/15/26, 4 
Endeavor students 
graduated during the 
2025-25 school year. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

Increase number of 
graduates. 

1.13 Number of students completing 
Individual Graduation Progress 
Plan and Career Assessment 
Survey.        

21 students completed 
an Individual 
Transition/Progress 
Plan Survey. School 
counselor met with all 
seniors individually to 
assist with college 
matriculation and 
financial aid 
applications. Group 
meetings were held 
with all students to 
review postsecondary 
options. Career 
Assessments were 

25 students completed 
an Individual 
Transition/ Progress 
Plan Survey. School 
counselor met with all 
seniors individually to 
assist with college 
matriculation and 
financial aid 
applications. Group 
meetings were held 
with all students to 
review postsecondary 
options. Career 
Assessments were 
conducted May 2025. 

 Over the course of  4 
sessions,  69 students 
received information 
on graduation 
requirements, 
progress toward 
graduation and 
postsecondary 
pathways, as of 
1/15/26. Individual 
Transition/Progress 
Plan Survey two 
seniors to assist with 
college matriculation 
and financial aid 
applications. Career 

All seniors will 
complete an Individual 
Transition/Progress 
Plan and an Individual 
Graduation Progress 
Plan and Career 
Assessment Survey. 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 6 of 44 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
conducted Spring 
2024. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

Assessments to be 
conducted Spring 
2026. 

1.14 Access to a Broad Course of Study        All students had 
access to a broad 
course of study within 
the parameters of the 
school setting. 
 
[2024 Report to the 
Local Board] 
 

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
All students had 
access to a broad 
course of study within 
the parameters of the 
school setting. 
 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
the Board] 
 

 100% of students had 
access to a broad 
course of study. 
 
[2025 Report to Local 
Board] 
 

All students will have 
access to a broad 
course of study within 
the parameters of the 
school setting. 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

1.1 Provide Standards-Aligned Curriculum to 
All Students 
 
Improve Low-Income Students' 
Achievement in Math and ELA 
 
Endeavor/Voyager will provide all students 
with rigorous and engaging adopted 
instructional curricula that have been state 
and/or locally approved to support the 
implementation of California State Standards. 
 
An examination of student data indicates that 
0% of Low-Income students have 
demonstrated meeting or exceeding standard 
on SBAC assessments in ELA or Math.  
Endeavor/Voyager will provide Low-Income 
students with high-quality, standards aligned 
instructional support materials in ELA, Math, 
ELD, Social Science, and Science. 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Materials and 
supplies are 
purchased to 
support every 
academic 
acceleration 
student. 

Instructional materials 
including software 
licenses for students 

$10,000.00 $0        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 7 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
Materials will include textbooks, math 
curriculum, StudySync (books and software) 
and other online software/curriculum. The 
increased rigor will support academic progress 
toward proficiency with an emphasis on ELA 
and Math. 
       
 
 
 
 

1.2 Support Students with IEPs 
Since incarcerated youth are enrolled at 
Endeavor/Voyager on an ongoing basis, all 
teachers receive a daily roster of students on 
IEPs, which allows teachers to make 
appropriate instructional accommodations for 
all students. To assist students with learning, a 
RSP teacher meets with all students on IEPs 
either individually or in small groups. Support 
for students can be "push- in" or "pull-out" to 
provide additional instructional options.  
Regular communication between core 
academic teachers and the RSP teacher 
ensures identified students are receiving 
appropriate support.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

RSP Teacher 
provides 
instructional 
support to 
incarcerated 
students on 
IEPs throughout 
the year. 

Teacher/student 
weekly schedules and 
appointments, daily 
rosters of students on 
IEPs 

$26,317.00 $37,796        

1.3 Instructional Staff Professional 
Development Program 
Weekly professional development for 
Endeavor/Voyager staff is designed to meet 
the academic, social, and emotional needs of 
students to maximize academic achievement. 
Professional development is designed for 
teachers, administrators, counselors, and other 
support staff. Topics include (but not limited 
to): 

• Social emotional learning 
• Identifying and implementing best 

instructional practices principally 

X 
 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

Professional 
development for 
Endeavor/Voya
ger staff is 
designed to 
meet the 
academic, 
social, and 
emotional 
needs of 
students to 
maximize 
academic 

Professional 
development calendar, 
materials purchased for 
training 

$1,500.00 $800        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 8 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

directed at meeting the needs of 
English Learners 

• Meeting the needs of Homeless 
students and Foster Youth 

• Multi-Tiered Support System 
(MTSS) 

• Academic Achievement 
 
Teachers are encouraged to seek professional 
development opportunities or conferences 
provided by other educational organizations, 
aside from those provided by MCSOS, cited 
Goal 1 Action 5. 
 
 
 
 
 

achievement. 
Professional 
development 
will also focus 
on 
identifying/imple
menting best 
instructional 
practices 
principally 
directed at 
meeting the 
needs of 
English 
Learners. 
 
Professional 
development is 
designed for 
teachers, 
administrators, 
counselors, and 
other support 
staff. Teachers 
are encouraged 
to seek 
professional 
development 
opportunities or 
conferences 
provided by 
other 
educational 
organizations, 
aside from 
those provided 
by MCSOS. 
 

1.4 Low-Income Students to Make Academic 
Progress in Math 
School year 2024-25 i-Ready results indicate 
0% of Low-Income students are at grade level 
in Math, and the sample size of students was 
too small to provide meaningful achievement 
data from CAASPP results. 

X 
 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

All teachers 
receive 
instructional 
support from a 
Math expert 
from Fresno 
County 

Professional 
development calendar, 
shared resources 
 
**No materials needed 
as of mid-year 
reporting 

$800.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 9 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
MCSOS will contract with the Fresno County 
Superintendent of Schools to provide 
instructional staff with professional 
development opportunities in Math. 
 
Since students enrolled at Endeavor/Voyager 
are significantly behind in mathematics, 
teachers need to be able to provide math 
instruction to students at varying levels of 
ability.  Formative and summative math 
assessments, indicate that students are not 
progressing in mathematics and are at risk of 
not fulfilling high school diploma requirements.  
To better assist Low-Income students, MCSOS 
will contract with the Fresno County 
Superintendent of Schools to provide 
instructional staff with professional 
development opportunities in Math.  
Professional development sessions for 
teachers and Instructional Assistants will 
include effective instructional practices, 
curriculum support, and mathematical 
strategies for use in classrooms. 
       
 
 
 
 

Superintendent 
of Schools by 
way of monthly 
training in a 
whole group 
setting. 
Furthermore, 
math teacher 
attended a math 
conference in 
December 2025 
to improve 
instructional 
practices. 
(Conference 
funds spent 
accounted for in 
item 1.5.) 

 

1.5 Retain Highly Effective Teachers Through 
Individualized Professional Development 
To positively affect academic achievement of 
Low-Income students, English Learners, and 
Foster Youth in ELA, math and English 
language proficiency, MCSOS will provide high 
quality professional development to increase 
teacher and staff effectiveness. Building 
teacher capacity in this manner will increase 
staff retention and contribute to a positive 
working environment. Teachers are 
encouraged to seek professional growth 
opportunities or conferences from other 
educational organizations to improve their 
instructional practices and increase student 

X 
 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

Endeavor/Voya
ger instructional 
staff participate 
in a weekly 
ongoing 
professional 
development 
program 
designed to 
improve student 
achievement 
and teacher/IA 
efficacy. 
Teachers have 
participated in 
training related 

Conference fees and 
professional 
development materials 

$2,800.00 $2,595        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 10 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

achievement in the areas of ELA, designated 
English language development and math.       
 
 
 
 

to the WASC 
Self Study, 
Foster 
Youth/Homeles
s, Project 
Protect, Suicide 
Awareness and 
Prevention, and 
LCAP training. 
Teachers are 
encourage to 
seek relevant 
professional 
development 
offered by other 
educational 
agencies as 
well. 

1.6 Provide Instructional Support and 
Instructional Materials to Increase Student 
Achievement in ELA and Math 
To increase student performance in ELA and 
Mathematics, Endeavor/Voyager staff will 
provide supplemental instructional support and 
be provided supplemental instructional 
materials to support students' academic 
growth as measured by SBAC ELA and 
Mathematics assessments. Results will be 
analyzed by administrators, teachers, and 
academic counselors to improve instruction 
and close achievement gaps. Replacement of 
books in the school book repository will be 
needed for all students to have access to the 
necessary subjects for credit recovery and 
advancement. Access to texts and instructional 
materials will improve academic performance.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Instructional 
staff members 
provide services 
to students. 
Additional staff 
members 
provide 
administrative 
support, 
secretarial 
support, and 
administration 
of the overall 
program. 
Additionally, 
supplies and 
instructional 
materials 
purchased to 
support the 
mission of the 
school. 

Staff members, 
supplies, instructional 
materials 

$236,081.00 $118,040        

1.7 Maintain Low Student to Teacher Ratio 
Student to teacher ratio should be 16:1, but 
during the 2024-25 school year, 
Endeavor/Voyager was below 10:1. Having an 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

Incarcerated 
students have 
significant 
needs during 

Student enrollment to 
teacher ratio 

$421,279.00 $210,639        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 11 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

extra teacher allows students to receive 
increased individualized support from all 
teachers, since the student to teacher ratio is 
significantly lower. Low-Income students are 
significantly behind grade level as measured 
by i-Ready assessments for ELA and Math. 
Students will improve academic achievement 
in ELA and Math through the increased 
support and availability of teachers. The 
additional teacher allows students to benefit 
from increased, in-person course offerings. 
 
In order to support those teachers and 
students in making academic progress and 
stronger social-emotional relationships, an 
Instructional Assistant will provide additional 
support to Low-Income students, English 
Learners, and Foster Youth. Program Director 
maintains communication with Deputy Chief 
Probation Officer to discuss changes in 
student enrollment. 
       
 
 
 
 

their periods of 
incarceration 
which requires 
greater 
academic 
support. E/V 
staff consists of 
4 full time 
teachers and an 
Instructional 
Assistant to 
support 
approximately 
38 students for 
all curricular 
needs. 

1.8 English Learner Support 
Endeavor/Voyager will provide English 
Language Development (ELD) instruction to 
support students’ language acquisition and 
increased access to core curriculum. 
Endeavor/Voyager is providing professional 
development and coaching to support teachers 
in their instruction for ELD.  Endeavor/Voyager 
will provide English Language Development 
(ELD) supplemental materials and additional 
supports to English Learners who experience 
academic difficulties. 
 
The MCSOS Program Director- ELA/ELD will 
provide coaching and professional 
development for staff in instructional best 
practices to improve language proficiency and 
increase the number of students meeting the 
criteria for RFEP. 

 
 

Engl
ish 

Lear
ners 

 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

MCSOS 
ELA/ELD 
Program 
Director 
provides a 
Bilingual 
Network 
program for all 
CAES ELD 
teachers for 
discussing 
latest 
instructional 
practices, 
ELPAC testing 
procedures and 
requirements, 
student 
outcome data, 

Monthly Bilingual 
Network Meetings, 
weekly teacher 
observations, and 
coaching feedback 
meetings 

$20,293.00 $10,147        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 12 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

       
 
 
 
 

as well as 
provides 
teacher 
observation and 
relevant teacher 
feedback of 
instructional 
practice 
success. 

1.9 Provide Intervention and Instructional 
Support for Struggling Learners 
Endeavor/Voyager staff will provide 
intervention and instructional support for 
students' academic growth as measured by 
SBAC, ELPAC, and i-Ready formative ELA 
and Math assessments. Formative and 
summative assessments will be administered 
by teachers, and results will be disaggregated 
by administrators, program director, teachers 
and school counselors. An Instructional 
Assistant will provide direct support to Low-
Income and EL students.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

An Instructional 
Assistant 
provides 
intensive 
support for all 
students not 
performing at 
grade level in 
Reading and/or 
Math. Students 
are assigned 
prescriptive 
lessons by i-
Ready to 
address subskill 
weaknesses. 

Instructional Assistant 
provides direct 
assistance to students 
daily for students 
requiring support in 
reading/math 

$63,727.00 $31,863        

1.10 i-Ready Assessments for Grade Level 
Proficiency 
Because CAASPP summative assessments do 
not provide data due to the small sample size, 
i-Ready formative assessments will provide 
actionable student data for ELA and math.  
Teachers will use formative i-Ready 
assessments and prescriptive lessons to help 
students become more academically proficient. 
Teachers will assign i-Ready lessons as part of 
the required classwork to support learning and 
increase academic proficiency. 
 
Teachers will use formative i-Ready math 
assessments and prescriptive lessons to help 
students become more academically proficient. 
Teachers will assign i-Ready math lessons as 
part of the required classwork to support 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

i-Ready 
assessments 
have been 
administered to 
students twice 
during this 
academic year 
and 32% of 
assessed 
students have 
shown growth in 
Reading over 
this time last 
year. Students 
have shown 
growth 29% in 
Math during the 

Instructional Assistant 
provides direct support 
to students daily for 
students, IReady 
results 

$4,800.00 $2,300        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 13 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

learning and increase academic proficiency. 
The instructional assistant will assist low-
performing students with additional support. 
Additional instructional materials will be 
purchased to support classroom instruction, as 
needed. Data from state assessments is 
contingent on a minimum number of students 
completing assessments, so that data is not 
reliable as it is not available on a yearly basis. 
       
 
 
 
 

same time 
frame. 

1.11 Increase Students Completing CTE 
Courses 
To provide Low-Income students with access 
to an in-person CTE elective course, a teacher 
will provide weekly instruction.  An Introduction 
to Welding course will be continued with virtual 
welders to create a virtual welding scenario in 
a safe environment.  Student interest in 
welding will increase student enrollment in 
CTE courses upon release to their home 
districts.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

CTE teacher 
provides weekly 
instruction in 
"Virtual 
Welding" which 
includes the use 
of virtual 
welders. The 
expectation at 
the end of the 
course is for the 
student to be 
able to apply 
skills and theory 
learned in the 
class and be 
able to apply to 
a regular 
Welding class 
upon return 
enrollment to 
local school 
after period of 
incarceration. 
During the first 
semester, 
students also 
attended hands 
on learning 
experiences in 

Edgenuity credits 
earned for CTE 
courses online 

$58,425.00 $11,862        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 14 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

the welding 
shop. 

1.12 Academic and Social Emotional Counseling 
for At-Promise Students 
A School Counselor will facilitate updated 
credit evaluations so teachers can assign 
appropriate coursework for each student. All 
students enrolled in Endeavor/Voyager for at 
least 15 days are eligible to earn partial 
credits, which will be forwarded to home 
districts upon student release. 
 
A School Counselor will grade-level reclassify 
all qualifying students based on credits earned 
as opposed to years in high school. In addition, 
school counselors screen students for 
Assembly Bills (ABs) or other appropriate ABs 
to determine qualification for modified 
graduation requirements. Upon satisfying 
requirements for any of the programs, 
appropriate courses will be assigned, as the 
graduation requirements may change. 
Counselor to inform counseling specialist and 
teachers to ensure records are updated and 
enrollment in appropriate courses. 
 
School Counselor will also work with students 
on supporting social-emotional development 
through teaching, modeling, and practicing 
social-emotional skills that support a safe and 
positive climate for learning. 
 
Endeavor/Voyager staff will work with a 
counseling specialist to maintain 
communication with home districts of all 
students enrolled in Endeavor/Voyager to 
ensure appropriate credits are assigned and 
minimize loss of credits toward graduation. 
       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

School 
Counselor 
works with 
students on 
supporting SEL 
needs through 
teaching, 
modeling, and 
practicing 
social-emotional 
skills that 
support a safe 
and positive 
climate for 
learning. 
Biweekly SEL 
check-ins are 
completed by 
students to 
identify 
emotional 
support needs 
and results are 
communicated 
with pertinent 
staff. 
Appropriate 
credits are 
assigned and 
records with 
district of 
residence are 
updated soon to 
minimize loss of 
credits and 
progress toward 
graduation 

Staff, counseling 
support and student 
counseling, student 
information system 
support, state 
assessments support 

$54,897.00 $26,454        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 15 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

1.13 Create Individual Progress Plans and 
Career Assessment Surveys 
The School Counselor will meet with all 
students enrolled greater than 15 days in 
Endeavor/Voyager to complete Individual 
Progress Plan and Career Assessment 
Survey.  The school counselor will also assist 
graduating high school students with 
registration at Madera Community College and 
completion of FAFSA documents.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

By January 30, 
2026, all 
students will 
complete an 
Individual 
Transition/ 
Progress Plan 
Survey. School 
counselor 
meets with all 
seniors 
individually to 
assist with 
college 
matriculation 
and financial aid 
applications. 
Group meetings 
are held with all 
students to 
review post-
secondary 
options. Career 
Assessments 
will be 
conducted 
Spring 2026. 

College enrollment, 
FAFSA completion 
 
**No materials needed 
as of mid-year 
reporting 
 

$300.00 $0        

1.14 Provide Credit Recovery Options for Low-
Income Students 
Endeavor/Voyager students come from various 
districts within Madera County and other 
counties as well. Furthermore, the most 
students are significantly credit deficient. To 
help students recover credits needed to fulfill 
graduation requirements, online platforms such 
as Edgenuity are part of the educational 
program. Students needing to complete A-G 
courses and increased CTE offerings will 
benefit from this option. Teachers and 
instructional assistants will also be able to 
provide additional student support. Partial 
credits will be awarded for students who get 
released prior to the end of the semester. 
Academic counselor, counseling specialist, 
and administrators will ensure academic 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Endeavor/Voya
ger students 
use Edgenuity 
platform as 
needed to earn 
high school 
credits toward 
graduation 
including. 

Number of students 
enrolled in Edgenuity 
courses, academic 
credits earned 

$30,600.00 $29,000        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 16 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

records are obtained and provided in a timely 
manner to districts of residence.       
 
 
 
 

1.15 Access to a Broad Course of Study for 
Low-Income Students 
The Endeavor/Voyager staff is committed to 
making certain all students have equitable 
access to a broad, high-quality course of 
study, participating in a full curriculum that 
includes science, social studies, and the arts.  
Since the circumstances of incarcerated youth 
preclude some of the activities of traditional 
school setting, software and technology will be 
provided to allow the broadest possible access 
within the parameters allowed for our students.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Materials and 
supplies are 
purchased to 
support the 
academic needs 
of every 
students 
through the use 
of textbooks 
and online 
courses to meet 
high school 
graduation 
requirements. 
This includes 
chromebook 
replacements 
as needed for 
coursework 
completion. 

Device replacements, 
fees for course 
licenses 

$2,500.00 $4,470        

1.16 Academic Supports for Students at Gould 
Education Center 
All Gould Education Center classroom staff will 
be trained and coached in utilizing the adopted 
ELA, ELD, and Math curricula in their 
classrooms on a consistent basis.  Staff will be 
trained and coached on strategies to maximize 
student engagement by incorporating 
appropriate accommodations, behavior 
supports, technology, and differentiation 
strategies to meet the unique needs of the 
Gould students, specifically those who are 
English Learners and Hispanic students.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 

Hisp
anic 
and 
Engl
ish 

Lear
ners 

 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

All Gould staff 
engage in 
ongoing 
professional 
development 
and coaching in 
utilizing the 
adopted ELA, 
ELD, and Math 
curricula. 
Beginning in 
August 2025 
staff engaged in 
multiple days of 
professional 
development 
targeted on 
maximizing 

Monthly professional 
development training, 
additional staff days, 
curriculum purchases 

$20,000.00 $38,700        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 17 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

student 
engagement, 
providing 
appropriate 
differentiation 
strategies, 
accommodation
s, behavioral 
support, and 
technology to 
meet the unique 
needs of Gould 
students, 
specifically 
those who are 
English 
Language 
Learners and 
Hispanic 
students. On a 
monthly basis, 
administrators 
meet with their 
staff to continue 
teacher support, 
coaching and 
professional 
development. 
Teachers are 
also invited to 
attend non-
mandatory 
monthly teacher 
trainings on a 
variety of topics. 
 
 

1.17 Support Students Toward Graduation 
The school counselor will maintain 
communication with home districts of all 
students enrolled in Endeavor/Voyager to 
ensure students progress toward meeting all 
graduation requirements of their home 
districts. All students enrolled in 
Endeavor/Voyager at least 15 days are eligible 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Partially 
Implemented 

Since October 
2025, Aftercare 
Liaison has 
been onboarded 
to provide post-
incarceration 
support to 
returning 

Student and Parent 
phone calls and 
meetings, connections 
and/or with district 
representatives, 
PowerSchool entries 

$166,385.00 $10,036        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 18 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

to earn partial credits toward requirements. An 
Aftercare Liaison will assist all students 
returning to their home districts for the 
purposes of reengaging with their home 
school, setting up support once enrolled, and 
provide ongoing support through graduation to 
reduce school dropouts.       
 
 
 
 

students back to 
their respective 
districts of 
residence. 

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 19 of 44 

Goal 2 
Goal Description 
MCSOS will provide resources and services to improve the social-emotional well-being of each student and provide a safe and conducive learning 
environment.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

2.1 California School Dashboard: 
Chronic Absenteeism (K-8) 
        

Data not reported on 
the 2023 California 
School Dashboard due 
to a cohort number 
below 11 students. 
 
Local data show 0% of 
students were 
chronically absent in 
2022- 23. 
 

Data not reported on 
the 2024 California 
School Dashboard for 
Juvenile Hall 
(Endeavor/Voyager 
Secondary) due to a 
cohort number below 
11 students K-8. 
 
2.5% of students were 
chronically absent in 
Juvenile Hall 
(Endeavor/ Voyager 
Secondary) (9-12) 
 
[2024 Data Quest] 
 

 As of 1/15/26, Data 
Quest shows 1.7% of 
students were 
chronically absent in 
2024-25. 
 
[2025 Data Quest] 
 

0% 
 
[2026 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

2.2 Number of Annual Presentations to 
Students        

There were seven 
presentations to 
students during the 
2023-24 school year. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

As of May 1, 2025, 
there were four 
presentations to 
students during the 
2024-25 school year. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 Four (4) presentations 
to students as of 
1/15/26 and seven (7) 
planned for the second 
semester. 
 
[205-26 Local Data] 
 

There will be 10 
presentations to 
students during the 
2026-27 school year. 
 
[2027 Local Data] 
 

2.3 Percentage of Students 
Participating in Learning 
Opportunities Outside of the 
Classroom        

In school year 2023-
24, 100% of students 
participated in learning 
opportunities outside 
the classroom. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

In school year 2024-
25, 100% of students 
participated in learning 
opportunities outside 
the classroom. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 As of 1/15/26, 100% of 
students participated 
in learning 
opportunities outside 
the classroom. 
 
[2025-2026 Local 
Data] 
 

In school year 2026-
27, 100% of students 
participated in learning 
opportunities outside 
the classroom. 
 
[2027 Local Data] 
 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 20 of 44 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
2.4 School Climate Survey: 

Percentage of Students 
Responding they Feel Safe and 
Connected to School        

Students responding 
that they feel safe at 
school -- 97.4%. 
 
Students responding 
that they feel 
connected to school -- 
96.2%. 
 
[2024 Local Climate 
Surveys] 
 

Students responding 
that they feel safe at 
school -- 94.9%. 
 
Students responding 
that they feel 
connected to school -- 
90.8%. 
 
[2025 Local Climate 
Surveys] 
 

 TBD Spring 2026. 
 
[2026 Local Climate 
Surveys] 
 

Students responding 
that they feel safe at 
school -- 100%. 
 
Students responding 
that they feel 
connected to school -- 
100%. 
 
[2027 Local Climate 
Surveys] 
 

2.5 California School Dashboard: 
Suspension Rate 
        

0% for Juvenile Hall 
(Endeavor/Voyager 
Secondary) 
 
[2023 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

0% for Juvenile Hall 
(Endeavor/ 
Voyager Secondary) 
 
[2024 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

 4.6% for Juvenile Hall 
(Endeavor/Voyager 
Secondary) 
 
[2025 California 
School Dashboard]. 
 

0% for 
Endeavor/Voyager 
Secondary 
 
[2026 California 
School Dashboard] 
 

2.6 Attendance Rate        99.8% 
 
[2024 Local 
Calculation] 
 

99.7% 
 
[2025 Local 
Calculation] 
 

 Student attendance 
rate as of 12/13/25 
99.7% 
 
[Fall 2025 Local 
Calculation] 
 

100% attendance rate 
 
[Local data] 
 

2.7 Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT)        FIT in October 2023 
scored 
Endeavor/Voyager in 
"Good Repair". 

MET -- Results 
reported 
 
FIT scored 
Endeavor/Voyager in 
"Good Repair". 
 
[June, 2025, Local 
Indicators Report to 
the Board] 
 

 FIT in October 2025 
scored 
Endeavor/Voyager in 
"Good Repair" 

FIT in October 2026 
will score 
Endeavor/Voyager in 
"Good Repair" or 
better. 

2.8 High School Dropout Rate        Not reported on 
DataQuest due to low 
number of students in 
the cohort. 
 
[2023 DataQuest] 

Not reported on 
DataQuest due to low 
number of students in 
the cohort. 
 

 Not reported on 
DataQuest due to low 
number of students in 
the cohort. 
 

0% 
 
[2026 DataQuest] 
 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 21 of 44 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
 [2024 DataQuest] 

 
[2025 DataQuest] 
 

2.9 Expulsion Rate        0% 
 
[2023 DataQuest] 
 

0% 
 
[2024 DataQuest] 
 

 0% 
 
[2025 DataQuest] 
 

0% 
 
[2026 DataQuest] 
 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

2.1 Increase Student Attendance Rates 
Students in Endeavor/Voyager have 
historically high levels of truancy and academic 
struggles while in their districts of residence.  
All teachers will create a positive learning 
environment to encourage students to attend 
class. Although students are incarcerated, they 
do have the option to not attend class. 
Teachers, academic counselor and Program 
Director to participate in monthly Treatment 
Team meetings with corrections staff to learn 
of issues and potential available support for 
students who are struggling with incarceration, 
which can impact school attendance. Staff 
members will provide students with incentives 
for excellent attendance.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

Staff members 
participate in 
monthly team 
treatment 
meetings to 
continually learn 
how best to 
support 
students and 
help maintain 
students on 
track toward 
completing 
courses and 
graduation 
requirements. 
Positive 
behaviors and 
attendance 
allow students 
to earn points to 
be used in 
Rosa's Pantry. 
Students 
traditionally do 
not miss school 
because of the 
connectedness 
to a committed 
staff. 

Attendance rate of  
99.7% as of 12/13/25. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

$1,200.00 $842        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 22 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

2.2 Counseling Presentations 
School counselors present or invite guest 
presenters to provide information on resources 
and services available to students upon their 
release, and some that may be available 
during their incarceration. Presentations 
include topics such as workforce preparation, 
college registration, financial aid, Job Corps, 
and other topics of interest. In addition, Rotary 
Club speakers are invited by the ELA teacher 
to provide valuable information on resources in 
Madera County. The "Wreaths Across 
America" program is also invited to present so 
that students can support the organization's 
efforts.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Four 
presentations to 
students as of 
1/17/25 and 
seven more are 
planned for the 
second 
semester. 
Planned 
presentation 
topics include 
Tobacco//Vapin
g prevention, 
Nutrition, 
Community 
College 
information, 
Suicide 
Preventions 
awareness and 
others of benefit 
to students. 

Presentation materials, 
scheduling with 
teachers 

$0.00 $200        

2.3 Increase Student Participation 
Extended learning opportunities, including field 
trips and guest presentations allow students 
more enriched learning. Teachers will plan 
field trips and guest presenters that enhance 
student learning and increase connectedness 
to school. Some field trip destinations now 
allow for virtual access, which can also 
contribute to learning goals.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

Seven students 
have 
participated in 
community 
service activity 
Wreaths Across 
America and 13 
students in 
athletics 
competitions, as 
well as 
poetry/essay 
contest held 
locally and at 
Fresno State, 
with additional 
sporting events 
scheduled in 
Spring 2026. 
There have 
been 5 students 
participate in 

Student participation in 
athletic competitions 
and academic 
presentations, 
probation bucks for 
Rosa's Pantry 

$1,000.00 $200        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 23 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Speech/Essay 
contests. 

2.4 Behavioral Health Interventions and 
Support Services 
When students feel physically, cognitively, and 
emotionally safe, they are better able to 
optimize their learning capacity. ParentSquare 
allows safe and effective communication 
between school staff and parents. Teachers 
will teach, model, and practice social-
emotional skills that promote a safe learning 
environment.  School counselors will provide 
lessons on a variety of topics that affect social-
emotional learning and better equip students to 
cope with challenges to academic 
achievement. 
 
A school counselor, RSP teacher, and school 
psychologist will provide services to students 
that support academic needs and teach skills 
to cope with difficulties. A small student to 
teacher ratio also contributes to positive school 
environment by allowing teachers to develop 
stronger teacher to student relationships. 
       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

The contracted 
school 
psychologist 
time allocated 
currently meets 
the needs of 
students on 
IEPs. In addition 
to this position, 
Madera County 
Superintendent 
of Schools 
partners with 
Camarena 
Health Services 
for the 
administration 
of a Navigators 
program which 
provides 
services to 
students at no 
cost to families. 

Treatment team 
meeting participation, 
referral form, IEPs 

$17,100.00 $11,162        

2.5 Suspension Rates 
Reduce suspensions by creating opportunities 
for students to increase connectedness to 
school. Regular communication with teachers, 
administrators, and families will help support 
students' needs. Behavioral concerns will be 
addressed and communicated to provide 
appropriate interventions. Parent conferences 
help communication between home and 
school, as well as other reporting opportunities 
like student report cards, progress reporting 
and regular calls home. Communication and 
collaboration with correctional staff will also 
contribute to students feeling more connected 
to school.       

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Increased 
communication 
with all 
educational 
partners is the 
key to success 
when working 
with 
incarcerated 
youth. The most 
difficult 
connection for 
educational staff 
to make is with 
parents, and 

At present there have 
not been any cost 
items but presentations 
build capacity for staff 
to be aware of potential 
concerns. Per 2025 CA 
School Dashboard is 
4.6% 

$0.00 $160.87        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 24 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
 
 
 

Parent Square 
removes that 
barrier. Staff 
maintain 
communications 
with families for 
the best intent 
for working with 
incarcerated 
youth. 

2.6 Positive Student Recognition Program 
Endeavor/Voyager administration, school 
counselors, teachers, and other staff will plan 
and conduct ongoing student recognition to 
build connections to the school community, 
affect positive school culture, and outreach to 
parents. Students are recognized by teachers 
for academic progress, attendance, and 
citizenship awards. Support staff will contact 
parents via ParentSquare as well.       
 
 
 
 

 
X 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

Endeavor/Voya
ger students are 
recognized 
monthly by staff 
to acknowledge 
positive 
behavior and 
academic 
achievement. 

5 students have been 
recognized for student 
of the month as of 
1/15/26. 
 
**No materials needed 
as of mid-year 
reporting 
 

$1,000.00 $0        

2.7 Climate Survey Responses 
Endeavor/Voyager staff will engage with 
parents through various communication 
methods to increase the number of climate 
survey responses and to continue to improve 
climate survey satisfaction results. Increased 
survey responses will support stronger 
connections between families and school.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Students, 
Parents will be 
given LCAP 
surveys 
beginning 
February 3, 
2026, which 
contains 
questions 
directly tied to 
school climate. 

LCAP Survey 
responses from 
students and parents 
 
Spring 2026 
 

$0.00 $0        

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 25 of 44 

Goal 3 
Goal Description 
Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation outreach in order to increase student engagement, achievement and 
social-emotional well-being.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

3.1 Percentage of Parents of Low-
Income Students Using 
ParentSquare to Communicate 
with the School        

100% of parents Low-
Income students are in 
contact with teachers 
via ParentSquare 
texting feature. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

100% of parents of 
Low-Income students 
are in contact with 
teachers via phone 
calls and 86% are 
contactable through 
the ParentSquare 
texting feature. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 100% of parents of 
Low Income students 
are in contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare texting 
feature. 
 
[2026 Local Data] 
 

100% of parents of 
Low-Income students 
will be in contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare texting 
feature. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.2 Percentage of Parents of English 
Learners Using ParentSquare to 
Communicate with the School        

100% of parents of 
English Learners are 
in contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare texting 
feature. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

100% of parents of 
English Learners are 
in contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare texting 
feature. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 100% of parents of 
English Learners are 
in contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare texting 
feature. 
 
[2026 Local Data] 
 

100% of parents of 
English Learners will 
be in contact with 
teachers via 
ParentSquare texting 
feature. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.3 Number of Parents Attending 
School Events        

10 parents/family 
members attended 
high school graduation 
ceremony during 
2023-24. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

12 parents/family 
members attended 
school events, 
including speech and 
poetry contests. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 As of 1/19/26 , 51 
parents  and 
community members 
attended school 
events, including, 
Martin Luther King 
Speech Contest, 
Rotary Speech 
Contest, and Cadet 
Academy Graduations. 
 
[2026 Local Data] 
 

20 parents/family 
members will attend 
school events in 2026-
27. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.4 Percentage of Teachers Making 
ParentSquare Log Entries        

100% of Teachers 
were provided access 

100% of Teachers 
were provided access 

 100% of Teachers 
were provided access 

100% of Teachers will 
provide access to 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 26 of 44 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
to PowerSchool to log 
entries in 2023-24. 
 
2024 [Local Data] 
 

to PowerSchool to log 
entries in 2024-25. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

to PowerSchool to log 
home communication 
entries. 
 
[2026 Local Data] 
 

PowerSchool to log 
entries in 2026-27. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.5 Number of Parents Attending 
Endeavor/Voyager Parent 
Meetings        

No parents of English 
Learner students and 
one parent of a Low-
Income student 
attended a Parent 
Advisory Committee 
(PAC) meeting during 
Fall 2023. 
 
2023-24 [Local Data] 
 

No parents of English 
Learner or Low-
Income students 
attended a Parent 
Advisory Committee 
(PAC) meeting during 
Fall 2023. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 No parents of English 
Learner students or 
Low-Income student 
attended a Parent 
Advisory Committee 
(PAC) meeting during 
Fall 2025. 

5 parents of English 
Learner students and 
5 parents of a Low-
Income student will 
attend Parent Advisory 
Committee (PAC) in 
2026-27. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.6 Percentage of Foster Youth 
Caregiver Participation in Monthly 
Workshops.        

In 2023-24, 9% of 
Madera County 
caregivers have 
participated in monthly 
workshops. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

During the 2024-2025 
school year, 14% of 
Madera County 
caregivers participated 
in monthly workshops. 
 
[2025 Local Data, 
Foster Focus] 
 

 24% of Madera 
County Foster Youth 
caregivers have 
participated in monthly 
workshops. 
 
[2026 Local Data] 
 

In 2026-27, 25% of 
Madera County 
caregivers will 
participate in monthly 
workshops. 
 
[Local Data] 
 

3.7 Percentage of caregivers of CAES 
foster youth using ParentSquare to 
communicate with Foster 
Youth/Homeless Education staff        

Using ParentSquare to 
communicate 
specifically with CAES 
foster youth caregivers 
and homeless 
education parents will 
be new in the 2024-
2025 school year. 
Currently, 0 parents 
use this feature for 
Foster Youth. 
 
[2023-24 Local Data] 
 

14 CAES 
foster/homeless 
families used 
ParentSquare during 
the 2024-2025 year to 
communicate with 
school staff. 
 
[2024-2025 Local 
Data] 
 

 100% of CAES foster 
youth caregivers and 
homeless education 
parents are using the 
"Smart Alerts" text 
feature for workshops 
and field trip notices. 
 
[2025-26 Local Data] 
 

100% of CAES  foster 
youth caregivers and 
homeless parents will 
communicate directly 
with Foster Youth staff 
via ParentSquare 
 
[Local Survey Data] 
 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 27 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

3.1 Promote School Communication 
ParentSquare, which allows for two-way 
communication between school and home, 
and phone calls for school events will be used 
for contacting all families. All communication 
will be provided in English and Spanish so 
parents of English Learner students are kept 
equally informed of school news and events. 
 
Translations of announcements and 
documents through ParentSquare will provide 
opportunities for parents to provide feedback 
through surveys distributed through 
ParentSquare. 
       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

School to home 
communication 
is documented 
in PowerSchool 
log entries or in 
ParentSquare 
posts or 
messages sent 
to multiple 
families or 
individually. 
These logs 
allow 
subsequent 
conversations 
with families to 
be more 
effective and 
ensure 
educational 
partners are 
informed. 

DTS contracts, 
ParentSquare fees 

$1,200.00 $283        

3.2 Promote Participation of Families of 
English Learners 
Spanish is the primary language of more than 
99% of English Learner students enrolled in 
Endeavor/Voyager. By utilizing both Parent 
Square translation services (embedded in the 
program) and DTS translations of school 
documents including SARC and LCAP, 
Endeavor/Voyager staff will increase 
participation of parents of English Learners 
through personal invitations via phone calls 
from administrators, academic counselors, or 
other support staff. Parent consultation and 
feedback meetings for the purpose of English 
Learner reclassification will also provide 
opportunities for parents to provide feedback. 
ParentSquare translates communications to 
the language of English Learner students' 
parents. Administrator, School Counselor, 
Instructional Assistant and support staff are 
Spanish-speaking and facilitate clear and 
prompt communication.       
 

 
 

Engl
ish 

Lear
ners 

 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Staff uses 
complete 
translations on 
all 
programmatic 
documents 
shared with 
parents and 
guardians. Staff 
also uses DTS 
for school 
accountability 
reports and 
plans that are 
translated as 
well. 
ParentSquare 
also has instant 
translations into 
17 languages. 

DTS fees for 
translations, Student 
and Parent LCAP 
Surveys to be 
completed February 
2026, 81% of parents 
access ParentSquare 

$1,500.00 $412        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 28 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

 
 
 

3.3 Increase Parent/Guardian Involvement and 
Attendance at School Functions 
Endeavor/Voyager staff will Increase parent 
participation at school events and informational 
meetings to support identified needs of 
families. The Voyager program hosts Cadet 
Academy Graduation ceremonies throughout 
the year and parents will be invited to attend. 
Parents can attend athletic competitions and/or 
academic competitions. There are additional 
advisory committees for students and families 
to provide input on programmatic 
improvements. Families requiring 
transportation will be provided Madera Area 
Express tickets/vouchers to access 
transportation to attend school events.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

Parent and 
family members 
have attended 
speech contests 
and Cadet 
Academy 
graduations. 
Parents also 
attend IEP 
meetings, 
college 
matriculation, 
and FAFSA 
application 
meetings. 

ParentSquare usage 
by staff and parents, 
LCAP Surveys, student 
and family events on 
campus 
 
**No materials needed 
as of mid-year 
reporting 
 

$500.00 $0        

3.4 Maintain High Level of Home-School 
Communication 
Endeavor/Voyager staff will ensure the 
requiring of communication to the parents of 
students by documentation of all 
communication in ParentSquare by teachers, 
on a daily basis for students on their schedule.  
Administrators, counselors, and other support 
staff will also log communication with students 
and parents. Documentation will contribute to 
effective communication by all staff, especially 
administrators and academic counselors, while 
meeting with parents to discuss successes or 
concerns about their child's academic 
progress.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

School 
administrators 
participate in 
Madera County 
COMPACT, 
FRESNO ROP, 
Juvenile Justice 
Coalition 
Committee 
meetings, 
meetings with 
probation 
partners, 
counselors 
partner with 
Madera 
Community 
College for Reg-
To-Go, CTE 
teachers meet 
with advisory 

Zoom subscriptions for 
meetings, participation 
in meetings 

$0.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 29 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

committee 
members to 
discuss current 
trends and 
needs of 
preparing 
students for 
career 
opportunities 
after graduation. 

3.5 Increase Educational Partner Input and 
Participation 
The Program Director will work with 
correctional staff to make accommodations for 
school/student related meetings to be held on-
site to increase parent attendance, including 
the Parent Advisory Council (PAC), School 
Site Council (SSC) and English Learner 
Advisory Committee (ELAC).  Input from 
families will help establish informational 
meeting topics of interest to provide families 
with resources and skills to support their 
student's academic and social-emotional 
needs. Partnerships with Madera County 
Department of Public/Behavioral Health will 
provide local resources accessible to families 
in Madera County.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

Yes     Fully 
Implemented 

Zoom meetings 
allow for full, 
virtual 
participation 
from parents of 
students in 
Endeavor/Voya
ger school 
programs. This 
has increased 
participation 
from staff, 
students, and 
correctional 
staff for input 
meetings. 

81% of students 
access ParentSquare, 
use by staff and 
parents, LCAP 
Surveys, student and 
family events on 
campus 
 
 

$500.00 $90        

3.6 Foster Youth and Homeless Students 
Coordinate monthly workshops to inform 
caregivers about the unique needs of Foster 
and Homeless Youth. Workshop topics include 
AB490/McKinney-Vento, overview of 
resources and support services, trauma 
informed Strategies for Behavior at Home, 
Ensuring Healthy Relationships for Youth, 
Suicide Awareness, Supporting Youth through 
Early College Awareness and Preparation, the 
Special Education Process, and Human 
Trafficking Awareness; Ensure caregiver 
accessibility by providing virtual opportunities 

X 
 
 

Yes     Ongoing 
Implementation 

Four (4) 
caregiver 
workshops have 
been provided 
for caregivers. A 
virtual option is 
also made 
available to 
ensure access 
to all caregivers 
county-wide. 
The county 
FYSCP 

ParentSquare, 
workshop and 
presentation 
attendance 

$1,000.00 $1,207        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 30 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

to participate. Promote the usage of 
ParentSquare for on-going communication 
between parents and foster/homeless 
education staff.       
 
 
 
 

program started 
using 
ParentSquare to 
inform 
caregivers 
about college 
field trips, 
College & 
Career 
Workshops for 
students, senior 
workshops, and 
Parent 
Connection 
Workshops. 

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 31 of 44 

Goal 4 
Goal Description 
By June, 2027, 100% of Endeavor/Voyager students will show at least one year growth on i-Ready diagnostic assessments in Math and contribute to a greater 
number of students earning  academic credits to meet graduation requirements.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

4.1 i-Ready assessments in Math: 
Percentage of Students Showing 
Growth 
        

18% of students are 
performing at or above 
grade-level in 
Reading. 
 
0% at grade level in 
Math. However, Math 
results indicate 9% of 
students showed 
growth of at least one 
grade-level. 
 
[2023-24 iReady 
Diagnostic 
Assessment] 
 

Diagnostic results from 
i-Ready assessments 
for Low-Income 
students completed 
through May 1, 2025, 
yielded 0% of students 
are performing at or 
above grade-level in 
Reading (with 52% 
having showed 
growth) and 0% at 
grade level in Math. 
However, Math results 
indicate 56% of 
students showed 
growth of at least one 
grade-level during the 
second semester. 
 
[2024-25 Local Data] 
 

 0% at grade level in 
Math. However, Math 
results indicate 29% of 
students showed 
growth of at least one 
grade-levels measured 
by i-Ready in Fall 
2025 diagnostics. 
 
[2025-26 2nd i-Ready 
Diagnostic 
Assessment] 
 

100% of 
Endeavor/Voyager 
students will show at 
least one year growth 
on i-Ready diagnostic 
assessments in ELA 
and Math. 

4.2 California School Dashboard: 
Students Graduating with a High 
School Diploma 
        

Two Endeavor 
students graduated 
during the 2023-24 
school year. 
 
[2024 Local Data] 
 

0 Endeavor/ 
Voyager students 
graduated during the 
2024-25 school year. 
 
[2025 Local Data] 
 

 2 Endeavor students 
graduated during the 
first semester of the 
2025-26 school year. 
 
[2025-26 Local Data] 
 

Four Endeavor 
students will graduate 
in the 2026-27 school 
year. 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 32 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

4.1 Math Support Teacher 
Endeavor/Voyager students are enrolling 
significantly deficient in math as measured by 
i-Ready Formative Assessments. Students are 
in need of more intensive, daily math 
instruction as the increased proficiency is 
needed to close the achievement gap for all 
Low Income, English Leaner, and Foster Youth 
students. An additional teacher will be 
assigned to Endeavor/Voyager staff for math 
instruction.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 

No      Fully 
Implemented 

Staff LCAP 
survey results 
and parent input 
highlighted a 
need for daily 
mathematics 
instruction for 
incarcerated 
students. In 
addition, low 
test scores on 
local and state 
mathematics 
assessments 
prompted the 
need of a full-
time math 
teacher 
providing daily 
math instruction 
to all students. 

An additional teacher 
provides daily 
instruction in 
mathematics for 
incarcerated youth 

$155,261.00 $77,630        

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 33 of 44 

Goal 5 
Goal Description 
Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care, including successful transition to post-secondary 
education and/or employment.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

5.1 Number of county-wide meetings, 
professional development/ 
technical assistance opportunities 
provided to LEAs, probation, and 
child welfare services partners.        

During 2023-2024 
school year, the 
FYSCP provided 16 
professional 
development 
opportunities 
 
[2023-24 Local Data] 
 

The FYSCP provided 
14 professional 
development 
opportunities during 
the 2024-2025 school 
year. 
 
[2024-25 Local Data] 
 

 Ten (10) professional 
development 
opportunities have 
been provided to date. 
 
[2025-26 Local Data] 
 

Continue providing at 
least 15 professional 
development 
opportunities annually. 

5.2 Foster youth graduation rate        61% graduation rate 
 
(2022-2023 
DataQuest) 
 

69% graduation rate. 
 
(2023-2024 
DataQuest) 
 

 73% graduation rate. 
 
[2024-25 DataQuest] 
 

100% of Madera 
County Foster Youth 
will graduate 

5.3 Foster youth stability rate        59% stability rate 
 
(2022-2023 
DataQuest) 
 

49% stability rate 
 
(2023-2024 
DataQuest) 
 

 48% stability rate 
 
[2024-25 DataQuest] 
 

Foster youth stability 
rate will match or 
exceed the county-
wide rate 

5.4 Number of LEAs participating in 
monthly advisory council meetings.        

During 2023-2024, six 
LEAs participated in 
monthly advisory 
council meetings 
 
[2023-24 Local Data] 
 

During the 2024-2025 
school year, six LEAs 
participated in monthly 
advisory council 
meetings. 
 
[2024-2025 Local 
Data] 
 

 Six (6) LEAs have 
participated in monthly 
advisory council 
meetings. 
 
[2025-26 Local Data] 
 

100% of LEAs (9) will 
participate in monthly 
advisory council 
meetings 

5.5 Number of parent workshops and 
other opportunities for caregiver 
support provided        

During 2023-2024, six 
parent workshops 
were provided for 
caregivers. 
 
[2023-24 Local Data] 

During the 2024-2025 
school year, 10 parent 
workshops were 
provided for 
caregivers. 
 

 Four (4) parent 
workshops have been 
provided for caregivers 
as of January, 2026. 
 
[2025-26 Local Data] 

Provide 10 workshops 
annually to caregivers 

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 34 of 44 

      
Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 

Data 
Desired Outcome for 

2026-2027 
 [2024-2025 Local 

Data] 
 

 

5.6 Number of county-wide post-
secondary preparation and career 
awareness/readiness opportunities 
provided for foster youth        

During 2023-2024, 14 
post-secondary 
preparation/career 
readiness 
opportunities were 
provided for foster 
youth. 
 
[2023-24 Local Data] 
 

During the 2024-2025 
school year, 23 post-
secondary 
preparation/career 
readiness 
opportunities were 
provided for foster 
youth. 
 
[2024-2025 Local 
Data] 
 

 Eight (8) post-
secondary 
preparation/career 
readiness 
opportunities have 
been provided for 
foster youth. 

Provide 15 or more 
post-secondary/career 
readiness 
opportunities for foster 
youth. 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

5.1 Coordinate county-wide post-secondary 
preparation and awareness activities for 
foster youth students 
The FYSCP will coordinate college 
matriculation and free application for federal 
student aid (FAFSA) support workshops for 
seniors, coordinate quarterly post-secondary 
awareness workshops/guest speakers for high 
school students focused on the different 
systems of higher education and career 
technical education opportunities, coordinate 
monthly parent workshops on topics to 
increase foster youth advocacy and improve 
college/career guidance at home (i.e. AB490, 
Trauma Informed Strategies, Special 
Education, Healthy Relationships, Early 
College Awareness and Preparation, etc.) and 
ensure staff receive training, support and 
resources to implement AB167.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 

Fost
er 

Yout
h 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Two quarterly 
virtual 
workshops for 
seniors have 
been held to 
provide 
additional 
support for 
students to 
complete the 
community 
college 
matriculation 
and financial aid 
process. 
 
Three College & 
Career 
Connection 
monthly 
workshops were 
conducted for 
high school 

Fliers, student sign in 
sheets, caregiver sign 
in sheets 

$273,216.00 $136,608        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 35 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

students 
focused on 
graduation and 
college 
entrance 
requirements, 
post secondary 
options and CA 
college 
education 
systems, career 
exploration and 
financial aid. 
 
Three monthly 
Parent 
Connection 
workshops have 
been provided 
for caregivers 
with information 
on various 
topics. To date, 
information on 
the following 
topics has been 
provided: 
AB490, School 
Technology, 
Strategies for 
Supporting the 
Academic 
Success of 
Students, 
Substance Use 
Awareness, 
Mental Health 
Awareness & 
Prevention. A 
consistent 
group of 8 - 10 
caregivers have 
attended these 
workshops 
throughout the 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 36 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

fall semester. 
An AB167 
training/overvie
w was provided 
to LEA liaisons, 
social services 
educational 
liaisons, and 
CASA partners 
during 
September's 
Executive 
Advisory 
Council 
meeting. 
 

5.2 Coordinate county-wide career awareness 
and readiness activities for foster youth 
students 
The FYSCP will coordinate the annual R.I.S.E. 
Youth Conference, provide backpacks and 
school supplies, coordinate and facilitate 
College and Career Awareness Workshops for 
middle and high school students, coordinate 
college/university field trips and opportunities 
for other student events, assist in the 
development and facilitation of grade level 
transition services, provide support for 
orientation meetings and support for students 
transitioning from elementary to middle, middle 
to high school, and high school to post-
secondary, provide paid work experience 
opportunities, provide assistance for case 
management to identify academic and social 
support services (i.e. behavioral health, 
tutoring, academic counseling, etc.) and to 
ensure access to summer school, credit 
recovery, dual enrollment, A-G and CTE 
courses (help to ensure high school youth are 
familiar with available courses and other 
support services); outreach to families will be 
conducted regarding college and career 
workshops, senior workshops, and other 
student events and activities; partner with 
Independent Living Program to facilitate 

X 
 

Fost
er 

Yout
h 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

100 students 
received a 
backpack and 
school supplies 
July, 2025; the 
annual R.I.S.E. 
Youth 
Conference is 
scheduled to 
take place on 
February 23, 
2026. Middle 
and high school 
students will 
attend. 
 
Three College 
and Career 
Awareness 
workshops were 
held for high 
school students 
covering career 
awareness/inter
ests and post-
secondary 
options; college 
entrance 
requirements 

Student backpack sign 
out sheet; RISE Youth 
Conference Planning 
Agendas/Minutes; 
Student sign-in 
sheets/fliers, 

$26,000.00 $7,800        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 37 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

financial literacy, budgeting and other 
independent living skills.       
 
 
 
 

and financial 
aid. 
 
Two middle 
school grade 
level transition 
workshops have 
been conducted 
focused on high 
school 
graduation 
requirements 
and CTE 
pathways, 
career 
exploration and 
financial 
literacy. 
 
Four college 
visits were 
provided to 
CSU San Jose,  
UC Merced, 
College of the 
Sequoias, and 
UC Santa Cruz. 
 
A contract for 
case 
management 
services for 
Foster Youth 
was finalized 
with MUSD to 
help identify 
student 
academic and 
social needs. 
 

5.3 Build LEA and caregiver capacity to 
support the social-emotional and academic 
needs of foster youth 
The Foster Youth Coordinator will develop and 
provide professional development in areas 

X 
 

Fost
er 

Yout
h 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

Beginning 
August, 2025, 
through 
December, 
2025, monthly 

Fliers, agendas, sign in 
sheets. 

$73,586.00 $9,267        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 38 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

relevant to Foster Youth including legislation, 
school stability, HS needs of Foster Youth, 
truancy, trauma informed care, and alternative 
discipline strategies (for liaisons, school staff, 
social workers, probation, CASA, caregivers, 
etc.), meet with liaisons individually two times 
per year to provide support, pilot the 
Neurosequential Model in Education (NME) in 
one school district, assist LEAs to provide case 
managers to conduct AB167 screenings, 
monitor attendance and academic progress, 
identify academic and social-emotional needs, 
make referrals, coordinate services, identify 
youth to participate in post-secondary 
preparation activities, etc., coordinate monthly 
caregiver workshops focused on various topics 
to help support the academic and social-
emotional well-being of foster youth; Prioritize 
literacy for 3rd – 6th grade foster youth through 
increased awareness of the importance of 
early literacy, workshops and literacy events to 
provide strategies for parents; increase 
coordination with local Early Childhood 
Education programs to identify and support 
more children and families; increase 
awareness about the importance of attendance 
and providing positive attendance strategies 
for caregivers, provide support for case 
managing seniors and ensuring support for 
matriculation into post-secondary programs, 
connecting them with college support 
programs, etc.; provide social emotional 
support services to Foster Youth by ensuring 
staff have adequate knowledge, trauma-
informed training, and resources to meet the 
SEL needs of Foster Youth and ensuring 
connection to extra-curricular activities; provide 
assistance to revise policies/practices to 
ensure that Foster Youth experiencing school 
discipline have access to positive behavior 
supports, Restorative Justice, pupil services 
counseling, mental health services, and other 
positive behavior modification services; 
provide support to increase number of foster 
youth receiving services from Court Appointed 

Advisory 
Council 
meetings were 
held that 
focused on 
legislative 
updates, the 
unique needs of 
foster youth and 
best practices to 
address these 
needs. 
Additionally, two 
virtual 
professional 
development 
opportunities 
were provided 
to partners on 
AB490 and 
Meeting the 
High School 
Needs of Foster 
Youth (including 
partial credits, 
screening for 
reduced credits, 
transfer of 
records, etc.). 
FYSCP staff 
assist continue 
to provide 
ongoing support 
to ensure 
processes and 
procedures are 
in place to 
screen high 
school students 
for reduced 
graduation 
credit 
requirements. 
Individual 
Liaison site 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 39 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Special Advocates (CASA) targeting early 
childhood-aged youth - focus on social-
emotional strategies, attendance, behavior and 
support for caregivers on managing behavior 
at home; continue facilitating monthly 
Executive Advisory Council meetings and 
highlighting information relevant to foster youth 
including legislation, best practices, training 
opportunities, etc. 
 
       
 
 
 
 

visits have been 
conducted to 
provide added 
support specific 
to each district.  
Six of nine 
school district 
liaisons have 
been visited at 
least once.  The 
process for 
initial 
implementation 
of the 
Neurosequential 
Model (trauma) 
has been 
initiated with 
one school 
district who will 
be the pilot for 
Madera County.  
Four caregiver 
workshops have 
been provided 
covering a 
variety of topics 
to help 
caregivers 
advocate for 
youth. Partners 
from the County 
Office of 
Education, 
Behavioral 
Health, local 
LEAs, and 
Public Health 
have presented 
on various 
topics. 
The Executive 
Advisory 
Council has met 
monthly sin 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 40 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

August and 
highlights best 
practices, 
upcoming 
events, 
legislative 
updates, and 
professional 
development 
learning 
opportunities. 
 

5.4 Ensure school stability 
The FYSCP and districts will ensure school 
stability by minimizing changes in school 
placement if in the best interest of the youth by 
providing transportation to maintain school of 
origin, provide educational case management 
to identify academic and behavioral support 
services (i.e. monitor attendance and 
behavior); continue overseeing county-wide 
interagency school of origin/transportation 
agreement and ensure partners are familiar 
with the agreement; meet every other month 
with EAC subcommittee to discuss students 
with very high needs and ensure social and 
academic needs are meet to ensure school 
stability. 
 
       
 
 
 
 

X 
 

Fost
er 

Yout
h 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

A county-wide 
interagency 
agreement 
between local 
LEAs and 
Department of 
Social Services 
exists. This 
agreement 
outlines a Best 
Interest 
Determination 
process as well 
as a process to 
ensure 
transportation 
when a change 
in school 
placement is in 
a student's best 
interest. The 
FYSCP county-
wide program 
provides 
funding for 
districts to 
ensure school 
stability as 
needed.  
Ongoing 
professional 
development 
during EAC 

Signed interagency 
agreement; purchase 
order designating 
funds for transportation 
to maintain school of 
origin 
 
**No expenses as of 
mid-year reporting 
 

$25,000.00 $0        



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 41 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

meetings 
focuses on best 
practices for 
minimizing 
school 
placement 
changes. 

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 42 of 44 

Goal 6 
Goal Description 
Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of expelled youth.         

 

Expected Annual Measurable Objectives 
      

Metric # Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Mid-Year Outcome 
Data 

Desired Outcome for 
2026-2027 

6.1 Madera County Student Expulsion 
Rate        

0.3% expulsion rate of 
students from Madera 
County. 
 
[2022-23 Data Quest 
Expulsion Rate] 
 

0.2% expulsion rate of 
74 total students from 
Madera County. 
 
[2023-24 Data Quest 
Expulsion Rate] 
 

 0.1% expulsion rate of 
students from Madera 
County. 
 
[2024-25 Data Quest] 
 

Maintain or reduce the 
expulsion rate 
annually. 

6.2 Expulsion Meetings        Meetings were held 
throughout 2023-24 to 
craft the next Expelled 
Youth Plan for Madera 
County. 
 
[2023-24 Local Data] 
 

Thirty-seven meetings 
held throughout 2024-
25 with district 
partners for offering 
services to expelled 
youth. Meetings 
included district 
administrators, 
parents, and students 
prior to enrollment. 
Meetings also held to 
assist district partners 
with 
concerns/questions for 
expulsion cases. 

 As of December 2025, 
CAES programs have 
provided educational 
services to 18 expelled 
youth (4 PTC, 7 
PTCC, 2 MCIA, 5 E/V) 
from districts within 
Madera County. 

MCSOS will facilitate 
meetings throughout 
the year with district 
partners for services to 
expelled youth. 
Meetings will include 
district administrators, 
parents, and students 
prior to enrollment. 
Meetings will also be 
held to assist district 
partners with 
concerns/questions for 
expulsion cases. 

 

Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results 
        

Goal # 
Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 

Level 
Mid-Year  

Outcome Data 
Other Data/Evidence 

(qualitative, 
quantitative, artifacts) 

Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

6.1 Triennial Meetings 
MCSOS will provide personnel for full 
cooperation to oversee and monitor the 
Expelled Youth Plan and lead the process on a 
triennial basis to develop this plan in 
collaboration with the nine districts in Madera 
County. The Executive Director, Career 
Alternative Education Services (CAES) 

X 
 

Exp
elled 
Yout

h 
 
 

No      Planned This is year two 
of a three-year 
cycle of the 
Expelled Youth 
Plan. Most 
meetings will be 
conducted 
individually on 

Zoom, Phone meetings $0.00 $0        

http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCAP/Instructions/20LCAPInstructions.htm#ExplanationofWhytheLEADevelopedGoals


Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 43 of 44 

        
Goal # 

Action # Action Title and Description Contributing Implementation 
Level 

Mid-Year  
Outcome Data 

Other Data/Evidence 
(qualitative, 

quantitative, artifacts) 
Total Funds 
Budgeted 

Mid-Year 
Expenditures 

Division, will lead the process with 
representatives from each of the other districts 
in Madera County.  Annual review and 
monitoring of Expelled Youth Plan to ensure 
implementation and identify possible gaps, 
along with effective strategies for serving 
expelled youth. All efforts will be made to 
effectively support expelled students to return 
to district of residence by satisfactorily meeting 
the stipulations of the expulsion.  The annual 
review was conducted in Spring of 2024, with a 
new plan written and approved by the nine 
district Superintendents and MCSOS in May of 
2024.       
 
 
 
 

how best to 
serve incoming 
expelled youth. 

6.2 Expelled Youth Placement Meetings 
Meetings will be held throughout the year with 
district partners to offer services for expelled 
youth during the year. Meetings will include 
district administrators, parents, and students 
prior to enrollment. The meetings will ensure 
that students are placed in the appropriate 
program to meet their unique needs.  Meetings 
will also be held to assist district partners with 
concerns/questions for expulsion cases.       
 
 
 
 

X 
 

Exp
elled 
Yout

h 
 
 

No      Ongoing 
Implementation 

As of December 
20, 2025, no 
district 
representative 
meetings have 
been held, 
however, 
individual 
meetings with 
district 
representatives 
have been held 
to discuss 
incoming 
expelled youth 
to CAES 
programs. 

Zoom, phone 
meetings, referral 
packages 

$37,000.00 $18,500        

 



Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the 2025-26 LCAP for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor and Voyager Schools) Page 44 of 44 

 

Impact to the Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Item As adopted in Budget Overview for Parents Mid-Year Update 
Total LCFF Funds 18,475,508 19,493,899 

LCFF Supplemental/Concentration Grants 327,131 365,513 
 
 



Tricia Protzman 
Superintendent of Schools 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

Agenda Item 8.1 

Board of Education Action Item 
February 10, 2026 

Topic: 
Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates. 

Background:  
Attached is a listing of the Temporary County Certificates (TCC)  
issued from January 1, 2026. TCC’s are issued in order to authorize 
the individual to work while the California Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing reviews his/her waiver request, emergency permit, initial 
and/or renewal credential application packet.   

Patricia M. Protzman, Madera County Superintendent of Schools or an 
assigned designee, approved and signed each certificate.  The Board is 
now requested to ratify this action. 

Financial Impact: 
None 

Resource: 
Joe Casarez 
Chief Human Resources Officer 
Human Resources 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board ratify the issuance of Temporary County 
Certificates from January 1-30, 2026. 



MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT of SCHOOLS

TEMPORARY COUNTY CERTIFICATES Issued  01/01/2026-01/30/2026

Last Name First Name Credential Applied For Valid Dates of TCC Date Issued Application 
Type

Employing 
District

Benavidez Crystal Speech-Language Pathology Services 
Credential

02/01/2026-
03/01/2027

1/30/2026 NewMCSOS

Camacho Noel Prospective Substitute Teacher Permit 01/21/2026-
02/01/2027

1/30/2026 NewCounty-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List

Cruz Steve Prospective Substitute Teacher Permit 12/15/2025-
01/01/2027

1/30/2026 NewCounty-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List

Gonzalez 
Santillan

Paola Prospective Substitute Teacher Permit 01/09/2026-
02/01/2027

1/30/2026 NewCounty-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List

Haynes Hailey Prospective Substitute Teacher Permit 01/27/2026-
02/01/2027

1/30/2026 NewCounty-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List

Hess Jessica CCSD English Language Authorization 10/24/2025-
11/01/2026

1/30/2026 NewChawanakee 
USD

Horton Dana Short Term Staff Permit 12/01/2025-
01/01/2027

1/30/2026 NewGolden Valley 
USD

Iriye Bryan EM- 30 Day Sub Permit 01/01/2026-
02/01/2027

1/30/2026 NewChowchilla 
Elementary SD

Owen Michelle Preliminary School Nurse Services 
Credential

12/01/2025-
01/01/2027

1/30/2026 NewCounty-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List

Sconce Matthew CCSD English Language Authorization 10/24/2025-
11/01/2026

1/30/2026 NewChawanakee 
USD

Smith Kiersten Emergency CLAD 10/01/2025-
11/01/2026

1/30/2026 NewChowchilla 
Elementary SD

Varner Jennifer CCSD English Language Authorization 10/24/2025-
11/01/2026

1/30/2026 NewChawanakee 
USD

VonWagner Rodney CCSD English Language Authorization 10/24/2025-
11/01/2026

1/30/2026 NewChawanakee 
USD



                                                                                      Tricia Protzman 
   Superintendent of Schools  

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

 

  
 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 8.2 
 

Board of Education Action Item 
February 10, 2026 

 
Topic: 
Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment. 
 
Background:  
MCSOS staff members have completed a review of other equipment not 
in use and have determined that the items on the attached list cannot be 
used in an alternative placement.  The equipment consists of a variety of 
laptops and computers.  Once declared obsolete, these items will be 
removed from our Fixed Asset Inventory and discarded.   
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
Resource: 
Marisol Verduzco 
Chief Officer 
Business & Administrative Services 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board approve the attached list and be declared 
obsolete then removed from inventory. 
 
 
 
 
 



Work Order # Req Date Work Requested

OB26-00186 12/19/2025

Asset# 25872 	Computer
Make	Dell
Model	Optiplex 7450 AIO
Obsolete	Yes

OB26-00187 12/19/2025

Asset# 24665  Computer
Make	Dell
Model	Optiplex 9020 AIO
Obsolete	Yes

OB26-00188 12/31/2025

Asset# 26423 Laptop	
Make	Dell
Model	Latitude 5520
Obsolete	Yes

OB26-00189 1/27/2026

Description: Black 3 drawer file cabinet
Make: HON
Broken: Y 

OB26-00190 2/2/2026

Asset# 23756  Laptop
Make	Planar
Model	PT19
Obsolete	Yes

OB26-00191 2/2/2026

Asset# 26539  Laptop
Make	Dell
Model	Latitude 3420
Broken	Yes 

OB26-00192 2/2/2026

Asset# 25798 Computer
Make	Dell
Model	7450 AIO
Obsolete	Yes

OB26-00193 2/2/2026

Asset# 25149 Laptop
Make	Dell
Model	9030 AIO
Obsolete	Yes

OB26-00194 2/2/2026

Asset# 25878 Computer
Make	Dell
Model	7450 AIO
Obsolete	Yes

OB26-00195 2/2/2026

Asset# 27139 Printer
Make	HP
Model	Color LaserJet Enterprise M554
Broken	Yes 

OB26-00196 2/2/2026

Asset# 24619 Computer
Make	Dell
Model	Latitude E5530 non-vPro
Obsolete	Yes

OB26-00197 2/2/2026

Asset#25368 Computer
Make	Dell
Model	Latitude 3560
Obsolete	Yes

OB26-00198 2/2/2026

Asset# 25373 Computer
Make	Dell
Model	Latitude 3560
Obsolete	Yes



OB26-00199 2/2/2026

Asset# 25367 	Computer
Model Dell Latitude 3560
Obsolete	Yes



    Tricia Protzman 
   Superintendent of Schools 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

Agenda Item 8.3 

Board of Education Action Item 
February 10, 2025 

Topic: 
Consideration of Investment Performance Statement 

Background: 
Section 53646 of the Government Code requires the chief fiscal officer of 
each local agency to provide to the governing board a report of investments, 
on a quarterly basis.  However, if all of an agency’s funds are placed in the 
county treasury, Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) or an FDIC-insured 
bank account, the most recent statement received from these institutions will 
suffice.  If an agency has any other investments, additional reporting is 
required. 

Following its 2025 Investment Policy, all Madera County Superintendent of 
Schools funds are deposited in the Madera County Treasury, including the 
proceeds of the tax revenue anticipation notes (TRAN) program, when 
MCSOS participates.  Therefore, we have attached a copy of the latest 
monthly investment report from the Madera County Co-Mingled Investment 
Pool which includes its most recent list of investments.  

The County Treasurer-Tax Collector’s investments continue to provide as 
favorable a rate of return as can be expected in the current financial market.  
The current rate of return is 4.58% and is higher compared to last year’s rate 
of return of 4.30% for the same time period by 0.28%.  

Financial Impact:  
Approximately $20,000 per year. 

Resource:  
Marisol Verduzco 
Chief Officer  
Business and Administrative Services 

Recommendation:  
It is recommended the Board approve the quarterly rate of return of 
investments with the county government as presented







NOTE: SUMMARY ONLY





















Tricia Protzman 

Superintendent of Schools 

1105 South Madera Avenue ⚫ Madera, CA 93637 ⚫ (559) 673-6051⚫ FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

Agenda Item 8.4

Board of Education Action Item 
February 10, 2026 

Topic: 
Consideration Approval of revised 2025-2026 School Calendar for Pioneer 
Technical Center (Chowchilla) 

Background:  
The Madera County Board of Education annually approves school calendars 
for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) Alternative Education, 
Special Education and Charter School programs. 

All calendars for the Career and Alternative Education Programs will follow a 
calendar that has variations from the Madera Unified School District (MUSD) 
due to the number of approved staff development days MUSD has that 
negatively affect the Average Daily Attendance calculation.   

May 08, 2026, will now be set as the Chowchilla Fair day.  Chowchilla Fair day 
has been moved from May15, 2026 to May 8, 2026.  The changes are to 
reflect changes made in Chowchilla Union High School District’s Calendar.   

Financial Impact: 
None. 

Resource: 
Frederick Cogan 
Executive Director,  
Career & Alternative Education Services 

Recommendation: 
Approval of the calendar as presented. 



DRAFT 

MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
Pioneer Technical Center (Chowchilla) 

2025-2026 
 
July 1-31 are non-school days.  July the 4 is a holiday. Total instructional days are 0.  
 
August 1, and 8-15 are non-school days.  August 4-7 are staff workdays. August 18-31 are 
instructional days with August 18 being the first day of school. Total instructional days are 10, 
staff workdays are 4.  
 
September 1 is a holiday. September 2-30 are instructional days. Total instructional days are 
21.  
 
October 1-31 are instructional days. Total instructional days are 23.  
 
November 1-21 are instructional days. November 10 and 24-26 are non-school days. November 
11, 27-28 are holidays.  Total instructional days are 13.  
 
December 1-19 are instructional days. December 22, and 26-31 are office closure days.  
December 23-25 are holidays.  Total instructional days are 15.  
 
January 1 and 19 are holidays.  January 2 is a non-school day. January 5-31 are instructional 
days. Total instructional days are 19.  
 
February 1-28 are instructional days. February 13 and 16 are holidays. Total instructional days 
are 18.  
 
March 1-27 are instructional days.  March 30-31 are non-school days. Total instructional days 
are 20.  
 
April 1-6 are non-school days.  April 7-30 are instructional days. Total instructional days are 18.  
 
May 1-31 are instructional days. May 8 is a non-school day. May 25 is a holiday. Total 
instructional days are 19.  
 
June 1-4 are instructional days with June 4 as the last day of school. June 5-30 are non-school 
days.  June 19 is a holiday.  Total instructional days are 4.  
 
Total instructional days for the year are 180, non-instructional staff workdays are 4, and total 

staff workdays are 184. 

 



DRAFT

Total

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31  Days

JUL N N N H N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N 0

AUG N SW SW SW SW N N N N N N X X X X X X X X X X 10

SEP H X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 21

OCT X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 23

NOV X X X X X N H X X X X X X X X N N */N H H 13

DEC X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X */N */N H H H N N N 15

JAN H H X X X X X X X X X X H X X X X X X X X X 19

FEB X X X X X X X X X H H X X X X X X X X X 18

MAR X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X N N 20

APR N N N N X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 18

MAY X X X X X N X X X X X X X X X X H X X X X 19

JUN X X X X N N N N N N N N N N H N N N N N N N 4

Total Instructional Days 180

H = Holiday Non-Instructional Staff Work Days = 4

N = Non-School Day Total Staff Workdays = 184

SW = Staff Workday

X = Days Taught

*/N = Office Closed

X = End of Quarter

MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

2025-2026

Pioneer Technical Center - Chowchilla Site

Board Approved: 

Career and Alternative Education Services



 Tricia Protzman 
Superintendent of Schools 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051 FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

 

  
 

 
Agenda Item 9.1 

 
Board of Education Informational Item 

February 10, 2026 
 

Topic: 
Board Bylaws Ad Hoc Committee February Update 
 
Background:  
Due to recent changes in legislation, the Board of Education has created 
an ad hoc committee to review and update the Board Bylaws. 
 
Process: 

1. Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) staff to review 
similar county office bylaws. 

2. MCSOS staff review education and government codes cited on the 
policies to verify that they are current. 

3. MCSOS to focus first on two policies: 
a. MCBE BB 9250 Compensation, Benefits and Reimbursement (to 

incorporate new laws related to Board remuneration). 
b. MCBE BB 9321 Time, Place, Notification of Meetings, 

Teleconferencing (to incorporate new laws related to the Brown 
Act). 

c. Remainder of the policies will be updated if needed to code 
citations or with changes to language conventions, removal of 
he/she, etc. 

4. MCSOS staff to bring recommended updates and changes to the ad 
hoc committee for consideration and review. 

5. Ad hoc committee to review recommendations. 
6. Ad hoc committee to bring recommended updates and changes to the 

full Board of Education for discussion, review, direction and/or 
adoption 

Timeline: February to July 2026  

Financial Impact: 
None 

 
Resource: 
Tricia Protzman 
 Madera County Superintendent of Schools 


	AGENDA FEB 10 2026
	MINUTES JAN 13 2026
	5.1 WILLIAMS FEB 2026
	5.2 LCAP mid year review
	Agenda Item 5.2
	Board of Education Informational Item
	February 10, 2026
	Topic:
	Background:
	Financial Impact:
	Resource:


	5.2.1 LCAP MCIA
	Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the
	2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP)
	Goal 1
	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal 2

	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal 3

	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results

	Impact to the Budget Overview for Parents

	5.2.2 LCAP PTC
	Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the
	2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP)
	Goal 1
	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal 2

	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal 3

	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal 4

	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results

	Impact to the Budget Overview for Parents

	5.2.3 LCAP MCSOS
	Monitoring Goals, Actions, and Resources for the
	2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP)
	Goal 1
	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal 2

	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal 3

	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal 4

	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal 5

	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results
	Goal 6

	Expected Annual Measurable Objectives
	Actions & Measuring and Reporting Results

	Impact to the Budget Overview for Parents

	8.1 TCCs FEB 2026
	February 2026 List.pdf
	February 2026 Cover.pdf
	Agenda Item 8.1
	Board of Education Action Item
	July 8, 2025
	Topic:
	Background:
	Financial Impact:
	Resource:
	Recommendation:



	8.2 OBSOLETE FEB 2026
	BI 8.2 Feb Obsolete Cover
	Agenda Item 8.2
	Board of Education Action Item
	February 10, 2026
	Topic:
	Background:
	Financial Impact:
	Resource:
	Recommendation:


	Sheet1
	List 1


	8.3 Investment Performance Statement Quarterly Rate of Return
	BI 8.3 Investment Performance Cover
	Agenda Item 8.3
	Board of Education Action Item
	February 10, 2025

	December 2025 - Investment Portfolio

	8.4 Chowchilla Calendar revised
	9.1 BOARD BYLAWS UPDATE



